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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission File Registrants; State of Incorporation; IRS Employer
Number Addresses; and Telephone Numbe Identification No.
1-8962 PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION 86-0512431

(An Arizona corporation
400 North Fifth Street, P.O. Box 539
Phoenix, Arizona 850°-3999
(602) 25(-1000
1-4473 ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY 86-001117C
(An Arizona corporation
400 North Fifth Street, P.O. Box 539
Phoenix, Arizona 8507-3999
(602) 25(-1000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title Of Each Clas Name Of Each Exchange On Which Regist
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIOI Common Stock, No Par Val New York Stock Exchang
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY None None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢fie Act:
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY Common Stock, Par Ma $2.50 per share

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edBdturities Act.

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIOM YesM No O
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY YesM No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act.
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIOM YesO No 4
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY YesO No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filsgmirements for the past 90 days.

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIOM YesM No O

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY YesHM No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted pasted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulatiof &dring the preceding 12 mon
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files).

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIOM YesO No O
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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilets pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained herein, and w
not be contained, to the best of registratiowledge, in definitive proxy or information &ments incorporated by referenc
Part Ill of this Form 10-K or in any amendmenthestForm 10-KM

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, accelerated filer, or a small

reporting company. See the definitions of “largeederated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “small@porting company” in

Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

Large accelerated fill®] ~ Accelerated fileid Non-accelerated fileO Smaller reporting compar
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compe

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

Large accelerated filk  Accelerated filelO Non-accelerated fileM Smaller reporting compar
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compe

Indicate by check mark whether each registrantsisedl company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the) A¢esdd No M

State the aggregate market value of the votingnamdvoting common equity held by non-affiliatesyrquuted by reference to
the price at which the common equity was last smidhe average bid and asked price of such coneqaity, as of the last
business day of each registrant’s most recentlypbeted second fiscal quarter:

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIONM $3,035,693,863 as of June 30, 2!

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY $0 as of June 30, 20(

The number of shares outstanding of each regi&raotnmon stock as of February 15, 2010

PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIONM 101,445,202 share

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY Common Stock, $2.50 par value, 71,264,947 shares.

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation is the sole hodde
Arizona Public Service Compa’'s Common Stock

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of Pinnacle West Capital Corporation’srdgfe Proxy Statement relating to its Annual Magtof Shareholders to be
held on May 19, 2010 are incorporated by referémaePart 111 hereof.

Arizona Public Service Company meets the conditionset forth in General Instruction 1(1)(a) and (b) d Form 10-K
and is therefore filing this form with the reduceddisclosure format allowed under that General Instriction.
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This combined Form 10-K is separately filed by Pinacle West and APS. Each registrant is filing on itewn behalf
all of the information contained in this Form 10-Kthat relates to such registrant and, where requiregdits subsidiaries.
Except as stated in the preceding sentence, neithegistrant is filing any information that does notrelate to such
registrant, and therefore makes no representationsto any such information. The information requiredwith respect to
each company is set forth within the applicable ites. Item 7 of this report is divided into two sectins — Pinnacle West
Consolidated and APS. The Pinnacle West Consolidatesection describes Pinnacle West and its subsidias on a
consolidated basis, including discussions of PinnlacWest's regulated utility and non-utility operations. Item 8 of this
report includes Consolidated Financial Statementsfd’innacle West and Financial Statements of APS.din 8 also
includes Notes to Pinnacle West’s Consolidated Finaial Statements, the majority of which also relate to APS, and
Supplemental Notes, which only relate to APS’ Finacial Statements.
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GLOSSARY OF NAMES AND TECHNICAL TERMS

Arizona Corporation Commissic

Arizona Department of Environmental Qual

Allowance for Funds Used During Construct

Arizona Nuclear Power Project, also known as Palade
Arizona Public Service Company, a subsidiary of@oenpany
APS Energy Services Company, Inc., a subsidiath@Compan:
The portion of AP’ retail base rates attributable to fuel and purath@esver cost:
Cholla Power Plar

United States Department of Enel

El Dorado Investment Company, a subsidiary of thenGany
United States Environmental Protection Age

Financial Accounting Standards Bo:

United States Federal Energy Regulatory Commis

Four Corners Power Pla

Kilovolt, one thousand volt

Kilowatt-hour, one thousand watts per h

Megawatt, one million watt

Retail and wholesale sales supplied under traditioos-based rate regulatic
Navajo Generating Static

United States Nuclear Regulatory Commiss

Other comprehensive incor

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Stat

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation (any use of theds “Company,” “we,” and “our”

refer to Pinnacle Wes

Pinnacle West Marketing & Trading Co., LLC, a sulisiy of the Compan
Potentially responsible party under Superf

Power supply adjustor approved by the ACC to prevat recovery or refund of
variations in actual fuel and purchased power costspared with the Base Fuel R
Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Rowistrict
SunCor Development Company, a subsidiary of the fizmy
Transmission cost adjust

Variable-interest entity

West Phoenix Power Pla
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statementseld on current expectations. These forward-loogiagements are
often identified by words such as “estimate,” “gotd “may,” “believe,” “plan,” “expect,” “require; “intend,” “assume” and
similar words. Because actual results may diffetemally from expectations, we caution you not tage undue reliance on
these statements. A number of factors could causesf results to differ materially from historigakults, or from outcomes
currently expected or sought by Pinnacle West d6 AFhese factors include:

* regulatory and judicial decisions, developments prodeedings
* our ability to achieve timely and adequate rat®vecy of our costs
* our ability to reduce capital expenditures and ptosts while maintaining reliability and custonservice levels

e variations in demand for electricity, includirgpse due to weather, the general economy, custanaesales growth (or
decline), and the effects of energy conservatioasuees

e power plant performance and outac
« volatile fuel and purchased power co
« fuel and water supply availabilit

. new legislation or regulation relating to greemé® gas emissions, renewable energy mandates argy efficiency
standards

* our ability to meet renewable energy requirementsracover related cos:

»  risks inherent in the operation of nuclear fa@htiincluding spent fuel disposal uncertai

e competition in retail and wholesale power mark

» the duration and severity of the economic declinArizona and current credit, financial and reaatsmarket condition:
» the cost of debt and equity capital and the abititpccess capital markets when requi

e restrictions on dividends or other burdensome sioms in our credit agreements and ACC orc

e our ability, or the ability of our subsidiaries,eet debt service obligatior

e changes to our credit rating

* the investment performance of the assets of odlear decommissioning trust, pension, and othstretirement benefit
plans and the resulting impact on future fundirguieements

* liquidity of wholesale power markets and the usdeivative contracts in our busine
»  potential shortfalls in insurance covera

e new accounting requirements or new interpretatairexisting requirement:

e transmission and distribution system conditions @perating costs

» the ability to meet the anticipated future needafdditional baseload generation and associatedrtriarion facilities in ot
region;

» the ability of our counterparties and power plaatigipants to meet contractual or other obligagic
» technological developments in the electric indusand
e economic and other conditions affecting the rettesnarket in SunC’s market area:
These and other factors are discussed in Risk Fagéscribed in Item 1A of this report, which ydwsld review carefull

before placing any reliance on our financial staeta or disclosures. Neither Pinnacle West nor Agssimes any obligation to
update any forward-looking statements, even ifiotarnal estimates change, except as may be regoyjrapplicable law.



WPD-6
Screening Data Part 2 of 2
Page 1444 of 7002




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data Part 2 of 2
Page 1445 of 7002

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Pinnacle West
Pinnacle West is a holding company that conducsiniegs through its subsidiaries. We derive the ritgjof our revenue
and earnings from our wholly-owned subsidiary, ARBS is a vertically-integrated electric utilityathprovides either retail or
wholesale electric service to most of the StatArafona, with the major exceptions of about one-bathe Phoenix
metropolitan area, the Tucson metropolitan areaMwithve County in northwestern Arizona.

Operating Revenues (in thousands)

Year Ended December 3

2009 2008 2007
APS $ 3,149,501 $ 3,133,49 $ 2,936,27
Percentage of Pinnacle West Consolid: 96% 95% 89%

Pinnacle West’s other first-tier subsidiaries anaGor, APSES and El Dorado. Additional informatrefated to these
businesses is provided later in this report.

Our reportable business segments are the reg@dhgetlicity segment, which consists of traditioredulated retail and
wholesale electricity businesses (primarily elecservice to Native Load customers) and relateitities, and includes
electricity generation, transmission and distribntiand the real estate segment, which consistabgstate development and
investment activities in the western United States.

Due to the continuing distressed conditions inrted estate markets, in 2009 our real-estate sialpgjdGunCor, undertook
a program to dispose of its homebuilding operatiomsster-planned communities, land parcels, comaiexssets and golf
courses in order to eliminate its outstanding dabta part of this plan to sell substantially dllSainCor’s assets, the real estate
segment may no longer be a reporting segment ifuthee. See Note 17 for financial information eir dusiness segments.

BUSINESS OF ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

APS currently provides electric service to appraadiaty 1.1 million customers. We own or lease mbent6,280 MW of
regulated generation capacity and we hold a mbotii long-term and short-term power purchase ageatsrior additional
capacity, including a variety of agreements forphechase of renewable energy. During 2009, ndesipgrchaser or user of
energy accounted for more than 1.1% of our electnienues.
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The following map shows APS'’ retail service temjtancluding the locations of its generating fé@k and principal
transmission lines.

REVADA, UTAH COMLCAADD

APS Retail Elsceriz Sarvice Tariary
L ] Major APL Poswer Planiy
—  Princigal APS Transmision Lines
= = Transmisshos Lines Opessted for Othes
) AP Sl Powes Unita

Energy Sources and Resource Planning

To serve its customers, APS obtains power throtgybarious generation stations and through powsrhase agreements.
Resource planning is an important function necggsameet Arizona’s future energy needs. APS’ sesiaf energy by fuel
type during 2009 were: coal — 36.3%; nuclear — 2&.Purchased power — 20.6%; and gas, oil and 6théi7.2%.

Generation Facilities

APS has ownership interests in or leases the naalear, gas, oil and solar generating facilitiesalibed below. For
additional information regarding these facilitisseg Item 2.

Coal Fueled Generating Facilities

Four Corners— Four Corners is a 5-unit coal-fired power plamdted in the northwestern corner of New MexicoSAP
operates the plant and owns 100% of Four Corneits WIn2 and 3 and 15% of Units 4 and 5. APS hadad entitliement from
Four Corners of 785 MW. The Four Corners plantisiteased from the Navajo Nation and is also sligean easement from
the federal government. See “Plant and Transmidsiom Leases and Easements on Indian Lands” in Réan additional
information. APS purchases all of Four Corners’leeguirements from a supplier with a long-ternskeaf coal reserves with
the Navajo Nation. The Four Corners coal contracsthrough 2016.
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Cholla— Cholla is a 4-unit coal-fired power plant locatachortheastern Arizona. APS operates the pladteaymns 100%
of Cholla Units 1, 2 and 3. PacifiCorp owns ChdJiait 4 and APS operates that unit for PacifiCorp.SAhas a total entitlement
from Cholla of 647 MW. APS purchases all of Chdllabal requirements from a coal supplier that malkesf the coal under
long-term leases of coal reserves with the fedgraérnment and private landholders. The Cholla coatract runs through
2024. APS has the ability under the contract taicedts annual coal commitment and purchase agpooti Cholla’s coal
requirements on the spot market to take advantbgenopetitive pricing options and to purchase eeguired for increased
operating capacity. APS believes that the curreait dontracts and competitive fuel supply optionsuge the continued
operation of Cholla for its useful life. In addiipAPS has a long-term coal transportation contract

Navajo Generating Statior- The Navajo Plant is a 3-unit coal-fired powemplebcated in northern Arizona. Salt River
Project operates the plant and APS owns a 14%efsitér Navajo Units 1, 2 and 3. APS has a totatlemtent from the Navajo
Plant of 315 MW. The Navajo Plant’s coal requiretseare purchased from a supplier with long-terrsdsadrom the Navajo
Nation and the Hopi Tribe. The Navajo Plant is ursimtract with its coal supplier through 2011,wdiptions to exten
through 2019. The Navajo Plant site is leased fiteerNavajo Nation and is also subject to an easefrmn the federal
government. See “Plant and Transmission Line Leasdd€asements on Indian Lands” in Item 2 for dafué information.

These coal plants face uncertainties related tstiagi and potential legislation and regulation #aild significantly
impact their economics and operations. See “Enwiemtal Matters” below and “Management’s Discussind Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations —i@&Expenditures” in Iltem 7 for environmental atlonate change
developments impacting these coal facilities. See=N1 for information regarding APS’ coal minelageation obligations.

Nuclear

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating StationRalo Verde is a nuclear power plant located ab@uhbes west of Phoenix,
Arizona. APS operates the plant and owns 29.1%atif Perde Units 1 and 3 and about 17% of Unit 2addition, APS leases
about 12.1% of Unit 2, resulting in a 29.1% comUii@erest in that Unit. APS has a total entitletrfeom Palo Verde of 1,146
MW.

Palo Verde Leases 41/ 1986, APS sold about 42% of its share of Palod@éJnit 2 and certain common facilities in three
separate sale leaseback transactions. APS acdouttiese leases as operating leases. The leasie$, ave terms of
29.5 years, contain options to renew the leasés jpurchase the property for fair market valuehaténd of the lease terms.
APS must give notice to the respective lessors éetmbecember 31, 2010 and December 31, 2012 ilites to exercise, or
not exercise, either of these options. We are aimaythese options. See Notes 9 and 20 for additinfiormation regarding the
Palo Verde Unit 2 sale leaseback transactions.
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Palo Verde Operating Licenses Operation of each of the three Palo Verde unitsireg an operating license from the
NRC. The NRC issued full power operating licensednit 1 in June 1985, Unit 2 in April 1986 andity8in November 198’
The full power operating licenses, each valid fpesaod of 40 years, authorize APS, as operatimgafpr Palo Verde, to
operate the three Palo Verde units at full powerD@cember 15, 2008, APS applied for renewed oiperétenses for the Pa
Verde units for a period of 20 years beyond thdratipns of the current licenses. The current NRReslule for the applicatio
estimates a final decision in the fall of 2011. AB#&aking preparations to secure resources nageassaperate the plant for
the period of extended operation.

Palo Verde Fuel Cycle -Fhe fuel cycle for Palo Verde is comprised of tbiofving stages:
e mining and milling of uranium ore to produce uranigoncentrates

e conversion of uranium concentrates to uranium Heaeitle;

« enrichment of uranium hexafluorid

«  fabrication of fuel assemblie

e utilization of fuel assemblies in reactors; ¢

e  storage and disposal of spent nuclear 1

The Palo Verde participants are continually ideiii their future nuclear fuel resource needs agbtiating
arrangements to fill those needs. The Palo Verdicpmants have contracted for all of Palo Verd&quirements for uranium
concentrates through 2011. New contracts are dlyreaing negotiated that would meet the plant’'sv@sion services needs
through 2011, taking into account available inventd he participants have also contracted for BRa@lo Verde's enrichment
services through 2013 and all of Palo Verde’'s &sslembly fabrication services until at least 2015.

Spent Nuclear Fuel and Waste DisposaPalo Verde has sufficient capacity at its on-sittependent spent fuel storage
installation (“ISFSI”) to store all of the nuclefrel that will be irradiated during the initial aging license period, through
2027. Additionally, Palo Verde has sufficient capaat its on-site ISFSI to store a portion of tbel that will be irradiated
during the period of extended operation. If undetias regarding the United States government’ggakibn to accept and store
used fuel are not favorably resolved, APS will eraté alternative storage solutions that may obvfeeneed to expand the
ISFSI to accommodate all of the fuel that will badiated during the period of extended operatgee “Palo Verde Nuclear
Generating Station” in Note 11 for a discussiosmént nuclear fuel and waste disposal.

NRC Inspection —-©n February 22, 2007, the NRC issued a “white”ifigdlow to moderate safety significance) due to
electrical output issues with the Unit 3 emergediegel generator that occurred in 2006. Under tREN Action Matrix, this
finding, coupled with a previous NRC “yellow” finalj relating to a 2004 matter involving Palo Verdsagety injection
systems, resulted in Palo Verde Unit 3 being placdgtde “multiple/repetitive degraded cornerstonelumn of the NRC'’s
Action Matrix (“Column 4”), subjecting it to an eahced NRC inspection regime. Although only Palodéddnit 3 was in
NRC's Column 4, in order to adequately assess the fezéthprovements, APS’ management conducted siteassessments
of equipment and operations.

On March 24, 2009, the NRC informed APS that it weaaoving Palo Verde Unit 3 from Column 4, removigigits 1 and
2 from the “one degraded cornerstone” column (“@oi3”) of the NRC’s Action Matrix, and returnind #iree units of the
plant to “Column 1” routine inspection and oversigl the NRC. This notification followed the NRGiempletion of its
inspections of the corrective actions taken by Raale to address the performance deficienciescnaged the NRC to place
Unit 3 into Column 4 and Units 1 and 2 into Colugin
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Nuclear Decommissioning Costs APS currently relies on an external sinking funeichanism to meet the NRC financial
assurance requirements for its interests in Patdé&/Enits 1, 2 and 3. The decommissioning costadd Verde Units 1, 2 and
3 are currently included in APS’ ACC jurisdictiorrates. Decommissioning costs are recoverable gifraunon-bypassable
system benefits charge, which allows APS to maintaiexternal sinking fund mechanism. See Notéot2dditional
information about APS’ nuclear decommissioning sost

Palo Verde Liability and Insurance Matters See “Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station — Bacinsurance” in Note
11 for a discussion of the insurance maintainethbyPalo Verde participants, including APS, fordPéérde.

Natural Gas and Oil Fueled Generating Facilities

APS has six natural gas power plants located througArizona, consisting of Redhawk, located nbarRalo Verde
Nuclear Generating Station; Ocaotillo, located impe; Sundance, located in Coolidge; West Phoendatéd in southwe:
Phoenix; Saguaro, located north of Tucson; and ¥ ulocated near Yuma. Several of the units at Sagarad Yucca run on
either gas or oil. APS has one oil power plant, §las, located in the town of Douglas, Arizona. Ad¥s and operates eacl
these plants with the exception of one combustidbine unit and one steam unit at Yucca that asgaipd by APS and owned
by the Imperial Irrigation District. APS has a fatatitlement from these plants of 3,389 MW. Gastfese plants is acquired
through APS’ hedging program. APS has |ldagn gas transportation agreements with threerdiftecompanies, which provi
APS with fuel delivery through 2024. Fuel oil isqagred under short-term purchases delivered prignariWest Phoenix,
where it is distributed to APS’ other oil power pis by truck.

Solar Facilities

APS owns and operates more than thirty on-gridadfidrid small solar systems around the state. Tregyethey have the
capacity to produce about 6 MW of renewable enefyis fleet of solar systems is anchored by a 3 FA@ility located at the
Prescott Airport and a 1 MW facility located at AB&guaro power plant.

Purchased Power Contracts

In addition to its own available generating capadtPS purchases electricity under various arrareges) including long-
term contracts and purchases through short-terrketsato supplement its owned or leased generatidrhadge its energy
requirements. A substantial portion of APS’ pur@thpower expense is netted against wholesale @algse Consolidated
Statements of Income. (See Note 18.) APS continaalbesses its need for additional capacity ressuccassure system
reliability. APS does not expect to require newwantional generation sources sooner than 2017tadpkanned additions of
renewable resources and energy efficiency initéetiv

Purchased Power Capacity APS’ purchased power capacity under long-term emtd; including its renewable energy
portfolio, is summarized in the tables below. Adpacity values are based on net capacity unlessvaie noted.
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CONVENTIONAL AGREEMENTS:

Type Dates Available Capacity (MW)
Purchase Agreement ( Year-round through December 20 Up to 90
Purchase Agreement ( Year-round through June 15, 20 238
Exchange Agreement ( May 15 to September 15 annually through 2 480
Tolling Agreemen June 2007 through May 20: 500
Tolling Agreemen June 2010 through October 2C 560
Day-Ahead Call Option Agreeme June 2007 through September 2015 (summer se¢ 500
Day-Ahead Call Option Agreeme June 2007 through summer 2(C 150
Demand Response Agreement 2010 through 2024 (summer seasc 100

(&) The capacity under this agreement varies by mavith,a maximum capacity of 90 MV

(b) The amount of electricity available to APSlanthis agreement is based in large part on custdemand and is adjusted
annually. This contract is being replaced with echase agreement for approximately 36 MW startingeJLb, 2010 and
ending June 14, 202

(c) This is a seasonal capacity exchange agreement whitth APS receives electricity during the summpeak season (fro
May 15 to September 15) and APS returns a like arnofuelectricity during the winter season (fromt@uer 15 to
February 15)

(d) The capacity under this agreement increasagphased manner over the first three years thrbee 100 MW level by the
summer of 2012

RENEWABLE AGREEMENTS:
Type and Name Location Contract End Date Capacity (MW)
Operating Facilities:
Wwind

Aragonne Mes: Santa Rosa, NI 2026 90

High Lonesome Mountainair, NM 2039 100
Geothermal

Salton Sei Imperial County, CA 2029 10
Biomass

White Mountain Powe Snowflake, AZ 2023 10
Biogas

Glendale Landfill Glendale, Az 2030 3

Signed Agreements for Other Facilities:

Solar
Solana (a Gila Bend, AZ 2043 250
Solar 1 (b) Ajo, AZ 2036 5
Solar 2 (b) Buckeye, AZ 2035 6
Solar 3 (b) Prescott, AZ 2041 10

(&) Represents contracted capac
(b) Details of these agreements have not yet beengbyhbiinouncec
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Current and Future Resources

Current Demand and Reserve Margin

Electric power demand is generally seasonal. lzdkra, demand for power peaks during the hot summosiths. APS’
2009 peak one-hour demand on its electric systeswre@orded on July 27, 2009 at 7,218 MW, comparebd 2008 peak of
7,026 MW recorded on August 1, 2008. APS’ operagleleerating capacity, together with firm purchasealing 2,657 MW,
including short-term seasonal purchases and unttrggent purchases, resulted in an actual researgim at the time of the
2009 peak demand, of 15.6%. The power actuallylaaito APS from its resources fluctuates frometitm time due in part to
planned and unplanned plant and transmission osit@ue technical problems.

Future Resources and Resource Plan

On January 29, 2009, APS submitted a ResourceR8port to the ACC proposing a diverse portfoligeheration
resources to address the projected 60% increasestomer peak demand by 2025, which equates t@=ppately 6,500 MW
of new capacity resources and accounts for bothreeaurces needed to meet growing customer loadelaas resources that
will be needed to replace expiring long-term pusssa

On December 15, 2009, the ACC approved a modiiedurce planning rule that requires APS to fileApyil 1 stof each
even year its resource plans for the next fifteearyperiod. The ACC’s modified rule also requird®SAto file its first resource
plan within 120 days after the rule becomes effectAPS believes the modified rule will likely bexe effective by mid-2010,
requiring APS to file a revised resource plan tgy/Rall of 2010, which will supercede the Januar§®filing. The modified
rule also requires the ACC to issue an order vittacknowledgment of APS’ resource plan within agpnately nine months
following its submittal.
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Renewable Energy Standard

In connection with its ongoing resource planninipi$, APS continues to focus on increasing thegmage of its energy
that is produced by renewable resources. In 20@6ACC adopted the Arizona Renewable Energy Stdratad Tariff (the
“Renewable Energy Standard” or “RESUnder the Renewable Energy Standard, electridiasiithat are regulated by the Al
must supply an increasing percentage of theirlrel@gttric energy sales from eligible renewabl@teses, including solar,
wind, biomass, biogas and geothermal technologies.renewable energy requirement is 2.5% of retadtric sales in 2010
and increases annually until it reaches 15% in 202BPS’ recent retail rate case settlement ages¢nAPS committed to,
among other things, an interim renewable energyetasf 10% by year-end 2015, which is double thstigyg RES target of 5%
for that year. (See Note 3.) A component of thginal RES is focused on stimulating developmertistributed energy
systems (generally speaking, small-scale renewtiablenologies that are located on customers’ prigsdrtAccordingly, under
the original RES, an increasing percentage ofréwirement must be supplied from distributed epeegources. This
distributed energy requirement is 20% of the oV &S requirement of 2.5% in 2010 and increas&% of the applicable
RES requirement in 2012 and subsequent years.dllba/ing table summarizes these requirement statsdand their timing:

2010 2015 2020 2025
RES as a % of retail electric sa 2.5% 5.C% 10.(% 15.(%
Percent of RES to be supplied from distributed gyer
resource! 20.(% 30.(% 30.(% 30.(%
APS’ RES commitment as a % of retail electric sale
per the retail rate case settlement agreel 10.(%

APS has a diverse portfolio of renewable resouirngading wind, geothermal, solar and biomass, Witiarrently
collectively generates over 210 MW of renewablergnéor its customers via owned or contracted reatdegeneration
facilities and an additional installed capacity2df MW equivalent of customer-sited distribution Eyyesystems in operation.
These current renewable generation projects dreretPS-owned solar facilities, as described ufi@eneration Facilities —
Solar Facilities” above, are acquired through loegn purchased power agreements, as described tPutehased Power
Contracts” above, or are partially funded by renge@ncentives we offer to our customers. APS cards to actively consider
opportunities to enhance its renewable energy @arifboth to ensure its compliance with the Rende&nergy Standard and
to meet the needs of its customer base.

Demand Side Management and Energy Efficiency

Arizona regulators are placing an increased focusrergy efficiency and demand side managementgrgto
encourage customers to conserve energy, while finggng utilities to aid in these efforts that inttately reduce the demand -
energy. In December 2009, the ACC initiated Endtfficiency rulemaking, with a proposed Energy Eéircy Standard of
22% annual energy savings by 2020. An ambitiousdsial, such as that proposed, will likely increpasicipation by APS
customers in these conservation and energy effigiprograms, which in turn will likely impact Arina’s future energy
resource needs. Energy Efficiency Rules are exgdotbe formally adopted in 2010. (See Note 3 faménd side management
and energy efficiency obligations resulting from@XPecent retail rate case settlement.)

Economic Stimulus Projects

Through the American Recovery and Reinvestmenof2009 (“ARRA”"), the Federal government is makegumber of
programs available for utilities to develop reneleaiesources, improve reliability and create jalsnfthe availability of
economic stimulus funding. Certain programs are algilable through the State of Arizona.

In 2009, the DOE announced an ARRA commitment talfthe majority of a carbon dioxide emission reuctesearch
and development project in the amount of $70.5iom)lwhich will be located at our Cholla power plaihalso announced a
commitment to fund, subject to final negotiatioa3.3 million high penetration photovoltaic genierastudy related to a
proposed APS community power project in Flagstafizona. These funding amounts are contingent upeating certain
project milestones, including DOE-established buggeameters, over the next four years.
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APS has also been selected by the State of Arisddepartment of Commerce as a sub-recipient uhéestate’s ARRA
award for the implementation of various distribuésergy and energy efficiency programs in ArizoFze State is in final
negotiations to provide APS with approximately $8uflion from the State’'s ARRA grant so that APSiémplement certain
solar water heater, photovoltaic and/or wind eneelgted community projects.

APS intends to continue to evaluate additional fag@pportunities under the ARRA programs that rbayf benefit to
APS’ business, operations or community activities.

Competitive Environment and Regulatory Oversight
Retail

The ACC regulates APS’ retail electric rates asdgsuance of securities. The ACC must also approydransfer or
encumbrance of APS’ property used to provide refaittric service and approve or receive priorfivatiion of certain
transactions between Pinnacle West, APS and thgirective affiliates.

APS is subject to varying degrees of competitiamfrother investor-owned electric and gas utilitieérizona (such as
Southwest Gas Corporation), as well as cooperativasicipalities, electrical districts and simitgpes of governmental or
non-profit organizations. In addition, some custmngparticularly industrial and large commerciasttumers, may own and
operate generation facilities to meet some orfateir own energy requirements. This practicedsdming more popular with
customers installing or having installed productshsas roof top solar panels to meet or suppletheittenergy needs.

In 1999, the ACC approved rules for the introductid retail electric competition in Arizona. Asesult, as of January 1,
2001, all of APStetail customers were eligible to choose altereatrgy suppliers. However, there are currentlyctivaretai
competitors offering unbundled energy or otheiitytdervices to APS’ customers. In 2000, an Ariz&ugerior Court found
that the rules were in part unconstitutional andther respects unlawful, the latter finding begmgmarily on procedural
grounds, and invalidated all ACC orders authorizingnpetitive electric services providers to openat&rizona. In 2004, the
Arizona Court of Appeals invalidated some, butabbf the rules and upheld the invalidation of drders authorizing
competitive electric service providers. In 200% Arizona Supreme Court declined to review the CouAppeals decision.

To date, the ACC has taken no further or substaragtion on either the rules or the prior ordetb@nizing competitive
electric service providers in response to the fidailirt of Appeals decision. However, as a result néw request for
authorization to provide competitive retail elecservice by Sempra Energy Solutions, LLC, the Ad@cted the ACC staff t
investigate whether such retail competition wath@public interest and what legal impediments liartacompetition in light
of the Court of Appeals decision referenced ab®he. ACC staff's report on the results of its invgation is due to be filed
with the ACC on April 1, 2010. At present, only Ibed electric retail competition exists in Arizoaad only with certain entiti
not regulated by the ACC.

Currently, there are two matters pending with tl&CAthat involve a business model where customersglar vendors
for the installation and operation of solar fa@t based on the amount of energy produced. The MG make a
determination whether these entities would be damed “public service corporations” under the AnadConstitution, causing
them to be regulated by the ACC. Use of such prizdoyg customers within our territory would resultsome level of
competition; however, at this time we do not fééd twvould materially impact our financial resukd?S cannot predict when,
and the extent to which, additional electric sexvicoviders will enter or re-enter APS’ serviceitery.

11
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Wholesale

The FERC regulates rates for wholesale power saddransmission services. (See Note 3 for infammatgarding APS’
transmission rates.) During 2009, approximately@ @ APS’ electric operating revenues resulted faroh sales and services.
APS’ wholesale activity primarily consists of mamagfuel and purchased power risks in connectiath wie costs of serving
retail customer energy requirements. APS also,selthe wholesale market, its generation outpat ih not needed for APS’
Native Load and, in doing so, competes with othiitias, power marketers and independent powedpcers. Additionally
subject to specified parameters, APS markets, tsealige trades in electricity and fuels.

Environmental Matters
Climate Change

Legislative and Regulatory Initiativesn the past several years, the United States Cesdras considered bills that would
regulate domestic greenhouse gas emissions. Or2&,2009, the House of Representatives approwedierican Clean
Energy and Security Act of 2009, H.R. 2454. In &ddito establishing clean energy programs, H.B424ould establish a
greenhouse gas emission cap-and-trade systenmgtart2012 applicable to about 85% of all emissonrces in the nation. A
similar bill (Kerry-Boxer Bill, S. 1733) is pendirgefore the Senate. Both of these bills would alle@ certain number of
allowances to local distribution companies (suciARBS) through 2030.

To the extent APS’ emissions exceed the allowaaltesated to it under these proposed bills, APSId/bave an
“allowance gap.” APS would have to purchase enallgiwances from the market to fill these gaps. e below illustrates
the estimated cost impacts to APS in 2012 to aecpliowances to fill its allowance gap, and theeisded retail rate impacts
customers under H.R. 2454 and S. 1733. For purpiigbss illustration, the table provides threewased allowance prices of
$20, $50 and $75 per metric ton.

H.R. 2454 S. 1732
Allowance Cos Annual Cos! Annual Cos
($ per metric ton ($ in millions) Rate Impac ($ in millions) Rate Impac
$ 20 $ 68 2% $ 101 3%
$ 50 $ 170 5% $ 252 8%
$ 75 $ 255 8% $ 379 12%

The actual economic and operational impact ofdhiany similar legislation on the Company depentda oariety of
factors, none of which can be fully known until buegislation passes and the specifics of the tiagybrogram are established.
These factors include the terms of the legislatiith regard to allowed emissions; whether the ptieiemissions allowances
will be allocated to source operators free of apstuctioned; the cost to reduce emissions or Bawances in the marketplac
and the availability of offsets and mitigating faxt to moderate the costs of compliance. At thegiretime, we cannot predict
what form of legislation, if any, will ultimatelygss.
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The EPA recently determined that greenhouse gasseams endanger public health and welfare. Thisrdehation was
made in response to a 2007 United States Supremng 0éng that greenhouse gases fit within thea@ldir Act’s broad
definition of “air pollutant” and, as a result, tB®A has the authority to regulate greenhouse gss®ns of new motor
vehicles under the Clean Air Act. The recent enéamgnt finding could result in the EPA issuing megulatory requirements
under the Clean Air Act for new and modified mgjoeenhouse gas emitting sources, including povaerttpl On September
2009, the EPA announced a proposed rule underldan@ir Act requiring certain new and modifiedtgiaary sources,
including power plants, to use the best availablgrol technology to minimize greenhouse gas ewnissiSeveral groups have
filed lawsuits challenging the EPA’s endangermémdihg. At the present time we cannot predict weethe proposed
stationary source rule will be adopted in its catm@ a revised form, what other rules or regulaimay ultimately result from
the EPA’s finding, whether the parties challendimg endangerment finding will be successful, andtvitmpact the proposed
rule and potential other rules or regulations wil/e on APS’ operations.

In anticipation of potential future regulation aegnhouse gases under the Clean Air Act as dedcaibave, on
September 22, 2009, the EPA issued a mandatormlypese gas reporting rule. The rule applies tactiyeeenhouse gas
emissions from facilities such as APS’ power plai{e expect that our incremental costs to compti wiis rule will be
immaterial since APS already routinely reports £4Dd other greenhouse gas emissions from its plants.

In addition to federal legislative initiatives, sapecific initiatives may also impact our busgié¥hile Arizona has not
yet enacted any state specific legislation reggrdienhouse gas emissions, the California legigl@nacted AB 32 and £
1368 in 2006 to address greenhouse gas emissidrideam Mexico is currently considering proposedd&gion to address
these issues. We are monitoring these and otherlstislative developments to understand the éxéewhich they may affect
our business, including our sales into the impastatks or the ability of our out-of-state powearmplparticipants to continue
their participation in certain coal-fired power pis.

If any emission reduction legislation or regulaare enacted, we will assess our compliance aliges, which may
include replacement of existing equipment, instalfaof additional pollution control equipment, phase of allowances,
retirement or suspension of operations at cer@@tfired facilities, or other actions. Although asstied capital expenditures
operating costs resulting from greenhouse gas @mnissgulations or legislation could be materia, believe that we would be
able to recover the costs of these environmentaptiance initiatives through our rates.

Regional Initiative. In 2007, six western states (Arizona, CalifornigywNMexico, Oregon, Utah and Washington) and
Canadian provinces (British Columbia and Manitodratered into an accord, the Western Climate Inrgat'WCI”), to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions from automobiles andrcertlustries, including utilities. Montana, Quelsal Ontario have also
joined WCI. WCI participants set a goal of reducgrgenhouse gas emissions 15% below 2005 leve92§. After soliciting
public comment, in September 2008 WCI issued tlségdeof a cap-and-trade program for greenhousegassions. Due in
part to the recent activity at the federal levakdissed above, the initiative’s momentum and theement toward detailed
proposed rules has slowed. On February 2, 201@pAa’s Governor issued an executive order statiagArizona will
continue to be a member of WCI to monitor its acdeaments in this area, but it will not implement YWEI regional cap-and-
trade program. As a result, while we continue taitow the progress of WCI, at the present time weadt believe it will have
material impact on our operations.
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Company Response to Climate Change Initiativé§e have undertaken a number of initiatives to asklesmission
concerns, including renewable energy procuremethdevelopment, promotion of programs and ratesgit@hote energy
conservation, renewable energy use and energyeeitig, and implementation of an active technolagywation effort to
evaluate potential emerging new technologies. Alr&aotly has a diverse portfolio of renewable re@ses including wind,
geothermal, solar and biomass and we are focus@ttmasing the percentage of our energy thatddyred by renewable
resources.

On May 18, 2009, we submitted a comprehensive GfirGdange Management Plan to the ACC to comply anthCC
order that directed APS to undertake a climate mament plan, carbon emission reduction study anthdtment and action
plan with public input and ACC review. The Clim&bange Management Plan details scientific, ledgigaind policy issues,
potential physical and financial risks to APS, gie@use gas emission inventory, APS technology iation and greenhouse
gas reduction efforts, and our companies’ stratagproach to climate change management.

In January 2008, APS joined the Climate Registrg &®unding Reporter. Founding Reporters are coiapainat
voluntarily joined the non-profit organization begdMlay 2008 to measure and report greenhouse gasiens in a common,
accurate and transparent manner consistent acrhsstiy sectors and borders. APS will not partigpa the Climate Registry
after 2009 because we will be reporting substdptiae same information under the new EPA reportirlg. Pinnacle West has
also reported, and will continue to report, grearggogas emissions in its annual Corporate Resplitysiteport, which is
available on our websitewiww.pinnaclewest.coin In addition to emissions data, the report provichdormation related to the
Company, its approach to sustainability and itskpltarce and environmental performance, as well@pg of our Climate
Change Management Plan discussed above. The irtiormaan Pinnacle West'website, including the Corporate Responsib
Report, is not incorporated by reference into thjsort.

Climate Change Lawsuitdn February 2008, the Native Village of Kivalinadathe City of Kivalina, Alaska filed a
lawsuit in federal court in the Northern Distridt@alifornia against nine oil companies, fourteenvpr companies (including
Pinnacle West), and a coal company, alleging thatiefendants’ emissions of carbon dioxide conteitba global warming and
constitute a public and private nuisance. The fifesralso allege that the effects of global wargiill require the relocation «
the village and they are seeking an unspecifieduastnaof monetary damages. In June 2008, the defemfilad motions to
dismiss the action, which were granted. The pltigitiled an appeal with the court in November 200& believe the action is
without merit and intend to continue to defend agaihe claims.

Similar nuisance lawsuits are currently pendinthe2nd and 5th Circuits. In the fall of 2009, thé. Courts of Appeals
for each of these Circuits reversed lower courigies and ruled that the plaintiffs in both casesld bring common law
nuisance lawsuits against coal-burning utilitidegedly contributing to global warming. Both caseswell as the Kivalina
case, raise political and legal considerationdutting whether the courts can or should be makiimgate change policy
decisions. We are not a party to either of theselawsuits, but will monitor these developments #dredr potential industry
impacts.
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EPA Environmental Regulation

Regional Haze Rule®ver a decade ago, the EPA announced regionalrbbeseto reduce visibility impairment in
national parks and wilderness areas. The rulesreegtates (or, for sources located on tribal lahd,EPA) to determine what
pollution control technologies constitute the “bagailable retrofit technology” (“BART”) for certaiolder major stationary
sources. The EPA subsequently issued the Clea¥igilility Rule, which provides guidelines on how perform a BART
analysis.

ADEQ is currently undertaking a rulemaking procesaddress the Clean Air Visibility Rule requirerterADEQ’s rules
were due to EPA Region 9 in December 2007, buéspected to be submitted in 2010. As part of themaking process,
ADEQ required APS to perform a BART analysis forold. APS completed a BART analysis for Cholla andmitted its
BART recommendations to ADEQ on February 4, 200& fiecommendations include the installation ofatenpollution
control equipment that APS believes constitutes BABnce APS receives ADEQ’s final determinationtcag/hat constitutes
BART for Cholla, we will have five years to compmdhe installation of the equipment and to achibeeemission limits
established by ADEQ. However, in order to coordinaith the plansg other scheduled activities, APS is currently enpenting
portions of its recommended plan for Cholla on lurtary basis. Costs related to the implementaticthese portions of our
recommended plan are included in our environmenpénditure estimates (see “Management's Discussidrinalysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations —i@hExpenditures” in ltem 7).

EPA Region 9 requested that APS, as the operagjagtdor Four Corners, and SRP, as the operatiagtdgr the Navajo
Plant, perform a BART analysis for Four Corners t@Navajo Plant, respectively. APS and SRP eabiited an analysis
the EPA concluding that certain combustion corgaplipment constitutes BART for these plants. Basethe analyses and
comments received through EPA’s rulemaking prodbesEPA will determine what it believes constituBART for each
plant.

The EPA recently issued an Advanced Notice of Pseddrulemaking (ANPR) seeking public comments oatwh
constitutes BART for each plant. The public comny@riod expired in October, 2009, but the EPA hdsreled the comment
period until March 20, 2010 for the Navajo and Hdpgbes. We expect that the EPA will issue proposed final BART
determinations for Four Corners and the NavajotRta#010. The participant owners of Four Cornerd the Navajo Plant will
have five years after the EPA issues its final oheiteation to achieve compliance with their respeeBART requirements. In
addition, on February 16, 2010, a group of envirental organizations filed a petition with the Depeants of Interior and
Agriculture requesting those agencies to certifthedEPA that visibility impairment in sixteen ratal park and wilderness
areas is reasonably attributable to emissions ffoar Corners. If the agencies certify impairmemeé, EPA is required to
evaluate and, if necessary, determine BART for Keamers.

APS’ recommended plan for Four Corners includes thallasion of combustion control equipment, with atimated co:
to APS, based on preliminary engineering estimaiesAPS’ Four Corners ownership interest, of apipnately $50 million. If
the EPA determines that post-combustion contr@sequired, APS’ total costs could be up to appnately $422 million for
Four Corners. SRP’s recommended plan for the Na®kot includes the installation of combustion conéquipment, with an
estimated cost to APS of approximately $6 milli@séd on APS’ Navajo ownership interest. If the Efefermines that post-
combustion controls are required, APS’ total castgld be up to approximately $93 million for Navajde Four Corners and
Navajo Plant participar’ obligations to comply with the EPA’s final BARTeterminations, coupled with the financial impact
of future climate change legislation, other envinemtal regulations and other business considestamuld jeopardize the
economic viability of these plants or the abilifyimdividual participants to continue their pargiation in these plants.

15




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data Part 2 of 2
Page 1458 of 7002

In order to coordinate with each plant’s other sithed activities, the plants are currently implethmenportions of their
recommended plans described above on a voluntaig. P S’share of the costs related to the implementatichede portior
of the recommended plans are included in our enwiental expenditure estimates (see “Managemenssudsion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems — Capital Expenditures” in Item 7).

Mercury and other Hazardous Air Pollutantdn early 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for th€DCircuit vacated the
Clean Air Mercury Rule (“CAMR")which was adopted by the EPA to regulate mercung&ons from coal fired power plan
As a result, the law in effect prior to the adoptaf the CAMR became the applicable law, and th& Emow required to ado
final maximum achievable control technology emissi¢‘MACT") standards. Under a proposed consentaidhe EPA has
agreed to issue final MACT standards for mercuny atiner hazardous air pollutants by November 2G1he consent decree
finalized in its current form, APS will have thrgears after the EPA issues its final rule to achieempliance, which would
likely require APS to install additional polluti@ontrol equipment.

APS has installed, and continues to install, cerddithe equipment necessary to meet the antidpsitndards. The
estimated costs expected to be incurred over tkietmee years for such equipment are includediimemvironmental
expenditure estimates (see “Management’s Discussidmnalysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations — Capital
Expenditures” in Item 7).

Federal Implementation Plan (“FIP").In September 1999, the EPA proposed FIPs to squaiity standards at certain
power plants, including Four Corners and the NaPdgmt, which it later revised in 2006. The FIP Fa@ur Corners was
finalized in 2009, and we do not believe complianith its required limits will have a material adse impact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows. phaposed FIP for the Navajo Plant is still pendiABS cannot currently pred
the effect of this proposed FIP on its financiasiion, results of operations or cash flows, or thiee the proposed FIP will be
adopted in its current form.

Coal Combustion Wasté&he EPA is expected to issue proposed regulatiomsrging the handling and disposal of coal
combustion byproducts (“CCBs”), such as fly ash batlom ash. APS currently disposes of CCBs inpastds and dry storage
areas at Cholla and Four Corners, and also selisten of its fly ash for beneficial reuse as ast@tuent in concrete
production. The EPA is evaluating options thatude regulation of CCBs under non-hazardous waatelatds, hazardous
waste standards, or a combination of both, andengtial phase out of the disposal of CCBs throdghuse of ash ponds. A
proposed rule is expected during the first quart&2010. We do not know when the EPA will issuénalfrule, including
required compliance dates. While APS continuesitamaate for the regulation of CCBs as non-hazardaste, we cannot
currently predict the outcome of the ERAdctions and whether such actions will have a mah#dverse impact on our financ
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Section 114 RequesOn April 6, 2009, APS received a request from tRARINder Section 114 of the Clean Air Act
seeking detailed information regarding projectarat operations of Four Corners. This request isgiaan enforcement
initiative that the EPA has undertaken under trea@lAir Act. The EPA has taken the position thahynatilities have made
certain physical or operational changes at thaingsl that should have triggered additional regwatequirements under the
New Source Review provisions of the Clean Air £“NSR”). Other electric utilities have received amdponded to similar
Section 114 requests, and several of them havetheesubject of notices of violation and lawsuigstie EPA. APS has
responded to the EPA’s request and is currentiplena predict the timing or content of EPA’s respe, if any, or any
resulting actions.
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Superfund. The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatd Liability Act (“Superfund”) establishes
liability for the cleanup of hazardous substancesml contaminating the soil, water or air. Thos®@ghnerated, transported or
disposed of hazardous substances at a contamuitgeate among those who are PRPs. PRPs may titysand often are
jointly and severally, liable for cle-up. On September 3, 2003, the EPA advised APShkaEPA considers APS to be a PRP
in the Motorola 524 Street Superfund Site, Operable Unit 3 (OU3) ind®tig Arizona. APS has facilities that are withist
Superfund site. APS and Pinnacle West have agrébdtve EPA to perform certain investigative adtesg of the APS facilities
within OUS3. In addition, on September 23, 2009, Adfteed with the EPA and one other PRP to volugtasisist with the
funding and management of the sitle groundwater remedial investigation and fedigitstudy work plan. APS estimates t
its costs related to this investigation and studibe approximately $1.2 million, which is resedvas a liability on its financial
statements. We anticipate incurring additional exiiterres in the future, but because the overakstigation is not complete
and ultimate remediation requirements are notipetized, at the present time we cannot accurastiynate our total
expenditures.

By letter dated April 25, 2008, the EPA informed3\fhat it may be a PRP in the Gila River IndiandReation Superfund
Site in Maricopa County, Arizona. APS, along witinge other electric utility companies, owns a pao€@roperty on which a
transmission pole and a portion of a transmisdimmare located. The property abuts the Gila Rindian Community bounda
and, at one time, may have been part of an airfidldre crop dusting took place. Currently, the E®Anly seeking payment
from APS and four other PRPs for past cleanupedlabsts involving contamination from the crop thgstBased upon the
total amount of cleanup costs reported by the BPifsiletter to APS, we do not expect that the ltdgm of this matter will
have a material adverse impact on APS’ financisitpm, results of operations, or cash flows.

Manufactured Gas Plant Site€ertain properties which APS now owns or which waeyviously owned by it or its
corporate predecessors were at one time sites sites associated with, manufactured gas plarRS i taking action to
voluntarily remediate these sites. APS does notetihese matters to have a material adverse efifeits financial position,
results of operations, cash flows or liquidity.

Navajo Nation Environmental Issues

Four Corners and the Navajo Plant are located ®iNdvajo Reservation and are held under easememtted by the
federal government as well as leases from the Na\afion. See “Energy Sources and Planning — Gépara- Coal Fueled
Generating Facilities” above for additional infortioa regarding these plants.

In July 1995, the Navajo Nation enacted the Nadgtion Air Pollution Prevention and Control ActetiNavajo Nation
Safe Drinking Water Act and the Navajo Nation Redé Act (collectively, the “Navajo Acts"The Navajo Acts purport to gi
the Navajo Nation Environmental Protection Agenatharity to promulgate regulations covering air lifyadrinking water an
pesticide activities, including those activitieattloccur at Four Corners and the Navajo Plant. €woligr 17, 1995, the Four
Corners participants and the Navajo Plant partidfpaach filed a lawsuit in the District Court bétNavajo Nation, Window
Rock District, challenging the applicability of thevajo Acts as to Four Corners and the NavajotPTdre Court has stayed
these proceedings pursuant to a request by thieqaahd the parties are seeking to negotiatetlarsent.
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In April 2000, the Navajo Tribal Council approvegearating permit regulations under the Navajo Na#AamPollution
Prevention and Control Act. APS believes the NaWation exceeded its authority when it adoptedaherating permit
regulations. On July 12, 2000, the Four Cornerigpants and the Navajo Plant participants edeld fa petition with the
Navajo Supreme Court for review of these regulatidrnose proceedings have been stayed, pendirsgtthement negotiatior
mentioned above. APS cannot currently predict titeame of this matter.

On May 18, 2005, APS, Salt River Project, as therating agent for the Navajo Plant, and the NaMgtion executed a
Voluntary Compliance Agreement to resolve theipdigs regarding the Navajo Nation Air Pollution\Rmtion and Control
Act. As a result of this agreement, APS sought,thedCourts granted, dismissal of the pendingdita@n in the Navajo Nation
Supreme Court and the Navajo Nation District Caorthe extent the claims relate to the Clean Ait. Ahe agreement does
address or resolve any dispute relating to othealaActs. APS cannot currently predict the outcarhthis matter.

Water Supply

Assured supplies of water are important for AB&erating plants. At the present time, APS haguate water to meet
needs. However, conflicting claims to limited amuof water in the southwestern United States heselted in numerous
court actions.

Both groundwater and surface water in areas impbtteAPS’ operations have been the subject ofiifeg) claims and
legal proceedings, which will require a number e#ss to resolve. APS is one of a number of pairtiesproceeding, filed
March 13, 1975, before the Eleventh Judicial Dist@ourt in New Mexico to adjudicate rights to eeatn system from which
water for Four Corners is derived. An agreementhred with the Navajo Nation in 1985, however, pdegi that if Four Corne
loses a portion of its rights in the adjudicatitile Navajo Nation will provide, for an agreed upwmst, sufficient water from its
allocation to offset the loss.

A summons served on APS in early 1986 requirediatéer claimants in the Lower Gila River Watershedirizona to
assert any claims to water on or before Januar 287, in an action pending in Maricopa County zAna, Superior Court.
Palo Verde is located within the geographic ardgesii to the summons. APS’ rights and the rightthefother Palo Verde
participants to the use of groundwater and effladalo Verde are potentially at issue in thisoactAs operating agent of P
Verde, APS filed claims that dispute the courtiggdiction over the Palo Verde participants’ growager rights and their
contractual rights to effluent relating to Palo ¥erAlternatively, APS seeks confirmation of suights. Five of APS’ other
power plants are also located within the geograptea subject to the summons. APS’ claims disggeourt’s jurisdiction
over its groundwater rights with respect to theaafs. Alternatively, APS seeks confirmation of lsuights. In November 19¢
the Arizona Supreme Court issued a decision coifigrthat certain groundwater rights may be avadldblthe federal
government and Indian tribes. In addition, in Seyter 2000, the Arizona Supreme Court issued aidacifirming the lower
court’s criteria for resolving groundwater clainhgtigation on both of these issues has continuetthéntrial court. In December
2005, APS and other parties filed a petition wite Arizona Supreme Court requesting interlocutesaw of a
September 2005 trial court order regarding procesifor determining whether groundwater pumpindfiscéing surface water
rights. The Court denied the petition in May 208d the trial court is now proceeding with impletagion of its 2005 order.
No trial date concerning AF water rights claims has been set in this matter.
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APS has also filed claims to water in the Littlel@ado River Watershed in Arizona in an action pegdn the Apache
County, Arizona, Superior Court, which was origindilled on September 5, 1985. APS’ groundwatepuvese utilized at
Cholla is within the geographic area subject toatigidication and, therefore, is potentially atisé the case. APS’ claims
dispute the court’s jurisdiction over its grounderatights. Alternatively, APS seeks confirmationsath rights. A number of
parties are in the process of settlement negatistigith respect to certain claims in this mattehed claims have been
identified as ready for litigation in motions filedth the court. No trial date concerning ARter rights claims has been se
this matter.

Although the above matters remain subject to furévaluation, APS does not expect that the desttlibigation will have
a material adverse impact on its financial posijti@sults of operations, cash flows or liquidity.

The Four Corners region, in which Four Cornereéated, has been experiencing drought conditicatsntiay affect the
water supply for the plants if adequate moistumoisreceived in the watershed that supplies tea.a&kPS is continuing to wao
with area stakeholders to implement agreementdniomnize the effect, if any, on future operationgloé plant. The effect of tt
drought cannot be fully assessed at this time A8 cannot predict the ultimate outcome, if anythefdrought or whether the
drought will adversely affect the amount of poweaitable, or the price thereof, from Four Corners.

BUSINESS OF OTHER SUBSIDIARIES
SunCor

SunCor has been a developer of residential, comatened industrial real estate projects in Arizoltaho, New Mexico
and Utah. Due to the continuing distressed contitia the real estate markets, in 2009 SunCor tmalea program to dispose
of its homebuilding operations, master-planned comities, land parcels, commercial assets and goifses in order to
eliminate its outstanding debt.

At December 31, 2009, SunCor had total assetsmftkil66 million. At December 31, 2008, SunCor twtdl assets of
about $547 million. The reduction in SunCGodssets is primarily due to 2009 real estate imit charges of $266 million a
2009 asset sales. SunCor’s remaining assets cpnisigtrily of land with improvements, commercialildings, golf courses
and other real estate investments. SunCor’s ren@miojects include master-planned communitiescamdmercial and
residential projects. Four of the master-plannedroanities and the commercial and residential ptsjace in Arizona. Other
master-planned communities are located in Idah@y Mexico and Utah.
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SunCor’s operating revenues were approximately $4ili®n in 2009, $75 million in 2008, and $190 fiwh in 2007.
SunCor’s net loss attributable to common sharehsidas approximately $279 million in 2009, whicklirdes $266 million
(pre-tax) in real estate impairment charges. IM2@@ome tax benefits related to SunCor operatiegre recorded by Pinnacle
West in accordance with an intercompany tax shagrgement. SunCarhet loss attributable to common shareholder@8
was $26 million, which included a $53 million (piex) real estate impairment charge. SunCor’s regtrite was approximately
$24 million in 2007. Certain components of SunCoeal estate sales activities, which are includetthé real estate segment,
are required to be reported as discontinued opastn Pinnacle West'Consolidated Statements of Income. (See Notesé
23))

See “Liquidity — Other Subsidiaries — SunCor” iertt 7 for a discussion of SunCor’s long-term deqtidiity and
capital requirements, and the SunCor-related gskof in Item 1A for a discussion of risks facingn&or.

APSES

APSES provides energy-related products and ser{tesd as energy master planning, energy use datisnland facility
audits, cogeneration analysis and installation, @ofect management) with a focus on energy efiicjeand renewable energy
to commercial and industrial retail customers ia western United States. APSES also owns and egedatrict cooling
systems.

APSES had a net loss of $2 million in 2009, a as$ lof $1 million in 2008 and a net loss of $4 imillin 2007. At
December 31, 2009, APSES had total assets of $lidmi

El Dorado

El Dorado owns minority interests in several enamgjgted investments and Arizona community-basedures. El
Dorado’s short-term goal is to prudently realize #alue of its existing investments. On a long-tbasis, Pinnacle West may
use El Dorado, when appropriate, for investmerdasahe strategic to the business of generatingjlalising and marketing
electricity.

El Dorado had a net loss of $7 million in 2009 g4 loss of $10 million in 2008 and a net loss ofhdiion in 2007.
Income taxes related to El Dorado are recordedituyaele West. At December 31, 2009, El Dorado lotal fissets of
$19 million.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Pinnacle West, APS and Pinnacle West's other fiestsubsidiaries are all incorporated in the Stditrizona. Additional
information for each of these companies is provideldw:

Approximate

Number of
Principal Executive Offic Year of Employees a
Address Incorporatioi  December 31, 200
Pinnacle Wes 400 North Fifth Stree 198t 7,20((a)
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
APS 400 North Fifth Stree 192(C 6,80((b)
P.O. Box 53999
Phoenix, AZ 8507-3999
SunCot 80 East Rio Salado Parkw 196¢ 26C
Suite 410
Tempe, AZ 8528:
APSES 60 E. Rio Salado Parkw: 199¢ 70

Suite 1001
Tempe, AZ 8528:

El Dorado 400 North Fifth Stree 198: —
Phoenix, AZ 8500:

(@) Includes 6,800 APS employees and 400 people enghloydinnacle West and its other subsidial

(b) Includes employees at jointly-owned generafacilities (approximately 3,300 employees) forigfthAPS serves as the
generating facility manager. Approximately 2,0005A&@mployees are union employees. The collectivgaiang
agreement with union employees in the fossil gdimrand energy delivery business areas expirdgiit 2011, and the
parties will likely begin negotiating a successgreeement in early 2011. The agreement with uniopleyees serving as
Palo Verde security officers expires in 20

WHERE TO FIND MORE INFORMATION

We use our website@ww.pinnaclewest.coas a channel of distribution for material Companfgiimation. The following
filings are available free of charge on our webagesoon as reasonably practicable after theylect@nically filed with, or
furnished to, the SEC: Annual Reports on FornKl@efinitive proxy statements for our annual shatder meetings, Quarte
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8wKall amendments to those reports. Our board anuirittee charters,
Code of Ethics and other corporate governancerimdtion is also available on the Pinnacle West webBinnacle West will
post any amendments to the Code of Ethics and€Ruvticy and Standards of Business Practices, ayavaivers that are
required to be disclosed by the rules of eithelfSER€ or the New York Stock Exchange, on its web3ike information on
Pinnacle West's website is not incorporated byreafee into this report.

You can request a copy of these documents, exguekhibits, by contacting Pinnacle West at theofelhg address:

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, Office of thergtary, Station 9068, P.O. Box 53999, Phoenixz@wa 85072-3999
(telephone 602-250-3252).
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the factors affecting specific biese operations identified in connection with theadiption of these
operations contained elsewhere in this reportiostt below are risks and uncertainties that caifdct our financial results.
Unless otherwise indicated or the context othenngsgiires, the following risks and uncertaintieplgpo Pinnacle West and its
subsidiaries, including APS.

REGULATORY RISKS

Our financial condition depends upon APS’ abilitptrecover costs in a timely manner from customeérsough regulated
rates and otherwise execute its business strategy.

APS is subject to comprehensive regulation by séfederal, state and local regulatory agenciessigaificantly
influence its business, liquidity, results of ogemas and its ability to fully recover costs fronility customers in a timely
manner. The ACC regulates APS’ retail electricsaed the FERC regulates rates for wholesale psafes and transmission
services. While approved electric rates are intdriddgpermit APS to recover its costs of service eah a reasonable rate of
return, the profitability of APS is affected by ttaes it may charge. Consequently, our finan@abdion and results of
operations are dependent upon the satisfactorjutasoof any APS retail rate proceedings and damgilmatters which may
come before the ACC and the FERC. In connectioh itstrecent rate case settlement agreement, AR®dgot to request its
next general retail rate increase to be effectii@r po July 1, 2012. The ACC must also approve ABSuance of securities a
any transfer of APS property used to provide relgittric service, and must approve or receiver pragification of certain
transactions between us, APS and our respectilliatf$. Decisions made by the ACC and the FERGdcbave a material
adverse impact on our financial condition, resafteperations or cash flows.

APE ability to conduct its business operations andagd fines and penalties depends upon compliancenvigtderal, state or
local statutes and regulations, and obtaining anchmtaining certain regulatory permits, approvals drcertificates.

APS must comply in good faith with all applicabtatstes, regulations, rules, tariffs, and orderagegncies that regulate
APS’ business, including the FERC, the NRC, the EPAdtate and local governmental agencies. These ageregulate mal
aspects of APS’ utility operations, including sgfahd performance, emissions, siting and constgif facilities, customer
service and the rates that APS can charge rethiwiolesale customers. Failure to comply can stljeS to, among other
things, fines and penalties. For example, undeEtiergy Policy Act of 2005, the FERC can imposeafteas (up to one millio
dollars per day per violation) for failure to complith mandatory electric reliability standards. Bnderwent its first
mandatory regularigcheduled triennial audit for compliance with thesedards in early 2010 and expects to receivestigts
by mid-2010. In addition, APS is required to havenerous permits, approvals and certificates froes¢hagencies. APS
believes the necessary permits, approvals andicaet#is have been obtained for its existing openatand that APjusiness i
conducted in accordance with applicable laws imeiterial respects. However, changes in regulatioitise imposition of new
or revised laws or regulations could have an advienpact on our results of operations. We are ahsible to predict the impe
on our business and operating results from penglirigture regulatory activities of any of these rgjes.
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The operation of APS’ nuclear power plant exposétoi substantial regulatory oversight and potentiakignificant liabilities
and capital expenditures.

The NRC has broad authority under federal law tpdse licensing and safety-related requirementth®operation of
nuclear generation facilities. In the event of mmmgpliance, the NRC has the authority to impose rageivil penalties or a
progressively increased inspection regime thatccaliimately result in the shut down of a unitbath, depending upon the
NRC’s assessment of the severity of the situation| cotnpliance is achieved. APS was subject to thightened scrutiny un
March 2009, when it exited the NRC's enhanced iospe regime. The increased costs resulting fromafiees, a heightened
level of scrutiny and implementation of plans thiage compliance with NRC requirements, may adveisifect APS’
financial condition, results of operations and cfisWs.

APS is subject to numerous environmental laws ardjulations, and changes in, or liabilities underxisting or new laws o
regulations may increase APS’ cost of operationsimpact its business plans.

APS is subject to numerous environmental laws agdlations affecting many aspects of its presedtfature operations,
including air emissions, water quality, wastewalischarges, solid waste, hazardous waste, ancdcoodlustion products,
which consist of bottom ash, fly ash and air padlutcontrol wastes. These laws and regulationgesuit in increased capital,
operating, and other costs, particularly with relgarenforcement efforts focused on power planssions obligations. These
laws and regulations generally require APS to obésid comply with a wide variety of environmenteéhses, permits, and
other approvals. If there is a delay or failureldain any required environmental regulatory apgloor if APS fails to obtain,
maintain or comply with any such approval, operatiat affected facilities could be suspended ojestito additional expens:
In addition, failure to comply with applicable emsimental laws and regulations could result inldiability or criminal
penalties. Both public officials and private indivals may seek to enforce applicable environméated and regulations. APS
cannot predict the outcome (financial or operatipobany related litigation that may arise.

Environmental Clean UpAPS has been named as a PRP for a Superfund $iteoenix, Arizona and it could be named a
PRP in the future for other environmental clearaugites identified by a regulatory body. APS carpredict with certainty the
amount and timing of all future expenditures raddte environmental matters because of the diffjcaftestimating clean up
costs. There is also uncertainty in quantifyingiliies under environmental laws that impose jaint several liability on all
potentially responsible parties.

Regional HazeAPS is currently awaiting final rulemaking from tB®A that could impose new requirements on Four
Corners and the Navajo Plant. APS is also awatftira rulemaking from ADEQ that could impose newu@ements on
Cholla. The EPA and ADEQ will require these plaiatinstall pollution control equipment that constits the best available
retrofit technology to lessen the impacts of enoigsion visibility surrounding the plants. Dependipgn the agencies’ final
determinations of what constitutes BART for thelmts, the financial impact of installing the remai pollution control
equipment could jeopardize the economic viabilityhe plants or the ability of individual participts to continue their
participation in these plants.
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Coal AshRecently Congress directed the EPA to propose eeerél regulations governing the disposal of C@Bsch
are generated as a result of burning coal and stomisiamong other things, fly ash and bottom A&t currently disposes of
CCBs in ash ponds and dry storage areas at Fome@oand Cholla, and also sells a portion of jtafih for beneficial reuse as
a constituent in concrete products. If the EPA latgs CCBs as a hazardous solid waste or phas@g@itability to dispose ¢
CCBs through the use of ash ponds, APS could isigmificant costs for CCB disposal and may be umébicontinue its sale
fly ash for beneficial reuse.

New Source ReviewWhe EPA has taken the position that many projdetsréc utilities have performed are major
modifications that trigger NSR requirements untter €lean Air Act. The utilities generally have takbe position that these
projects are routine maintenance and did not r@s@linissions increases, and thus are not sulgj@¢bR. APS received and
responded to a request from the EPA regarding giopnd operations of Four Corners. If the EPA séelkmpose NSR
requirements at Four Corners or any other APS pédfiter through a lawsuit or a Notice of Violatiagignificant capital
investments could be required to install new palutontrol technologies. The EPA could also seek penalties.

Mercury and other Hazardous Air Pollutanihe EPA is required to adopt maximum achievabldrobtechnology
emissions standards for mercury and other hazamop®llutants by November 2011. Depending oncitv@pliance
requirements contained in the final rule, APS megchto make significant capital investments taaithstdditional pollution
control equipment to meet these new standards.

APS cannot be sure that existing environmentallegigums will not be revised or that new regulatisegking to protect ti
environment will not be adopted or become applieablit. Revised or additional regulations thatitem increased compliance
costs or additional operating restrictions, patéidy if those costs incurred by APS are not fultgoverable from APS’
customers, could have a material adverse effeitsdimancial condition, results of operations ash flows.

APS faces physical and operational risks relatecctimate change, and potential financial risks reléimg from climate
change litigation and legislative and regulatoryfefts to limit greenhouse gas emissions.

Concern over climate change, deemed by many tocaeed by rising levels of greenhouse gases iatthesphere, has
led to significant legislative and regulatory effoto limit CO2, which is a major byproduct of the combustionasdil fuel, ani
other greenhouse gas emissions. In addition, lasveave been filed against companies that emingiaese gases, including a
lawsuit filed by the Native Village of Kivalina antle City of Kivalina, Alaska against us and selether utilities seeking
damages related to climate change, which was digmlisut has been appealed.

Physical and Operational RiskBrojections for the Southwest United States fromate change models include an
increase in the number of extreme hot days in tinenser, less precipitation in the form of snow amel ¢arlier runoff of
snowmelt, increased wildfire potential, and theepial for water shortages. Assuming that the prynpéaysical and operation
risks to APS from climate change are increasednpialeor drought or water shortage, and a mildimderate increase in
ambient temperatures, APS believes it is takingafipropriate steps at this time to respond to thieks. Weather extremes
such as drought and high temperature variations@ranon occurrences in the Southwest’s desert angbthese are risk
factors that APS considers in the normal courdeusfness in the engineering and construction aléstric system. Large
increases in ambient temperature due to climategghaould require evaluation of certain materiaksduwithin its system and
represents a greater challenge.
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Financial Risks — Potential Legislation and Regigliat In the past several years, the United States &sadnas
considered bills that would regulate domestic gneeise gas emissions. The House of Representapipesved a bill that
would establish a greenhouse gas emission capradd-system, and the Senate is currently consglerioposed legislation.
There is growing consensus that some form of réigular legislation is likely to occur in the ndature at the federal level
with respect to greenhouse gas emissions.

If the United States Congress, or individual stategroups of states in which APS operates, uléfygiass legislation
regulating the emissions of greenhouse gases.esnjting limitations on generation facility G@nd other greenhouse gas
emissions could result in the creation of subsaéhatiditional capital expenditures and operatinggcm the form of taxes,
emissions allowances or required equipment upgradésould have a material adverse impact on sdliféuel fired generatic
facilities (particularly coal-fired facilities, wbh constitute approximately 28% of APS’ generatiapacity). A cap-and-trade
program may also result in counterparty credit @sll financial liquidity risk since collateral igically exchanged between
counterparties as a means of mitigating risk inethent of a counterparty default.

At the state level, the California legislature eeddegislation to address greenhouse gas emisdibisslegislation and
other state-specific initiatives may affect APSsmess, including sales into the impacted statélseoability of its out-of-state
power plant participants to continue their parttipn in certain coal-fired power plants, includifgur Corners following
expiration of the current lease term in 2016.

In addition, the EPA recently determined that gherse gas emissions endanger public health andneelfhis
determination was made in response to a 2007 USitats Supreme Court ruling that greenhouse diasathin the Clean Ai
Act’s broad definition of “air pollutant” and, asresult, the EPA has the authority to regulate mjnease gas emissions of new
motor vehicles under the Clean Air Act. The reardangerment finding could result in the EPA isguiaw regulatory
requirements under the Clean Air Act, beyond thetsted to motor vehicle emissions, which couldaetpAPS’ power plants
and result in substantial additional costs. Exeessosts to comply with future legislation or regfidns could force APS and
other similarly-situated electric power generatorsetire or suspend operations at certain coatifacilities.

If APS cannot meet or maintain the level of renewalenergy required under Arizor’s increasing Renewable Energy
Standards or the higher commitment levels estabdidhin the settlement agreement, APS may be sultfepenalties or fine:
for non-compliance.

The Renewable Energy Standard and Tariff (“RESuiees APS to supply an increasing percentagenswable energy
each year, so that the amount of retail electrigithes from eligible renewable resources is at &8s of total retail sales by
2010. This amount increases annually to 15% by 202#s recent retail rate case settlement agreemd®S agreed to exceed
these standards and committed to an interim reneveadergy target of 10% by year end 2015. A portibthis total renewable
energy requirement must be met with an increasamgemtage of distributed energy resources (gegesaiall scale renewable
technologies located on customers’ properties).disigibuted energy requirement is 20% of the odV&BES requirement of
2.5% in 2010 and increases to 30% of the applicREIS requirement in 2012 and subsequent yearR ¥ fails to implement
any of its annual ACC-approved renewable resoui@aspit may be subject to penalties imposed byABE, including APS’
inability to recover certain costs. Compliance wifie distributed resource requirement is conting@oin customer
participation. The development of any renewablesgation facilities resulting from the RES is subjecmany other risks,
including risks relating to financing, permittingchnology, fuel supply, and the construction dfisient transmission capacity
to support these facilities.
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Deregulation or restructuring of the electric indiiy may result in increased competition, which cauhave a significan
adverse impact on APS’ business and its resultgpérations.

In 1999, the ACC approved rules for the introduttid retail electric competition in Arizona. Retadmpetition could
have a significant adverse financial impact on ARE to an impairment of assets, a loss of retatioruers, lower profit
margins or increased costs of capital. Althoughesesry limited retail competition existed in AP®'rgice area in 1999 and
2000, there are currently no active retail compegibffering unbundled energy or other utility seeg to APS’ customers. As a
result, APS cannot predict if, when, and the extenthich, additional competitors may re-enter AB&vice territory.

Currently, there are two matters pending with tl&CAthat involve a business model where customersglar vendors
for the installation and operation of solar fa@t based on the amount of energy produced. The MG& make a
determination whether these entities would be damedl “public service corporations” under the AnadConstitution, causing
them to be regulated by the ACC. Use of such prsdoyg customers within APS’ territory would resinltsome level of
competition.

As a result of changes in federal law and regwapoticy, competition in the wholesale electricibarket has greatly
increased due to a greater participation by trawditi electricity suppliers, non-utility generatarsjependent power producers,
and wholesale power marketers and brokers. This@sed competition could affect AR8&d forecasts, plans for power suf
and wholesale energy sales and related revenuesrésilt of the changing regulatory environment e relatively low
barriers to entry, we expect wholesale competitioimcrease, which could adversely affect our bessin

OPERATIONAL RISKS

AP€E results of operations can be adversely affectgdMarious factors impacting demand for electricity.

Weather Conditions/Veather conditions directly influence the demandelectricity and affect the price of energy
commodities. Electric power demand is generallgasenal business. In Arizona, demand for powergdaking the hot
summer months, with market prices also peakinbattttime. As a result, APS’ overall operating réstllctuate substantially
on a seasonal basis. In addition, APS has histtyrisald less power, and consequently earned fessme, when weather
conditions are milder. As a result, unusually milglather could diminish APS’ results of operationd harm its financial
condition.

Higher temperatures may decrease the snowpackhwfight result in lowered soil moisture and an éased threat of
forest fires. Forest fires could threaten APS’ camities and electric transmission lines. Any dameaygsed as a result of
forest fires could negatively impact APS’ result®perations.
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Effects of Energy Conservation Measures and Disteétd EnergyThe ACC has initiated a rulemaking regarding energy
efficiency, which includes a proposed 22% annualgy savings requirement by 2020. If adopted,iilidikely increase
participation by APS customers in energy efficieaagl conservation programs and demand-side managefif@rts, which in
turn would impact the demand for electricity. Thegmsed rules also include a requirement for th€A&review and address
financial disincentives, recovery of fixed costsldne recovery of net lost income/revenue that @eesult from lower sales
due to increased energy efficiency requirements. rékail rate case settlement agreement estabkstergy efficiency goals fc
APS that begin in 2010, subjecting APS to enerdjgiehcy requirements in advance of the proposéesrdescribed above.

APS must also meet certain distributed energy reqents. A portion of APSbtal renewable energy requirement mus
met with an increasing percentage of distributegtg@nresources (generally, small scale renewablentdogies located on
customersproperties). The distributed energy requireme20 of the overall RES requirement of 2.5% in 28&@ increase
to 30% of the applicable RES requirement in 201® sutbsequent years. Customer participation iniligid energy programs
would result in lower demand, since customers wbeldneeting some or all of their own energy neBésluced demand due
these energy efficiency and distributed energyirequents, unless offset through regulatory mectmasjgould have a material
adverse impact on APS’ financial condition, resofteperations or cash flows.

The operation of power generation facilities invay risks that could result in unscheduled power agies or reduced output,
which could materially affect APS’ results of opefans.

The operation of power generation facilities invas\certain risks, including the risk of breakdowrfadlure of equipment,
fuel interruption, and performance below expeceatls of output or efficiency. Unscheduled outageduding extensions of
scheduled outages due to mechanical failures er attmplications, occur from time to time and averdnerent risk of APS’
business. If APSfacilities operate below expectations, especiallird) its peak seasons, it may lose revenue or iadditiona
expenses, including increased purchased power sgpen

The lack of access to sufficient supplies of wateuld have a material adverse impact on APS’ busis@nd results of
operations.

Assured supplies of water are important for APSiagating plants. Water in the southwestern UnitedeS is limited and
various parties have made conflicting claims reigaythe right to access and use such limited suppiyater. Both
groundwater and surface water in areas importaAP{®’ generating plants have been the subjectapfiiies, claims and legal
proceedings. In addition, the Four Corners regiomhich Four Corners is located, has been expengrdrought conditions
that may affect the water supply for the plant@déquate moisture is not received in the waterdedsupplies the area. APS’
inability to access sufficient supplies of wateukbhave a material adverse impact on our busiaedgesults of operations.

The ownership and operation of power generation amansmission facilities on Indian lands could refun uncertainty
related to continued easements and rights-of-wahjck could have a significant impact on our busings

Certain APS power plants, including Four Cornensl portions of the transmission lines that carryw@ofrom these plan
are located on Indian lands pursuant to easemewother rights-of-way that are effective for spaxifperiods. APS is currently
unable to predict the outcome of discussions vhighappropriate Indian tribes with respect to fut@rewal of these easements
and rights-of-way.
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There are inherent risks in the ownership and opéaa of nuclear facilities, such as environmentdigalth, fuel supply,
spent fuel disposal, regulatory and financial risled the risk of terrorist attack

APS has an ownership interest in and operatesebalbof a group of owners, Palo Verde, which &sldrgest nuclear
electric generating facility in the United StatBalo Verde is subject to environmental, healthfamahcial risks such as the
ability to obtain adequate supplies of nuclear;fthe ability to dispose of spent nuclear fuel; éldity to maintain adequate
reserves for decommissioning; potential liabiligsing out of the operation of these facilitidse costs of securing the
facilities against possible terrorist attacks; andcheduled outages due to equipment and otheleptebAPS maintains
nuclear decommissioning trust funds and exterrslrince coverage to minimize its financial exposoigome of these risks;
however, it is possible that damages could exdee@mount of insurance coverage. In addition, ARS be required under
federal law to pay up to $103 million (but not ménan $15 million per year) of liabilities arisiogit of a nuclear incident
occurring not only at Palo Verde, but at any othaelear power plant in the United States. Althoughhave no reason to
anticipate a serious nuclear incident at Palo Vafdm incident did occur, it could materially aadversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition. A major incitlaha nuclear facility anywhere in the world coaltise the NRC to limit or
prohibit the operation or licensing of any domesticlear unit.

The operation of Palo Verde requires licensesrthat to be periodically renewed and/or extendeBeoember 2008,
APS applied for renewed operating licenses fothatte Palo Verde units for 20 years beyond theratipns of the current
licenses. APS does not anticipate any problemsniagethese licenses. However, as a result of pistieletrorist threats and
increased public scrutiny of utilities, the licemgiprocess could result in increased licensingoargdiance costs that are
difficult or impossible to predict.

The use of derivative contracts in the normal coaref our business could result in financial loss#sat negatively impact ou
results of operations.

APS’ operations include managing market risks eelab commodity prices. APS is exposed to the impamarket
fluctuations in the price and transportation castslectricity, natural gas and coal to the exteat unhedged positions exist.
We have established procedures to manage risksiatsbwith these market fluctuations by utilizwveyious commodity
derivatives, including exchange-traded futures @ptibns and over-the-counter forwards, options, @maps. As part of our
overall risk management program, we enter intovagisie transactions to hedge purchases and satdsatficity and fuels. The
changes in market value of such contracts havghadurrelation to price changes in the hedged codityoro the extent that
commodity markets are illiquid, we may not be ablexecute our risk management strategies, whialdaesult in greater
unhedged positions than we would prefer at a giwea and financial losses that negatively impactresults of operations.

Congress is considering legislation to impose ia&ins on the use of over-the-counter derivativiesluding energy
derivatives, which could subject APS to governmiarggulation relating to these hedging transactidinsuch legislation
becomes law, APS could potentially face higherstshedge its risks, fewer potential counterpsusi@l active in the newly-
regulated marketplace and increased liquidity neguénts.
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We are exposed to losses in the event of nonpedsfocanor nonpayment by counterparties. We use avéslagement
process to assess and monitor the financial expasfuall counterparties. Despite the fact thatrttagority of trading
counterparties are rated as investment grade bratimg) agencies, there is still a possibility thae or more of these compan
could default, which could result in a material axbe impact on our earnings for a given period.

Changes in technology may adversely affect APS’ihass.

Research and development activities are ongoifmgpoove alternative technologies to produce powetuding fuel cells
micro turbines, clean coal and coal gasificatidmtpvoltaic (solar) cells and improvements in ttiadial technologies and
equipment, such as more efficient gas turbines.afides in these, or other technologies could retheceost of power
production, making APS’ generating facilities lessnpetitive. In addition, advances in technologyldaeduce the demand for
power supply, which could adversely affect APS’ibass.

APS is pursuing and implementing advanced techm@doincluding smart grid transmission and distiitru systems and
advanced meters for use in customers’ homes ariddsses. Many of the products and processes mgiiltim these and other
alternative technologies have not yet been widesdwr tested, and their use on large-scale systema$ as advanced and
established as APS’ existing technologies and egeift. Uncertainties and unknowns related to thadeother advancements
in technology and equipment could adversely af#fd®$’ business if national standards develop thataembrace the current
technologies or if the technologies and equipmaihtd perform as expected.

FINANCIAL RISKS

Financial market disruptions may increase our finaimg costs or limit our access to the credit marketvhich may adversely
affect our liquidity and our ability to implementur financial strategy.

We rely on access to short-term money markets giotegm capital markets and the bank markets as #isignt source o
liquidity and for capital requirements not satidftgy the cash flow from our operations. We belithat we will maintain
sufficient access to these financial markets. Hawesertain market disruptions may increase our aolsorrowing or adverse
affect our ability to access one or more finanoiakrkets. Such disruptions could include:

e continuation of the current economic downtt

»  terrorist attacks or threatened attacks on oulitiasi or those of unrelated energy compan

« mergers among financial institutions and the ovédrdlth of the banking industry;

e the overall health of the utility industr

In addition, the credit commitments of our lendansler our bank facilities may not be satisfieddarariety of reasons,
including unexpected periods of financial distrafecting our lenders, which could materially achedy affect the adequacy of
our liquidity sources.
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Changes in economic conditions could result in éighterest rates, which would increase our integgpense on our debt
and reduce funds available to us for our curresutfl Additionally, an increase in our leverage d@dversely affect us by:

* increasing the cost of future debt financi
e reducing our credit rating
* increasing our vulnerability to adverse economid exaustry conditions; an

. requiring us to dedicate a substantial portionwfcash flow from operations to payments on alotdwhich would
reduce funds available to us for operations, fubhuginess opportunities or other purpo:

A reduction in our credit ratings could materiallgnd adversely affect our business, financial condit and results of
operations.

Our current ratings are set forth in “Pinnacle We@shsolidated — Liquidity and Capital Resources +edit Ratings” in
Item 7. We cannot be sure that any of our curratmgs will remain in effect for any given periofitime or that a rating will
not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by a ratingiagy if, in its judgment, circumstances in the fatso warrant. Any
downgrade or withdrawal could adversely affectrtiarket price of Pinnacle West's and APS’ securitiesit our access to
capital and increase our borrowing costs, whichldoiminish our financial results. We would be reggd to pay a higher
interest rate in future financings, and our potdrgool of investors and funding sources could e@se. In addition, borrowing
costs under certain of our existing credit facktdepend on our credit ratings. A downgrade waldd require us to provide
substantial additional support in the form of Iettef credit or cash or other collateral to varicosinterparties. If our shotérm
ratings were to be lowered, it could completelyniiate any possible future access to the commeajar market. We note
that the ratings from rating agencies are not reaentdations to buy, sell or hold our securities @wad each rating should be
evaluated independently of any other rating.

Market performance, changing interest rates and etheconomic factors could decrease the value of banefit plan asset
and nuclear decommissioning trust funds and incr@asur related obligations, resulting in significargdditional funding
that could negatively impact our business.

Disruptions in the capital markets may adverselgdfthe values of fixed income and equity investtadneld in our
employee benefit plan trusts and nuclear decomanisgj trusts. We have significant obligations iagé areas and hold
substantial assets in these trusts. A declineamthrket value of these trusts may increase owirfignmequirements.
Additionally, the pension plan and other postratieait benefit liabilities are impacted by the disuowate, which is the interest
rate used to discount future pension and othergiogiment benefit obligations. Declining interesties impact the discount
rate, and may result in increases in pension amel @ostretirement benefit costs, cash contribstioggulatory assets, and
charges to other comprehensive income. Changesniographics, including increased numbers of retrgmor changes in li
expectancy assumptions, may also increase therfgmdguirements of the obligations related to thesgpon and other
postretirement benefit plans. A significant portafrthe pension costs and other postretirementfhiests and all of the
nuclear decommissioning costs are recovered inagglelectricity prices. Our inability to fully cever these costs in a timely
manner or any increased funding obligations coelglatively impact our financial condition, resulfperations or cash flows.
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We may be required to adopt International FinanciRleporting Standards (“IFRS”). The ultimate adoptiof such
standards could negatively impact our businessafiicial condition or results of operation:

IFRS is a comprehensive series of accounting stdegaublished by the International Accounting Stadd Board that is
being considered by the SEC to replace accountingiples generally accepted in the United Stafesmoerica (“GAAP”) for
use in preparation of financial statements. If$C requires mandatory adoption of IFRS, we mag tag ability to use
regulatory accounting treatment, and would foll&®MRE rather than GAAP for the preparation of ouafficial statements
beginning in 2014. The implementation and adoptibthese new standards and the inability to usela¢gry accounting could
negatively impact our business, financial condittomesults of operations.

Our cash flow largely depends on the performanceoof subsidiaries.

We conduct our operations primarily through sulagids. Substantially all of our consolidated asaetsheld by such
subsidiaries. Accordingly, our cash flow is departdgoon the earnings and cash flows of these sialogid and their
distributions to us. The subsidiaries are sepanatiedistinct legal entities and have no obligatmmake distributions to us.

The debt agreements of some of our subsidiariesresdsict their ability to pay dividends, make distitions or otherwise
transfer funds to us. An ACC financing order regsiAPS to maintain a common equity ratio of attld@%6 and does not allc
APS to pay common dividends if the payment woultloe its common equity below that threshold. Thamon equity ratio,
as defined in the ACC order, is common equity didgidby the sum of common equity and long-term dabhyding current
maturities of long-term debt.

Our ability to meet our debt service obligationsutd be adversely affected because our debt se@srisire structurally
subordinated to the debt securities and other ohatigns of our subsidiaries

Because we are structured as a holding compangxiating and future debt and other liabilitiesoof subsidiaries will be
effectively senior in right of payment to our delecurities. None of the indentures under which weuo subsidiaries may iss
debt securities limits our ability or the ability @ur subsidiaries to incur additional debt in fheure. The assets and cash flows
of our subsidiaries will be available, in the firsstance, to service their own debt and othemgalilbns. Our ability to have the
benefit of their assets and cash flows, particylarthe case of any insolvency or financial disgraffecting our subsidiaries,
would arise only through our equity ownership iet#s in our subsidiaries and only after their ¢aoedihave been satisfied.

The market price of our common stock may be vokatil

The market price of our common stock could be sulifesignificant fluctuations in response to fastsuch as the
following, some of which are beyond our control:

e variations in our quarterly operating resu

e operating results that vary from the expectatidn®@nagement, securities analysts and inves
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e changes in expectations as to our future findpeigormance, including financial estimates byws#es analysts and
investors;

« developments generally affecting industries inclitwe operate, particularly the energy distribntamd energy
generation industrie:

e announcements by us or our competitors of sicgunifi contracts, acquisitions, joint marketing fietaghips, joint
ventures or capital commitmen

e announcements by third parties of significant ckaon proceedings against |
- favorable or adverse regulatory or legislative dewments;

e our dividend policy

«  future sales by the Company of equity or ec-linked securities; an

« general domestic and international economic caorut

In addition, the stock market in general has exgpeed volatility that has often been unrelatedhéodperating
performance of a particular company. These broattehfuctuations may adversely affect the marketepof our common
stock.

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporatioand bylaws and of Arizona law make it difficult fehareholders to chang
the composition of our board and may discourageaaker attempts.

These provisions, which could preclude our shaddrslfrom receiving a change of control premiurolude the
following:

. restrictions on our ability to engage in a widage of “business combination” transactions witHiaterested
shareholder”denerally, any person who owns 10% or more of astanding voting power or any of our affiliates
associates) or any affiliate or associate of agr@sted shareholder, unless specific conditionsate

e anti-greenmail provisions of Arizona law and bytaws that prohibit us from purchasing shareswfumting stock
from beneficial owners of more than 5% of our cansing shares unless specified conditions ardfisat:

< the ability of the Board of Directors to increabe size of the Board and fill vacancies on the Bpathether resultin
from such increase, or from death, resignatiorgudisification or otherwise; ar

< the ability of our Board of Directors to issuaddmbnal shares of common stock and shares of peafestock and to
determine the price and, with respect to prefestedk, the other terms, including preferences aohg rights, of
those shares without shareholder apprc

While these provisions have the effect of encoumggiersons seeking to acquire control of us to tiggowith our Board
of Directors, they could enable the Board to hinatefrustrate a transaction that some, or a mgjooit our shareholders might
believe to be in their best interests and, in tlage, may prevent or discourage attempts to rermadeeplace incumbent
directors.
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SunCor's business and financial results would be adveysaffected if it is unable to extend, modify or rew its credit
facilities or repay its debt through sales of itsmaining assets

At December 31, 2009, SunCor had borrowings of @gprately $57 million under its principal loan fhiyi (the "Secured
Revolver"). The Secured Revolver matured on Jan8@r2010 and SunCor and the agent bank for ther&gd&evolver are
discussing an extension of the maturity date matime for SunCor to continue discussions conceriine potential sale of
additional properties. In addition to the Secured®ver, at December 31, 2009, SunCor had apprdgisn®43 million of
outstanding debt under other credit facilities i$ilion of which has matured since December 31,280d remains
outstanding).

If SunCor is unable to obtain an extension or reaiefithe Secured Revolver or its other matured,dmtif it is unable to
comply with the mandatory repayment and other [giows of any new or modified credit agreements,CRurcould be require
to immediately repay its outstanding indebtednesteuall of its credit facilities as a result obss-default provisions. Such an
immediate repayment obligation would have a matadaerse impact on SunCor's business and finapogition and impair i
ongoing viability.

SunCor intends to apply the proceeds of its plarassét sales to the repayment of its outstandibty Het is unable to
locate suitable buyers and close certain asset salebtain sufficient proceeds from these salesdimtain or pay off its
existing debt, it may be unable to satisfy obligasi under its credit facilities, resulting in tinenhediate repayment obligations
described above.

SunCor cannot predict the outcome of negotiationis it& lenders or its ability to sell assets faffigient proceeds to
repay its outstanding debt. SunCor's ability toegate sufficient cash from operations while it pslender negotiations and
further asset sales is uncertain.

The Company has not guaranteed any SunCor indedgedAs a result, we do not believe that SunCaasility to meet
its financial covenants under the Secured Revalvés other outstanding credit facilities wouldvbaa material adverse impact
on Pinnacle West's cash flows or liquidity. Anyuiéisg SunCor losses would be reflected in Pinn&¢&st's consolidated
financial statements. If SunCor were required tkgmotection under federal bankruptcy laws, Pitesidest could be exposed
to the uncertainties and complexities inherenpiment companies in such proceedings.

During 2008 and 2009 the real estate market weaksigaificantly resulting in lower land and homéesaand depressed
real estate prices. As a result, in 2008 and 2QOECSr recognized certain impairment charges. Sun@or be required to
record additional impairments.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Neither Pinnacle West nor APS has received writanments regarding its periodic or current repids the SEC staff
that were issued 180 days or more preceding thekitsl 2009 fiscal year and that remain unresolved
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APS’ portfolio of owned and leased generating faed is provided in the table below:
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Principal Primary Owned
No. of % Fuels Dispatch Capacity
Name Units Owned (a) Used Type (MW)
Nuclear:

Palo Verde (b 3 29.1% Uranium Base Loac 1,14¢
Total Nuclear 1,14¢
Steam:

Four Corners 1, 2, 3 Coal Base Loac 56C

Four Corners 4, 5 (« 2 15% Coal Base Loac 22t

Cholla 3 Coal Base Loac 647

Navajo (d) 3 14% Coal Base Loac 31t

Ocaotillo 2 Gas Peaking 22C

Saguarc 2 Gas/QOil Peaking 21C
Total Steam 2,17
Combined Cycle:

Redhawk 2 Gas Load Following 984

West Phoeni: 5 Gas Load Following 887
Total Combined Cycle 1,871
Combustion Turbine:

Ocaotillo 2 Gas Peaking 11C

Saguaro 1, 2 Gas/QOil Peaking 11C

Saguaro 1 Gas Peaking 79

Douglas 1 (0]] Peaking 16

Sundanct 10 Gas Peaking 42C

West Phoeni: 2 Gas Peaking 11C

Yucca 1, 2, : 3 Gas/Oil Peaking 93

Yucca 4 1 (0] Peaking 54

Yucca s, € 2 Gas Peaking 96
Total Combustion Turbine 1,08¢
Solar:

Multiple state-wide solar facilities Solar Peaking 6
Total Solar 6
Total Capacity 6,28¢

(@ 100% unless otherwise note

(b) See “Business of Arizona Public Service Conypa- Generation — Nuclear” in Item 1 for detailgaeding leased
interests in Palo Verde. The other owners areF8aéir Project (17.5%), Southern California EdistB.8%), El Paso
Electric (15.8%), Public Service Company of New ldex(10.2%), Southern California Public Power Auityo(5.9%),
and Los Angeles Department of Water & Power (5.7
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(c) The other owners are Salt River Project (10%), ieudrvice Company of New Mexico (13%), Southertif@ania Edisor
(48%), Tucson Electric Power Company (1%) and BloF&lectric (1%)

(d) The other owners are Salt River Project (21.7%),ada Power Company (11.3%), the United States Gavent (24.3%
Tucson Electric Power Company (7.5%) and Los ArgjBlepartment of Water & Power (21.2¢

See “Business of Arizona Public Service Company rvitBnmental Matters” in Iltem 1 with respect to tead having a
possible impact on the operation of certain of AB&ierating facilities.

See “Business of Arizona Public Service Companyitem 1 for a map detailing the location of APS’jargpower plants
and principal transmission lines.

Transmission and Distribution Facilities

Current Facilities. APS’ transmission facilities consist of approxteig 5,946 pole miles of overhead lines and
approximately 49 miles of underground lines, 5,8&s of which are located in Arizona. APS’ distrilon facilities consist of
approximately 11,362 miles of overhead lines argt@gmately 17,308 miles of underground primaryleahll of which are
located in Arizona. APS shares ownership of sonmisdfansmission facilities with other compani€ke following table show
APS’ jointly-owned interests in those transmission facilitie®rded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at Dexre3ibh 2009

Percent Owned
(Weighted Average

North Valley Systen 65.%
Palo Verde— Estrella 500KV Syster 55.5%
Round Valley Syster 50.(%
ANPP 500KV Systen 35.8%
Navajo Southern Syste 31.4%
Four Corners Switchyarc 27.5%
Palo Verde— Yuma 500KV Systen 23.%%
Phoenix— Mead Systen 17.1%

Expansion.Each year APS prepares and files with the ACC ay&am transmission plan. In APS’ 2010 plan, APSquts
it will invest approximately $520 million in newamnsmission over the next ten years, which incl@¥&smiles of new lines.
This investment will increase the import capabiiitto metropolitan Phoenix by approximately 26% arilllincrease the impo
capability into the Yuma area by approximately 3&#e significant project presently under constarcts the Morgan -
Pinnacle Peak project, which consists of 26 mifeés00kV and 230kV lines. APS completed two majdosation projects in
2009. The Dugas substation (500/69kV) will provéystem voltage support and capacity for the Verdiey area and the
Sugarloaf substation (500/69kV) will provide systeaitage support and capacity for the Show Low &ndwflake areas, and
will also support renewable energy developmenhat area.

APS continues to work with regulators to identifgrtsmission projects necessary to support renevesigigy facilities.

Two such projects, which are included in APS’ 2@Hhsmission plan, are the Delany to Palo Verde dind the North Gila to
Palo Verde line, both of which are intended to supthe transmission of renewable energy to PhoaniCalifornia.
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Plant and Transmission Line Leases and Easements tmdian Lands

The Navajo Plant and Four Corners are located rch i@ld under leases from the Navajo Nation aral @hsler easements
from the federal government. The easement and feasee Navajo Plant expire in 2019 and the easgmed lease for Four
Corners expire in 2016. Each of the leases contairgption to extend for an additional 25-year gafrom the end of the
existing lease term, for a rental amount tied ®dhginal rent payment adjusted based on an inflex.easements do not
contain an express renewal option and it is unaideat conditions to renewal or extension of theegants may be imposed.
The ultimate cost of renewal of the Navajo Plart Bour Corners leases and easements is uncertarcoBl contracted for u
in these plants is also located on Indian reseymati

Certain portions of the transmission lines thatycapwer from several of our power plants are ledain Indian lands
pursuant to easements or other rights-of-way tteaeHective for specified periods. Some of thegbts-of-way have expired
and our renewal applications have not yet beerdagien by the appropriate Indian tribes. Othertdgxpire at various times
in the future and renewal action by the applicatibe will be required at that time. The majoritfyaur transmission lines
residing on Indian lands are on the Navajo Nafidre Four Corners and Navajo Plant leases providejddNation consent to
certain of the rights-of-way for transmission limetated to those plants at a specified rentalfaatéhe original term of the
rights-of-way and for a like payment in any renewatiod. In addition, a 1985 amendment to the leasevides a formula for
calculating payments for certain new and renevgdits-of-way. However, some of our rights-of-way ao¢ covered by the
leases, or are granted by other Indian tribese¢emt negotiations with other utilities or comparfier renewal of similar rights-
of-way, certain of the affected Indian tribes hasguired payments substantially in excess of ansoiinat we have paid in the
past for such rights-of-way or that are typical $amilar permits across non-Indian lands; howewer are unaware of the
underlying agreements and/or specific circumstasae®unding these renewals. The ultimate costéwal of the rights-of-
way for our transmission lines is uncertain. Weramnitoring these rights-of-way and easement isandshave initiated
discussions with the Navajo Nation regarding théfe.are currently unable to predict the outcomenisf matter.

Real Estate Segment Properties

See “Business of Other Subsidiaries — SunCor taml1 for information regarding SunCor’s remainprgperties.
Substantially all of SunCor’s debt is collateratizgy interests in its real property.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See “Business of Arizona Public Service Company ryitenmental Matters” in Item 1 with regard to pamglor
threatened litigation and other disputes.

See Note 3 for the resolution of APS’ general fetdé case and other matters before the ACC.

See Note 11 with regard to a lawsuit brought by AR®ehalf of itself and the other Palo Verde owragainst the DOE,
for information relating to the FERC proceedingsCatlifornia and Pacific Northwest energy marketiessand for information
regarding the bankruptcy proceeding involving @iredlord for our corporate headquarters building.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A
VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF PINNACLE WEST

Pinnacle West's executive officers are electedass bften than annually and may be removed by tizedBof Directors at any
time. The executive officers, their ages at Felyrd&; 2010, current positions and principal occiguest for the past five years

are as follows:

Name

Donald E. Brandt

Donald G. Robinsc

James R. Hatfiel

Denise R. Danner

Randall K. Edingto

Age
55

56

52

54

56

Position

Period

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive OfficEPmnacle West;
Chairman of the Board of AF

Chief Executive Officer of AP:

President and Chief Operating Officer of Pinnaclest

President of AP!

Executive Vice President of Pinnacle West; Chi@falficial Officer of AP<

Chief Financial Officer of Pinnacle We

Executive Vice President of AF

President and Chief Operating Officer of A
Senior Vice President, Planning and Administrabdb®PS
Vice President, Planning of AF

Treasurer of Pinnacle West and A
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficEPmnacle West and AF
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficEO&GE Energy Corg

Vice President, Controller and Chief AccountingiGdf of Pinnacle West;
Chief Accounting Officer of AP!

Vice President and Controller of Al

Senior Vice President, Controller and Chief AccaumOfficer of Allied
Waste Industries, In

Vice President, Controller and Chief AccountingiGdf of Phelps Dodge
Corporatior

Executive Vice President and Chief Nuclear OfficEBAPS

Senior Vice President and Chief Nuclear Office ABfS

Site Vice President and Chief Nuclear Officer ob@er Generating Statio
with Entergy Corporatio
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2010-Present
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2003-2007
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Name

David P. Falck

Mark A. Schiavon

Lori S. Sundber

Steven M. Wheele

5

56

54

46

61
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Position

Period

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and &agref
Pinnacle West and AF

Senior Vice President — Law of Public Service Eptise Group
Inc.

Partnei— Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LL

Senior Vice President, Fossil Operations of /
Senior Vice President of Exelon Generation andiéeas of Exelol
Power

Vice President, Human Resources of #

Vice President, Employee Relations, Safety, Comp&a&
Embrace of American Express Compi

Vice President, HR Relationship Leader, Global @Goafe Travel
Division of American Express Compa

Executive Vice President, Customer Service and Régn of APS
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS’ COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Pinnacle West's common stock is publicly held amttaded on the New York Stock Exchange. At theelaf business on
February 15, 2010, Pinnacle West's common stockheds of record by approximately 28,216 sharehalder

QUARTERLY STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS PAID PER SHARETOCK SYMBOL: PNW

Dividends
2009 High Low Close Per Shart
1st Quarte $ 35.1:% $ 22.3% $ 26.5¢€ $ 0.52¢
2nd Quarte 30.3( 25.2¢ 30.1¢ 0.52¢
3rd Quarte! 33.71 28.8i 32.82 0.52¢
4th Quartel 37.9¢ 31.0¢ 36.5¢ 0.52¢

Dividends
2008 High Low Close Per Shart
1st Quarte $ 42.9: $ 34.0¢ $ 35.0¢ $ 0.52¢
2nd Quarte 37.3¢ 30.2¢ 30.7i 0.52¢
3rd Quartel 37.8¢ 30.3¢ 34.41 0.52¢
4th Quartel 35.8: 26.27 32.1: 0.52¢

APS’ common stock is wholly-owned by Pinnacle Waasd is not listed for trading on any stock exchargea result,
there is no established public trading market fBiISAcommon stock.

The chart below sets forth the dividends paid o5 A¢®@mmon stock for each of the four quarters f@@2and 2008.

Common Stock Dividends
(Dollars in Thousands)

Quarter 2009 2008
1 stQuarter $42,50C $42,50C
2 ndQuarter 42,500 42,500
3 rdQuarter 42,500 42,500
4t Quarter 42,500 42,500

The sole holder of APS’ common stock, Pinnacle Wss#ntitled to dividends when and as declaredblagally
available funds. As of December 31, 2009, APS didhave any outstanding preferred stock.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table contains information about purchases of our common stock during the fourthtguaf 2009.

Total Total Number of
Number of Shares Purchase: Maximum Number of
Shares  Average as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet B¢
Purchasec Price Paid Announced Plans Purchased Under the

Period (1) per Share  or Programs Plans or Programs
October 1- October 31, 200 — — — —
November 1- November 30, 200 35% 33.4¢ — —

December - December 31, 200 — — — _

Total 35 % 33.4¢ — —

(1) Represents shares of common stock withhel8ibgacle West to satisfy tax withholding obligasaupon the vesting of
restricted stock
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OPERATING RESULTS
Operating revenue
Regulated electricity segme
Real estate segme
Marketing and tradin
Other revenue
Total operating revenut

Income from continuing operations
(@)

Discontinued operations — net of
income taxes (b

Net Income

Less: Net loss attributable to
noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to comm:
shareholder

COMMON STOCK DATA
Book value per sha— yearend
Earnings per weighted-average
common share outstandir
Continuing operations attributable
to common shareholders —
basic
Net income attributable to comm
shareholder— basic
Continuing operations attributable
to common shareholders —
diluted
Net income attributable to comm
shareholder— diluted
Dividends declared per she
Weighted-average common shares
outstandin¢— basic
Weighted-average common shares
outstandin¢— diluted

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total asset
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Long-term debt less current
maturities
Deferred credits and oth
Total liabilities
Total equity
Total liabilities and equit

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION — CONSOLIDATED
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(dollars in thousands, except per share amoi

$ 3,149,18 $ 3,127,38 $ 2,918,16:¢ $ 2,635,03 $ 2,237,14
103,15: 74,54¢ 189,72t 306,93t 280,20«
— 66,89’ 138,24° 136,74 179,89!
44,76: 41,72¢ 48,01¢ 36,17: 61,22:
$ 3,297,100 $ 3,310,55 $ 3,294,15. $ 3,114,89. $ 2,758,46!
$ 67,23 $ 231300 $ 30043¢ $ 30897. $ 223,93
(13,676 10,82: 6,707 18,28: (47,666
53,55t 242,12! 307,14 327,25! 176,26°
(14,77Y — — — —
$ 68,33 $ 242,12! $§ 307,147 $ 327,25! $ 176,26
$ 326¢ % 34.1¢ % 3518 % 3448 % 34.5¢
$ 081 $ 23C  $ 30 $ 311  $ 2.32
$ 0.6¢ $ 24C  $ 306 $ 32¢  $ 1.8¢
$ 081 $ 22¢  § 29¢ $ 3.0¢ $ 2.32
$ 067 $ 24C  $ 308 $ 321  $ 1.8Z
$ 21C % 21C % 21C % 2028 % 1.92¢
101,160,65 100,690,83 100,255,80 99,417,00 96,483,78
101,263,79 100,964,92 100,834,87 100,010,10 96,589,94
$ 11,808,15 $ 11,620,09 $ 11,162,20 $ 10,817,90 $10,588,48
$ 1,083,160 $ 1,505,920 $ 1,344,44' $ 923,33t $ 1,608,86:
3,370,52 3,031,60: 3,127,12! 3,232,63 2,608,45!
4,008,79. 3,589,19. 3,159,02. 3,215,81 2,946,20:
8,462,47! 8,126,72! 7,630,59! 7,371,78 7,163,52.
3,345,68! 3,493,36! 3,531,61. 3,446,11 3,424,96
$ 11,808,15 $ 11,620,09 $ 11,162,20 $ 10,817,90 $10,588,48

(@) Includes a $157 million after tax real estatpairment charge in 2009 (see Note 23). Alsoudek regulatory
disallowance of $8 million after tax in 2007 and!$8illion after tax in 200%

(b) Amounts primarily related to SunCor’s reab#s impairment charges (see Note 23), Silverhaswke? Station
(“Silverhawl”) and APSES discontinued operations (see Note
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(dollars in thousand:

OPERATING RESULTS

Electric operating revenuu $ 3,149,501 $ 3,133,49 $ 2,936,27 $ 2,658,51. $ 2,270,79.
Fuel and purchased power cc 1,178,62 1,289,88: 1,151,39: 969,76 688,98
Other operating expens 1,533,03 1,408,21. 1,358,89! 1,290,80- 1,200,19i

Operating incom: 437,84 435,40( 425,99! 397,94. 381,61
Other income (deduction 13,89: 83€ 20,87( 27,58¢ (69,177
Interest deduction— net of AFUDC 200,51: 173,89: 162,92! 155,79¢ 141,96:

Net income $ 251,22 $ 262,34 $ 283,94 $ 269,73 $ 170,47

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total asset $11,503,40 $10,963,57 $10,321,40 $ 9,948,76 $ 9,143,64.

Liabilities and equity

Common stock equit $ 3,445,35! $ 3,339,15! $ 3,351,44. $ 3,207,47. $ 2,985,22!
Long-term debt less current
maturities 3,180,40! 2,850,24. 2,876,88. 2,877,50; 2,479,70:
Total capitalizatior 6,625,76. 6,189,39: 6,228,32. 6,084,97! 5,464,92
Current liabilities 874,84 1,267,76! 1,055,701 806,55¢ 1,021,08.
Deferred credits and oth 4,002,79 3,506,41 3,037,337 3,057,23! 2,657,633
Total liabilities and equit $11,503,40 $10,963,57 $10,321,40 $ 9,948,76 $ 9,143,64.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith Pinnacle West's Consolidated Financialt&tzents and APS’
Financial Statements and the related Notes thataapp Item 8 of this report. For information o throad factors that may
cause our actual future results to differ from thes currently seek or anticipate, see “ForwardKirng Statementsat the fron
of this report and “Risk Factors” in Item 1A.

OVERVIEW

Pinnacle West owns all of the outstanding commonksof APS. APS is a verticallytegrated electric utility that provid
retail and wholesale electric service to most efdtate of Arizona, with the major exceptions dfttone-half of the Phoenix
metropolitan area, the Tucson metropolitan areaMwithve County in northwestern Arizona. APS accstiot substantially a
of our revenues and earnings, and is expectedrtince to do so.

Areas of Business Focus
Operational Performance and Reliability.

Nuclear. Palo Verde experienced strong performance duri®@9 2@ith its three units achieving a combined yeaa-
capacity factor of 89%. With a focus on safely effitiently generating electricity for the long-ter APS applied for twenty-
year renewals of its operating licenses for eadh@three Palo Verde units, and is making prejmarsito secure necess:
resources to operate the plant during this extepeeidd of time. Palo Verde’s 2009 accomplishmaids included the
installation of a new reactor vessel head, upgradeibment and processes designed to substangdilice the time required
defuel and refuel the reactor during refueling get and the successful implementation of a conemistie improvement plan,
which allowed Palo Verde Unit 3 to exit the NRCithanced inspection regime (“Column 4”) earlier thaticipated, in March
of 2009.

Coal and Related Environmental Matters.APS’ coal plants, Four Corners and Cholla, achievetdcapacity factors of
88% and 77%, respectively, in 2009. APS is focumedeveloping legislation and increased regulatimmcerning greenhouse
gas emissions, and the potential impacts on ourfleed. Recent concern over climate change andratmission-related issues
could have a significant impact on our capital exgigires and operating costs in the form of taresissions allowances or
required equipment upgrades for these plants. AR®sely monitoring our long range capital managetplans,
understanding that the resulting legislation amii@ion could impact the economic viability of @én plants, as well as the
willingness or ability of power plant participaritsfund any such equipment upgrades. See “Busife&gzona Public Service
Company — Environmental Matters — Climate Changeftém 1 and climate change-related risks descrifbétgm 1A for
additional climate change developments and risisigpAPS.
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Transmission and Delivery.In the area of transmission and delivery to itd@uers, APS also ranked favorably during
2009, with top quartile performance for averaga@uer outage time. During 2009, APS undertook sehvagnificant
transmission projects, including the Morgan to Ritia Peak transmission line scheduled for complettche end of 2010, and
the completion of two switchyards, one of whichlwilpport capacity for renewable energy projec8SAs working closely
with regulators to identify and plan for transmissneeds resulting from the current focus on refavanergy. APS is also
working to establish and expand smart grid techogytbroughout its service territory designed toviule a variety of benefits
both to APS and its customers. This technology khallow customers to better monitor their energg and needs, minimize
system outage durations and the number of custaim&trexperience outages, and facilitate cost gavim APS through
improved reliability and the automation of certdistribution functions, including remote meter risggdand remote connects
and disconnects.

Renewable EnergyAPS is committed to increasing the amount of engrgguced by renewable energy resources, which
was a significant focus in APS’ recent rate caseseent described below. APS and the other patti¢ise rate case worked
with the ACC Commissioners to address a wide rarfigeistomer needs and to secure a clean, sustaieablgy future for
Arizona. The ACC adopted a renewable energy stangkareral years ago, recognizing the importanceradwable energy to
our state. In the rate case settlement agreem@38,areed to exceed these standards, committinf@baof APS’ resources
will come from renewable energy by the year 201%¥a#fiety of other provisions in the settlement agnent reinforce APS’
dedication to renewable energy through initiatiteebuild a photovoltaic solar plant, install solaoftop panels on schools and
seek an Arizona wind generation project.

During 2009, APS filed its annual RES implementajtan that included a request for ACC approvahef‘AZ Sun
Program.” As proposed in its plan, APS would inveasiestimated $500 million to develop at least W08 of photovoltaic
solar plants. It currently anticipates that thilasgcapacity would be placed into service in th&@2@ 2014 timeframe. The
ultimate timing depends on the outcome of currentfature procurement processes. See Note 3 fotiauil details regarding
this program, including the estimated timing of &@C’s determination on the matter and the relatest recovery. APS also
issued two requests for proposal (“RFP”) for rengl@aiesources in early 2010. These RFP’s are p#énegrocess for
procuring the additional renewable resources requinder the rate case settlement. The first RFd® idility-scale solar
photovoltaic projects between 15 and 50 MW. Assg#i€C approval of the AZ Sun Program as proposes ,RFP will servi
as the first procurement step for implementing gragram. The second RFP is for wind projects betwks and 100 MW to t
located within Arizona.

Rate MattersAPS needs timely recovery through rates of itstedpnd operating expenditures to maintain adequate
financial health. APS’ retail rates are regulatgdh®e ACC and its wholesale electric rates (pritgdar transmission) are
regulated by the FERC. At the end of 2009, the Ap@roved a settlement agreement entered into byahidSwenty-one of
the twenty-three other parties to APS’ generalilredidée case, with modifications that did not matty affect the overall
economic terms of the agreement. The rate cadersetit should strengthen APS’ financial conditigratiowing for rate
stability and a greater level of cost recovery ggtdrn on investment. It also authorizes and reguiquity infusions into APS
of at least $700 million prior to the end of 20T#e settlement demonstrates cooperation among thBHCC staff, the
Residential Utility Consumer Office (RUCO) and atlirgervenors to the rate case, and establishesieefrate case filing plan
that allows APS the opportunity to help shape Aregs energy future outside of continual rate caSes. Note 3 for a detailed
discussion of the settlement agreement terms dadhiation on APS’ FERC rates.

APS has several recovery mechanisms in place thaide more timely recovery to APS of its fuel ar@hsmission costs,
and costs associated with the promotion and imphatien of its energy efficiency, demand-side mamagnt and renewable
energy efforts and customer programs. These mesiharare described more fully in Note 3.
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Financial Strength and Flexibility.Despite the volatility and disruption of the creaiarkets, Pinnacle West and APS
currently have ample borrowing capacity under thespective credit facilities and have been abkctmess these facilities,
ensuring adequate liquidity for each company. hyegebruary 2010, APS entered into a $500 milliewolving credit facility,
replacing its $377 million revolving credit facilithat would have otherwise terminated in Decen28di0. At that same time,
Pinnacle West entered into a $200 million revolvingdit facility that replaces its $283 million iy that also would have
otherwise terminated in December 2010.

SunCor Real Estate Operationss a result of the continuing distressed conditionihe real estate markets, during 2009
SunCor undertook a program to dispose of its hoiitéihg operations, master-planned communities, lpaitels, commercial
assets and golf courses in order to eliminateutstanding debt. This resulted in impairment cha@feapproximately $266
million, or $161 million after income taxes, for@M See “Pinnacle West Consolidated — Liquidity &agpital Resources —
Other Subsidiaries — SunCor” below for a discusgib8unCor’s outstanding debt and related mati¢ose 23 for a further
discussion of impairment charges and the SunCateglrisk factor in Item 1A.

SubsidiariesOur other first tier subsidiaries, EI Dorado andS&S, are not expected to have any material impaotio
financial results, or to require any material antswf capital, over the next three years.

Key Financial Drivers

In addition to the continuing impact of the mattdescribed above, many factors influence our firmesults and our
future financial outlook, including those listedd&. We closely monitor these factors to plan feg Company’s current needs,
and to adjust our expectations, financial budgetsfarecasts appropriately.

Electric Operating Revenueg$:or the years 2007 through 2009, retail electneneies comprised approximately 94% of
our total electric operating revenues. Our eledperating revenues are affected by customer groxatiiations in weather fro
period to period, customer mix, average usage g&omer and the impacts of energy efficiency pnogreelectricity rates and
tariffs, the recovery of PSA deferrals and the apen of other recovery mechanisms. Off-systemssafeexcess generation
output, purchased power and natural gas are indludeegulated electricity segment revenues aratedlfuel and purchased
power because they are credited to APS’ retailotusts through the PSA. These revenue transactieraff@cted by the
availability of excess economic generation or o#frezrgy resources and wholesale market conditioalsiding competition,
demand and prices.

Customer and Sales GrowtiCustomer growth in APS’ service territory for theay ended December 31, 2009 was 0.6%
compared with the prior year. For the three ye@/2hrough 2009, APS’ customer growth average®olp8r year. We
currently expect customer growth to average ab&upgr year for 2010 through 2012 due to economidlitions both
nationally and in Arizona. Retail sales in kilowhtiurs, adjusted to exclude the effects of weathdations, for 2009 declined
2.4% compared to the prior year, reflecting therprmmnomic conditions in 2009 and the effects afenergy efficiency
programs. For the three years 2007 through 2009’ ABtual retail electricity sales in kilowatt-heuadjusted to exclude the
effects of weather variations, grew at an averagpial rate of 0.3%. We currently estimate thatl tiattail electricity sales in
kilowatt-hours will remain flat on average per ydaring 2010 through 2012, including the effect®\&fS’ energy efficiency
programs, but excluding the effects of weatheratamns. A continuation of the economic downturnthe failure of the Arizon
economy to rebound in the near future, could furiimpact these estimates. The customer and sadeglgreferred to in this
paragraph apply to Native Load customers.
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Actual sales growth, excluding weather-relatedatarns, may differ from our projections as a resfilhumerous factors,
such as economic conditions, customer growth, upatierns, impacts of energy efficiency progrant m@sponses to retail
price changes. Our experience indicates that @nas¢e range of variation in our kilowatt-hour sagojection attributable to
such economic factors under normal business condittan result in increases or decreases in anatiaicome of up to
$10 million.

Weather.In forecasting the retail sales growth numbers jgiexy above, we assume normal weather patterns lbased
historical data. Historical extreme weather vaoiasi have resulted in annual variations in net ireamexcess of $20 million.
However, our experience indicates that the more#ypariations from normal weather can resultricreases or decreases in
annual net income of up to $10 million.

Fuel and Purchased Power Costsuel and purchased power costs included on ourdlidased Statements of Income are
impacted by our electricity sales volumes, existingtracts for purchased power and generation duglpower plant
performance, transmission availability or constigiprevailing market prices, new generating pléeisag placed in service in
our market areas, our hedging program for managiiet) costs and PSA deferrals and the amortizdtiereof.

Operations and Maintenance Expense®perations and maintenance expenses are impacigmawih, power plant
operations, maintenance of utility plant (includiggneration, transmission, and distribution faei}, inflation, outages, higher-
trending pension and other postretirement benefits; renewable energy and demand side manageetatiedrexpenses (whi
are offset by the same amount of regulated eléytsegment operating revenues) and other fachoiiss recent retail rate case
settlement, APS committed to operational expendeatens from 2010 through 2014 and received amirmvdefer certain
pension and other postretirement benefit cost asae to be incurred in 2011 and 2012.

Depreciation and Amortization ExpenseBepreciation and amortization expenses are impdntatbt additions to utility
plant and other property (such as new generatiansinission, and distribution facilities), and ajp@sin depreciation and
amortization rates. The “Capital Expenditures” mecbelow provides information regarding the plashaelditions to our
facilities. We have also applied to the NRC forawed operating licenses for each of the Palo Vanils. If the NRC grants
the extension, we estimate that our annual pre¢gxetiation expense will decrease by approximéidfy million at the later of
the license extension date or January 1, 2012.

Property TaxesTaxes other than income taxes consist primarilgroperty taxes, which are affected by the value of
property in-service and under construction, assessrmatios, and tax rates. The average propertyataxfor APS, which
currently owns the majority of our property, waS%.of the assessed value for 2009, 7.8% of thesssdevalue for 2008 and
8.3% of the assessed value for 2007. We expeceprotaxes to increase as we add new utility plenctuding new generatiol
transmission and distribution facilities descrilidow under “Capital Additions”) and as we impraxg existing facilities.
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Income Taxes Income taxes are affected by the amount of prdstenk income, income tax rates, and certain nonbiaxa
items, such as the allowance for equity funds wggthg construction. In addition, income taxes rabp be affected by the
settlement of issues with taxing authorities.

Interest Expenselnterest expense is affected by the amount of detstanding and the interest rates on that debtNex¢
6.) The primary factors affecting borrowing levate expected to be our capital expenditures, leng-tlebt maturities, and
internally generated cash flow. Capitalized intecdfsets a portion of interest expense while @gitojects are under
construction. We stop accruing capitalized inteoesa project when it is placed in commercial opera

PINNACLE WEST CONSOLIDATED — RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Our results of operations, provided below, are agmn our two reportable business segments:

*  our regulated electricity segment, which consi$tisaditional regulated retail and wholesale #leity businesses
(primarily electric service to Native Load custosjeand related activities and includes electrigigyeration,
transmission and distribution; a

« our real estate segment, which consists of SU's real estate development and investment activ
Operating Results — 2009 Compared with 2008

Our consolidated net income attributable to comstwareholders for 2009 was $68 million, compareth wét income of
$242 million for the prior year. The decrease ihineome was primarily due to 2009 real estate impent charges recorded
SunCor, the Company’s real estate subsidiary.

In addition, regulated electricity segment net meodecreased approximately $13 million from thempyear primarily du
to lower retail sales resulting from lower usage@estomer; higher interest charges, net of capé@dlfinancing costs; higher
depreciation and amortization expenses; and thenabsof income tax benefits related to prior yeacsrded in 2008. These
negative factors were partially offset by increasmeenues due to the interim rate increase effecd@anuary 1, 2009 and
transmission rate increases.
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The following table presents net income attribugatblcommon shareholders by business segment cedhpdth the prior

year:
Increase
(Decrease
in Net
Income
Year Endec Attributable
December 31 to Commor
2009 2008 Shareholde!
(dollars in millions)
Regulated Electricity Segment:
Operating revenues less fuel and purchased povpenesg: $ 1,97( $ 1,84: $ 127
Operations and maintenar (862) (79¢) (66)
Depreciation and amortizatic (400 (389) ()]
Taxes other than income tax (123) (12%) 2
Other income (expenses), | (@)} (20) 19
Interest charges, net of capitalized financings (299) a7y (28)
Income taxe: (142) (92 (50
Regulated electricity segment net inco 243 25€ (13
Real Estate Segment:
Real estate impairment charges (26€) (53 (213
Other real estate operatic (10 10 (20
Income taxe: 10¢ 17 92
Real estate segment net |i (167) (26) (141)
All Other (b) (8) 12 (20)
Net Income Attributable to Common Shareholders $ 68 $ 24z $ (174

(&) See Note 23 for additional information on real &stapairment charge

(b) Includes activities related to marketing aradling, APSES and El Dorado. Income for 2008 idekiincome from
discontinued operations of $8 million related te thsolution of certain tax issues associated thigtsale of Silverhawk in
2005. None of these segments is a reportable sdg

Regulated electricity segment

This section includes a discussion of major vagario income and expense amounts for the reguédgetticity segment.
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Operating revenues less fuel and purchased powerganses

Regulated electricity segment operating revenussfleel and purchased power expenses were $13d@miiigher for the
year ended 2009 compared with the prior year. dHieviing table describes the major components isf¢hange

Increase (Decreas

Purchase:
Operating power and fue
revenues expense: Net change

(dollars in millions)
Higher renewable energy and demand-side managesaesitarges

(substantially offset in operations and maintenanqeense $ 63 $ $ 63
Interim retail rate increases effective Januarg009 61 61
Transmission rate increas 21 21

Increased mark-to-market valuations of fuel anctpased power
contracts related to favorable changes in markeegr net of related

PSA deferrals (18) 18
Effects of weather on retail sales, primarily doédotter weather in the
third quarter of 200! 12 3 9

Lower retail sales primarily due to lower usage @etomer, including
the effects of the Comparg/energy efficiency programs, but excluc

the effects of weathe (58) (26) (32
Higher fuel and purchased power costs includingeffects of lower off-
system sales, net of related PSA defel (30) (29 (11)

Lower retail revenues related to recovery of PSfedals, offset by lowe
amortization of the same amount recorded as fupanchased power

expense (see Note (36) (36) —
Miscellaneous items, n (12) 9 2
Total $ 22 $ (105 % 127

Operations and maintenanceéDperations and maintenance expenses increaseditié@ for the year ended 2009
compared with the prior year primarily because of:

* Anincrease of $62 million related to renewabiergy and demand-side management programs, wreabffaet in
operating revenue

e Anincrease of $29 million in generation costgliding more planned maintenance, partially offsetower costs at
Palo Verde due to cost efficiency measures;

* Adecrease of $25 million associated with costrapmeasures and other factors, including theradesef employee
severance costs in 20(
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Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expenses increasédrilion for the year ended 2009
compared with the prior year primarily becausenaféases in utility plant in service. The incredsadility plant in service are
the result of various improvements to APS’ exisfiogsil and nuclear generating plants and distidouand transmission
infrastructure additions and upgrades.

Interest charges, net of capitalized financing costinterest charges, net of capitalized financing £ostreased
$28 million for the year ended 2009 compared whith prior year primarily because of higher debt heds, partially offset by
the effects of lower interest rates (see discus®taied to APS’ debt issuances in “Pinnacle WestsBlidated —Liquidity and
Capital Resources” below). Interest charges, neapitalized financing costs are comprised of dwutated electricity segment
portions of the line items interest expense, clipéd interest and allowance for equity funds udedng construction from the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

Other income (expenses), néther income (expenses), net improved $19 millamtfie year ended 2009 compared with
the prior year primarily because of improved inwgsht gains. Other income (expenses), net is coagpr§the regulated
electricity segment portions of the line items otineome and other expense from the Consolidatatt®ents of Income.

Income taxeslncome taxes were $50 million higher for the yezdterl 2009 compared with the prior year primarily
because of $30 million of income tax benefits o prior years recorded in 2008 and higher grieteome. See Note 4.

Real estate segment

During the first quarter of 2009, we decided tamesture SunCor through the sale of substantidllgfats assets. The real
estate segment net loss attributable to commorebbkters was $141 million higher for the year en2@dd compared with the
prior year primarily because of:

* Anincrease in real estate impairment charges d8$gillion (see Note 23 for details of the impaimheharges)

* A decrease of $20 million in income from othealrestate operations primarily due to 2008 incoroenfa
commercial property sale; a

* Anincrease in income tax benefits of $92 milliomgarily because of a higher net lo
All Other

All other earnings were $20 million lower for thear ended 2009 compared with the prior year prignagcause of
planned reductions of marketing and trading adgigiand the absence of the 2008 resolution ofioeda issues associated w
the sale of Silverhawk in 2005.
Operating Results — 2008 Compared with 2007

Our consolidated net income attributable to commstuareholders for 2008 was $242 million, comparet wet income of

$307 million for the prior year. The decrease ihineome was primarily due to lower results recartg SunCor, the
Company’s real estate subsidiary.
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In addition, regulated electricity segment net meodecreased approximately $18 million from themyear primarily du
to higher operations and maintenance expensesy l@tal sales due to the effects of weather; higlegpreciation and
amortization expenses; and higher interest chargasf capitalized financing costs. These negdtieeors were partially offs
by increased revenues due to the rate increasstieéfdluly 1, 2007; transmission rate increaseg;imcome tax benefits related
to prior years recorded in 2008.

The following table presents net income attribugatblcommon shareholders by business segment cedhpdth the prior

year:
Increase
(Decrease
in Net
Income
Year Endec Attributable
December 31 to Commor
2008 2007 Shareholdel
(dollars in millions)
Regulated Electricity Segment:
Operating revenues less fuel and purchased povpense: $ 1,84: $ 1,771 $ 66
Operations and maintenar (79¢) (709) (87)
Depreciation and amortizatic (389) (365) (18)
Taxes other than income tax (22%) (22¢) 3
Other income (expenses), | (20 (6) (14)
Interest charges, net of capitalized financings a7y (15€) (15)
Income taxe: (92 (139) 47
Regulated electricity segment net inco 25€ 274 (18)
Real Estate Segment:
Real estate impairment charges (53 — (53
Other real estate operatic 10 37 27
Income taxe: 17 (14) 31
Real estate segment net income (I (26) 23 (49)
All Other (b) 12 10 2
Net Income Attributable to Common Shareholders $ 24z $ 307 $ (65)

(&) See Note 23 for additional information on real &stapairment charge

(b) Includes activities related to marketing aradling, APSES and EIl Dorado. Income for 2008 idekiincome from
discontinued operations of $8 million related te thsolution of certain tax issues associated thirsale of Silverhawk in
2005. None of these segments is a reportable seg
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Regulated electricity segment
This section includes a discussion of major vagario income and expense amounts for the reguédgetticity segment.
Operating revenues less fuel and purchased powergenses

Regulated electricity segment operating revenussflgel and purchased power expenses were $66mriigher for the
year ended 2008 compared with the prior year. ©Hieviing table describes the major components isf¢hange

Increase (Decreas

Purchase:
Operating power and fue
revenue: expense: Net change
(dollars in millions)
Retail rate increases effective July 1, 2 $ 15¢ $ $ 15€
Deferred fuel and purchased power costs relatbéibteer base fuel rai 141 (147)
Transmission rate increas 31 31
Higher retail sales primarily due to customer gtowartially offset by
lower usage per customer, but excluding the effefctgeathel 29 8 21
Higher renewable energy surcharges (substantiéigtin operations ar
maintenance expens 14 14
Regulatory disallowance in 20( (14) 14
Revenues related to lo-term traditional wholesale contras 26 14 12
Higher fuel and purchased power costs includingeffects of lower off-
system sales, net of related PSA defel 38 41 ©)]
Lower mark-to-market valuations of fuel and pur@thpower contracts
related to changes in market prices, net of relB®A deferral: 14 (14
Effects of weather on retail sal (63) (20 (43
Lower retail revenues related to recovery of PSfedals, offset by lowe
amortization of the same amount recorded as fupanchased powe
expense (see Note 47) 47 —
Miscellaneous items, n 25 6 19
Total $ 20¢ $ 143 $ 66
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Operations and maintenanceOperations and maintenance expenses increasedifi®n for the year ended 2008
compared with the prior year primarily because of:

* Anincrease of $30 million related to customer gE@nand other costs including distribution systefrability;
* Anincrease of $18 million in generation costsjuding more planned maintenan

* Anincrease of $14 million related to renewablergpgrograms, which are offset in operating reven

* Anincrease of $9 million associated with emplogegerance costs in 2008; ¢

* Anincrease of $16 million due to other miscellameactors

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expenses increasgdriilion for the year ended 2008
compared with the prior year primarily becausenaféases in utility plant in service. The incredsadility plant in service are
the result of various improvements to APS’ exisfiogsil and nuclear generating plants and distidouand transmission
infrastructure additions and upgrades.

Interest charges, net of capitalized financing costinterest charges, net of capitalized financing costreased
$15 million for the year ended 2008 compared withprior year primarily because of higher ratesemain APS pollution
control bonds and higher short-term debt balarioéstest charges, net of capitalized financingxaate comprised of the
regulated electricity segment portions of the lieens interest expense, capitalized interest dogvahce for equity funds used
during construction from the Consolidated Statemefitncome.

Other income (expenses), néther income (expenses), net reduced earnings bgditional $14 million for the year
ended 2008 compared with the prior year primardgduse of losses on investments and lower intieremtine. Other income
(expenses), net is comprised of the regulatedratiégtsegment portions of the line items otherdne and other expense from
the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Income taxesincome taxes were $47 million lower for the yeadexh2008 compared with the prior year primarilydies
of $17 million of increased income tax benefitsated to prior years resolved in 2008 and 2007 emeil pre-tax income. See
Note 4.

Real estate segment

The real estate segment net income attributalderromon shareholders was $49 million lower for tharyended 2008
compared with the prior year primarily because of:

* Real estate impairment charges of $53 million ($ete 23) without comparable charges in the priary

*  Adecrease of $27 million from other real estgterations primarily due to decreased land paaleksn the 2008
period as a result of the weak real estate maaket

* Anincrease in income tax benefits of $31 milliamarily because of the net loss recorded in 2

54




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data Part 2 of 2
Page 1498 of 7002

PINNACLE WEST CONSOLIDATED —
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows

The following table presents net cash providedusged for) operating, investing and financing atiggi for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (dollarsliions):

2009 2008 2007
Net cash flow provided by operating activit $ 1,031 $ 814 $ 65€
Net cash flow used for investing activiti (705) (81%) (873
Net cash flow provided by (used for) financing witiés (28€) 51 18¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ 40 $ 50 $ (30)

2009 Compared with 2008

The increase of approximately $217 million in naste provided by operating activities is primarilyedo a reduction of
collateral and margin cash required as a resuhahges in commaodity prices and a 2009 incomestamd (see Note 4).

The decrease of approximately $110 million in reettcused for investing activities is primarily dodower levels of
capital expenditures net of contributions (seeetald discussion below), partially offset by lowesil estate sales primarily due
to a commercial property sale in 2008.

The increase of approximately $337 million in nasit used for financing activities is primarily doeepayments of short-
term borrowings, partially offset by APS’ issuarafeb500 million of unsecured senior notes (see Njte

2008 Compared with 2007

The increase of approximately $156 million in naslt provided by operating activities is primarilyedo lower current
income taxes; lower real estate investments regultom the weak real estate market; and increested revenue related to
higher Base Fuel Rates, partially offset by inceelasollateral and margin cash provided as a resghanges in commodity
prices.

The decrease of approximately $58 million in neshcased for investing activities is primarily doestreal estate
commercial property sale in 2008; lower levels abital expenditures (see table and discussion Bekvd increased
contributions in aid of construction related torhas in 2008 in APS’ line extension policy (seed\®y, partially offset by
lower cash proceeds from the net sales and pursludsevestment securities.
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The decrease of approximately $134 million in reettcprovided by financing activities is primarilyedto the use of the
proceeds from the sale of a real estate commemalerty to pay down long-term debt in 2008, péytiaffset by higher levels
of short-term debt borrowings.

Liquidity
Capital Expenditure Requirements

The following table summarizes the actual capixplemditures for 2007, 2008 and 2009 and estimadpdat expenditures
for the next three years:

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
(dollars in millions)

Actual Estimatec
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

APS
Generation (a $ 35¢ $ 31C $ 241 $ 40¢ $ 42t $ 54¢
Distribution 372 34C 24¢ 304 344 36¢&
Transmissior 13¢€ 163 19:¢ 15€ 16¢ 20¢€
Other (b) 37 43 52 84 71 48
Subtotal 90C 85¢ 73z 954 1,00¢ 1,167
Other (c) 164 48 13 — — —
Total $ 1,064 $ 904 $ 74E $ 954 $ 1,00¢ $ 1,161

(&) Generation includes nuclear fuel expendituresppiroximately $60 million to $80 million per year2010, 2011 and
2012.

(b) Primarily information systems and facilities prdg:

(c) Consists primarily of capital expenditures fosidential, land development and retail and offiadding construction
reflected in“Real estate investme” and“Capital expenditur¢’ on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Fli

Generation capital expenditures are comprised bws improvements to APS’ existing fossil and reaclplants.
Examples of the types of projects included in taikegory are additions, upgrades and capital repleats of various power
plant equipment such as turbines, boilers and enmental equipment. Environmental expendituresiferyears 2010, 2011
and 2012 are approximately $20 million, $80 millemmd $220 million, respectively. We are also mamiigthe status of certa
environmental matters, which, depending on thealfoutcome, could require modification to our @omimental expenditures.
(See “Business of Arizona Public Service Compan§nvironmental Matters — EPA Environmental Regulatie Regional
Haze Rules and Mercury and other Hazardous AiuRoits” in Iltem 1.)
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Distribution and transmission capital expendituaes comprised of infrastructure additions and uggsacapital
replacements, new customer construction and relafetnation systems and facility costs. Examplethe types of projects
included in the forecast include power lines, sati@hs, line extensions to new residential and cencral developments and
upgrades to customer information systems.

Capital expenditures will be funded with internadignerated cash and/or external financings, whiaf imclude issuances
of long-term debt and Pinnacle West common stock.

Pinnacle West (Parent Company)

Our primary cash needs are for dividends to ourettidders and principal and interest payments orong-term debt.
The level of our common stock dividends and futlikédend growth will be dependent on a number ofdes including, but ni
limited to, payout ratio trends, free cash flow dindncial market conditions.

On January 20, 2010, the Pinnacle West Board afdiors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.525gbare of common
stock, payable on March 1, 2010, to shareholdersaifrd on February 1, 2010.

Our primary sources of cash are dividends from Ad&&rnal debt and equity financings. For the y@af7 through 200!
total distributions from APS were $510 million atedal distributions received from SunCor were $8ion. For 2009, cash
distributions from APS were $170 million and tharere no distributions from SunCor.

An existing ACC order requires APS to maintain enomon equity ratio of at least 40%. As defined i@ &CC order, the
common equity ratio is common equity divided by sien of common equity and lorigkm debt, including current maturities
long-term debt. At December 31, 2009, APS’ commguity ratio, as defined, was 50%. Its total comrequity was
approximately $3.4 billion, and total capitalizatiovas approximately $6.8 billion. APS would be phbited from paying
dividends if the payment would reduce its commomitydoelow approximately $2.7 billion, assuming ARS&al capitalization
remains the same.

The credit and liquidity markets experienced siigaifit stress beginning the third quarter of 2008c&the fourth quarter
of 2008, Pinnacle West and APS have not accessetbthmercial paper market due to negative markaditions. They have
both been able to access existing credit faciligasuring adequate liquidity.

At December 31, 2009, Pinnacle West had a $283omitkvolving credit facility that was scheduledt¢éominate in
December 2010. The revolver was available to sugherissuance of up to $250 million in commerpiaper or to be used as
bank borrowings, including issuances of lettersreflit of up to $94 million. The parent company $449 million of
borrowings outstanding under its revolving credltility and no letters of credit at December 31020

On February 12, 2010, Pinnacle West refinance®2&83 million revolving credit facility that wouldalwe matured in
December 2010, and decreased the size of thetyaail5200 million. The new revolving credit fatyliterminates in
February 2013. Pinnacle West may increase the anaddine facility up to a maximum of $300 milliopan the satisfaction of
certain conditions and with the consent of the é&sadPinnacle West will use the facility for gede@porate purposes,
repayment of long-term debt, and for the issuaridetters of credit. Interest rates are based ondrile West's senior
unsecured debt credit ratings. In addition, becafisiee downsized revolving credit facility, the i@pany is in the process of
reducing the size of its commercial paper prograi$200 million from $250 million.
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Pinnacle West expects to recognize approximatedp$iillion of cash tax benefits related to SunGatrategic asset sa
(see Note 23), which will not be realized until tieset sale transactions are completed. Approxiyndi®5 million of these
benefits were recorded in 2009 as reductions tonmectax expense related to the current impairniesatges. The additional $
million of tax benefits were recorded as reductitmgicome tax expense related to the SunCor immeait charge recorded in
the fourth quarter of 2008.

The $91 million income tax receivable (current &my-term) on the Consolidated Balance Sheets septe the
anticipated cash refunds related to an APS taxuattgy method change approved by the United Statemal Revenue
Service (“IRS")in the third quarter of 2009 and the expected &nefits related to the SunCor strategic asset Ha¢slosed il
20009.

Pinnacle West sponsors a qualified defined benafitaccount balance pension plan and a non-qubsitipplemental
excess benefit retirement plan for the employeddmiacle West and our subsidiaries. IRS regulatiequire us to contribute
minimum amount to the qualified plan. We contribatdeast the minimum amount required under IRSIegpns, but no more
than the maximum tax-deductible amount. The minimmaquired funding takes into consideration the gatiplan assets and
our pension obligation. The assets in the plarcaneprised of fixed-income, equity and short-termestments. Future year
contribution amounts are dependent on plan assftrpgance and plan actuarial assumptions. We madmntribution to our
pension plan in 2009. We currently estimate thatpamnsion contributions could average around $1llilomfor several years,
assuming the discount rate remains at approximatehgnt levels. In January 2010, we made a voiyrgantribution of
approximately $50 million to our pension plan anel expect to make an additional voluntary contritrutf $50 million later il
2010. The contribution to our other postretiremeeriefit plans in 2010 is estimated to be approxetgal5 million. APS and
other subsidiaries fund their share of the contiiims. APS’ share is approximately 97% of both plan

See Note 3 for information regarding the recergireaite case settlement, which includes ACC auzhtion and requires
equity infusions into APS of at least $700 millioyp December 31, 2014. Pinnacle West intends t@issuity to provide most
of the funds for the equity infusions into APS. Begjuity issuances may occur at any time in thgehrough 2014, in
Pinnacle West'’s discretion.

In May 2007, Pinnacle West infused approximatel§ &#llion of equity into APS, consisting of proceeaf stock
issuances in 2006 under Pinnacle West's InvestdisAtage Plan (direct stock purchase and divideimbestment plan) and
employee stock plans.

APS

APS’ capital requirements consist primarily of ¢apexpenditures and mandatory redemptions of kengrdebt. APS
pays for its capital requirements with cash frorerations and, to the extent necessary, equityimfigssrom Pinnacle West and
external financings. See “Pinnacle West (Parent iaom)” above for a discussion of the common equtip that APS must
maintain in order to pay dividends to Pinnacle West

On February 26, 2009, APS issued $500 million @686 unsecured senior notes that mature on Mar2@19. Net
proceeds from the sale of the notes were usegtyrehort-term borrowings under two committed rewg lines of credit
incurred to fund capital expenditures and for gaheorporate purposes.
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During 2009, APS refinanced approximately $343iomllof its $656 million pollution control bonds. Asresult of these
refinancings, the terms of which are describedetaitlin Note 6, APS no longer has any outstandiglgt securities in auction
rate mode.

On September 11, 2008, APS purchased all of theoajpately $27 million of the Coconino Pollution tool Revenue
Bonds, Series 1996A and Series 1999 due DecemBéarail April 2034 and held them as treasury boBdsSeptember 22,
2009, Coconino issued approximately $27 milliorCafconino Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Borf)9 Series B due
April 2038 to redeem the existing bonds. APS ubkediinds received from the issuance to repay ceetésting indebtedness
under a revolving line of credit drawn upon by Al@Sund its purchase of the 1996A and 1999 SermwdB in 2008. The 2009
Series B Bonds are payable solely from revenuesiredd from APS pursuant to a loan agreement bet&@&hand Coconino.
According to the indenture of the bonds, the irgerate of the 2009 Series B Bonds could be resibt, dveekly, monthly, or at
other time intervals. The initial rate period sébecfor the 2009 Series B Bonds is a daily ratéopeAt December 31, 2009, t
daily interest rate was 0.26%. The daily ratesvaréble rates set by a remarketing agent. Conetlyrevith the issuance of the
2009 Series B Bonds, the Company entered into ayéao letter of credit and reimbursement agreernteptovide credit
support for the 2009 Series B Bonds.

At December 31, 2009, APS had two committed rewgh\dredit facilities totaling $866 million, of whHics377 million wa:
scheduled to terminate in December 2010 and $48@mierminates in September 2011. The revolvezsanavailable either 1
support the issuance of up to $250 million in corruia paper or to be used for bank borrowings,udiig issuances of letters
of credit up to $583 million. At December 31, 200®S had no borrowings and no letters of crediteuriis revolving lines of
credit.

On February 12, 2010, APS refinanced its $377 omillevolving credit facility that would have matdna
December 2010, and increased the size of thetfatli$500 million. The new revolving credit fatyliterminates in
February 2013. APS may increase the amount ofatiéty up to a maximum of $700 million upon theistaction of certain
conditions and with the consent of the lenders. AHRuse the facility for general corporate purpsesand for the issuance of
letters of credit. Interest rates are based on ARSior unsecured debt credit ratings.

Other Financing Matters —See Note 3 for information regarding the PSA apedovy the ACC. Although APS defers
actual retail fuel and purchased power costs amr@it basis, APS’ recovery of the deferrals frésrratepayers is subject to
annual and, if necessary, periodic PSA adjustments.

See Note 3 for information regarding the recerdireate case settlement, which includes ACC aightion and requires
equity infusions into APS of at least $700 millioyp December 31, 2014.

See Note 18 for information related to the chamgauir margin accounts.
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Other Subsidiaries

SunCor— SunCor's principal loan facility, the SunCor SetlRevolver, is secured primarily by an interadand,
commercial properties, land contracts and homesmucmhstruction. At December 31, 2009, SunCor lmdlwings of
approximately $57 million under the Secured Revo(gee Note 6). The revolver matured on Januar2@00. SunCor and the
agent bank for the Secured Revolver are discussirextension of the maturity date to allow time$amCor to continue
discussions concerning the potential sale of amttili properties. In addition to the Secured RevgplaeDecember 31, 2009,
SunCor had approximately $43 million of outstanditept under other credit facilities ($9 millionwhich has matured since
December 31, 2009 and remains outstanding) (seesNoaind 6). SunCor intends to apply the procekplsuoned asset sales
(see Note 23) to the repayment of its outstandeiy.d

Real estate impairment charges recorded throudf}f (see Note 23) resulted in violations of caertaivenants
contained in the SunCor Secured Revolver and SusGthrer credit facilities. The lenders have takerenforcement action
related to the covenant defaults.

If SunCor is unable to obtain an extension or rexlef/the Secured Revolver or its other matured,dwtif it is unable to
comply with the mandatory repayment and other gions of any new or modified credit agreements,CRurcould be require
to immediately repay its outstanding indebtednestevall of its credit facilities as a result obss-default provisions. Such an
immediate repayment obligation would have a mataedserse impact on SunCor's business and finapogtion and impair i
ongoing viability.

SunCor cannot predict the outcome of negotiatioris s lenders or its ability to sell assets faffigient proceeds to
repay its outstanding debt. SunCor's ability toegate sufficient cash from operations while it paslender negotiations and
further asset sales is uncertain.

Neither Pinnacle West nor any of its other subsieiahas guaranteed any SunCor indebtedness. AdBuleBt default
would not result in a cross-default of any of tledidof Pinnacle West or any of its other subsid&riVhile there can be no
assurances as to the ultimate outcome of this m&itenacle West does not believe that SunCorhlihato obtain waivers or
similar relief from SunCor's lenders would have @enial adverse impact on Pinnacle West's cashsftmwiquidity.

As of December 31, 2009, SunCor could not traresfgrcash dividends to Pinnacle West as a restitteofovenants
mentioned above. The restriction does not matgréfect Pinnacle West's ability to meet its ongpdapital requirements.

El Dorado— El Dorado expects minimal capital requirementsrdtie next three years and intends to focus oteprtly
realizing the value of its existing investments.

APSES— APSES expects minimal capital expenditures ovemext three years.
Debt Provisions

Pinnacle West's and APS’ debt covenants relatéldio respective bank financing arrangements ireldebt to
capitalization ratios. Certain of APBank financing arrangements also include an inte@serage test. Pinnacle West and /
comply with these covenants and each anticipatgs! icontinue to meet these and other significamtenant requirements. For
both Pinnacle West and APS, these covenants retipait¢he ratio of consolidated debt to total cdidsted capitalization not
exceed 65%. At December 31, 2009, the ratio wasoappately 52% for Pinnacle West and 48% for APBe Pprovisions
regarding interest coverage require minimum casferage of two times the interest requirements fBSAThe interest
coverage was approximately 4.6 times under APSk imancing agreements as of December 31, 200uréab comply with
such covenant levels would result in an event éidewhich, generally speaking, would require ifmenediate repayment of
the debt subject to the covenants and could crefesill other debt. See further discussion of “crs&ult” provisions below.
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Neither Pinnacle West's nor APS’ financing agreets@ontain “rating triggers” that would result in acceleration of the
required interest and principal payments in theneeéa rating downgrade. However, our bank finahagreements contain a
pricing grid in which the interest costs we pay determined by our current credit ratings.

All of Pinnacle West's loan agreements contain $srdefault” provisions that would result in defawdhd the potential
acceleration of payment under these loan agreenfd?ittnacle West or APS were to default underaiarbther material
agreements. All of APS’ bank agreements contaisssaefault provisions that would result in defaaltsl the potential
acceleration of payment under these bank agreeriex®sS were to default under certain other matexggeements. Pinnacle
West and APS do not have a material adverse chasgéction for revolver borrowings.

See Notes 5 and 6 for further discussions of ligithatters.
Credit Ratings

The ratings of securities of Pinnacle West and ARSf February 17, 2010 are shown below. The ratiafiect the
respective views of the rating agencies, from whickexplanation of the significance of their ratimgay be obtained. There is
no assurance that these ratings will continue igrgiven period of time. The ratings may be revigedithdrawn entirely by
the rating agencies if, in their respective judgtaeaircumstances so warrant. Any downward revisiowithdrawal may
adversely affect the market price of Pinnacle West’APS’ securities and serve to increase theafastd limit access to
capital. It may also require substantial additiozesgh or other collateral requirements relatecettain derivative instruments,
insurance policies, natural gas transportation,Supply, and other energy-related contracts. Attime, we believe we have
sufficient liquidity to cover a downward revisiom dur credit ratings.

Moody's Standard & Poc's Fitch

Pinnacle West

Senior unsecured (i Baa3 (P BB+ (prelim) N/A

Commercial pape P-3 A-3 F3

Outlook Stable Stable Negative
APS

Senior unsecure Baa2 BBB- BBB

Secured lease obligation bor Baa2 BBB- BBB

Commercial pape P-2 A-3 F3

Outlook Stable Stable Stable

(&) Pinnacle West has a shelf registration us#et Rule 415. Pinnacle West currently has no audstag, rated senior
unsecured securities. However, Moody’s assignemagional (P) rating and Standard & Poor’s assibag@reliminary
(prelim) rating to the senior unsecured securiti@$ can be issued under such shelf registra
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In 1986, APS entered into agreements with threarsép VIE lessors in order to sell and lease baigkésts in Palo Verde
Unit 2. The leases are accounted for as operagimgel. We are not the primary beneficiary of the Yarde VIEs and,
accordingly, do not consolidate them (see Note 9).

APS is exposed to losses under the Palo Verddesedeback agreements upon the occurrence of cestairis that APS
does not consider to be reasonably likely to oddader certain circumstances (for example, the N§Ging specified
violation orders with respect to Palo Verde oralkeurrence of specified nuclear events), APS wbeldequired to assume the
debt associated with the transactions, make spdgiyments to the equity participants, and tdkett the leased Unit 2
interests, which, if appropriate, may be requieté written down in value. If such an event hacbo@d as of December 31,
2009, APS would have been required to assume aippatedy $152 million of debt and pay the equityt@pants
approximately $153 million.

SunCor is the primary beneficiary of certain lamdelopment arrangements and, accordingly, condeidhe variable
interest entities. The assets and non-controllieréests reflected in our Consolidated Balance Shetated to these
arrangements were approximately $29 million at Delwer 31, 2009 and at December 31, 2008.

See Note 2 for a discussion of amended accountiftagce relating to VIEs adopted on January 1, 2010
Guarantees and Letters of Credit
We have issued parental guarantees and lettersdif and obtained surety bonds on behalf of obssliaries.

Our parental guarantees for APS relate to commaudligrgy products. In addition, Pinnacle West hasinéd
approximately $8 million of surety bonds relatedd\®S’ operations, which primarily relate to sel&imed workers’
compensation. Our credit support instruments enABIBES to offer energy-related products. Non-penforce or non-payment
under the original contract by our subsidiaries ltaaquire us to perform under the guarantee agtgurond. No liability is
currently recorded on the Consolidated Balance tShetated to Pinnacle West's current outstandingrantees on behalf of
our subsidiaries. At December 31, 2009, we haduamantees that were in default. Our guaranteesmavecourse or collatel
provisions to allow us to recover amounts paid utlde guarantees. We generally agree to indemtidicg@rovisions related to
liabilities arising from or related to certain afroagreements, with limited exceptions dependingherparticular agreement.
See Note 21 for additional information regardinguguntees and letters of credit.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes Pinnacle Wegstbnsolidated contractual requirements as of Dbeei, 2009 (dollars

millions):
2011 201:-
2010 2012 2014 Thereafte Total

Long-term debt payments, including

interest: (a

APS $ 397 $ 1,23 $ 78t $ 2,83t $ 5,25(

SunCot 81 14 2 — 97

Pinnacle Wes 10 177 — — 187
Total long-term debt payments,

including interest and capital leas

obligations 48¢ 1,42¢ 787 2,83t 5,534
Short-term debt payments, including

interest (b} 154 — — — 154
Purchased power and fuel

commitments (c 444 687 947 6,391 8,47¢
Operating lease payments 77 141 12¢€ 73 417
Nuclear decommissioning fundit

requirement: 24 49 49 161 28:¢
Renewable energy credits | 48 30 30 14z 25C
Purchase obligations ( 44 62 14 165 28t
Total contractual commitmen $ 1,27¢ $ 2,39: $ 1,95: $ 9,77t $ 15,39¢

(&) The long-term debt matures at various dédwerigh 2038 and bears interest principally at fireg@s. Interest on variable-
rate loni-term debt is determined by using average ratege¢mber 31, 2009 (see Note

(b) The shor-term debt is primarily related to bank borrowing®anacle West under its revolving line of crgdiéte Note 5)

(c) Our purchased power and fuel commitmentsugielpurchases of coal, electricity, natural gasewable energy and
nuclear fuel (see Notes 3 and 1

(d) Relates to the Palo Verde sale leaseback and itehes (see Note 9
(e) Contracts to purchase renewable energy creditsriipiance with the Renewable Energy Stand
() These contractual obligations include commitmeotchpital expenditures and other obligatic

This table excludes $209 million in unrecognizedlianefits because the timing of the future cagfaws is uncertain.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In preparing the financial statements in accordavite GAAP, management must often make estimatdsagsumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, li#dslirevenues, expenses and related disclosuties date of the financial
statements and during the reporting period. Sontkasfe judgments can be subjective and complexaetul results could
differ from those estimates. We consider the foltmpaccounting policies to be our most critical dnese of the uncertainties,
judgments and complexities of the underlying actiognstandards and operations involv

Regulatory Accounting

Regulatory accounting allows for the actions ofutatprs, such as the ACC and the FERC, to be tefiieia our financial
statements. Their actions may cause us to cagtadizts that would otherwise be included as anresgm the current period
unregulated companies. Regulatory assets repriememted costs that have been deferred becausetbgyrobable of future
recovery in customer rates. Regulatory liabiligeserally represent expected future costs that alagady been collected from
customers. Management continually assesses wiatheegulatory assets are probable of future regolye considering
factors such as applicable regulatory environmbanges and recent rate orders to other regulatégein the same
jurisdiction. This determination reflects the cuntrpolitical and regulatory climate in the state & subject to change in t
future. If future recovery of costs ceases to labable, the assets would be written off as a chiargarrent period earnings.
We had $782 million of regulatory assets and $78Bom of regulatory liabilities on the Consolida®alance Sheets at
December 31, 2009.

Included in the balance of regulatory assets aeber 31, 2009 is a regulatory asset of $532 mifiar pension and
other postretirement benefits. This regulatory tasg@resents the future recovery of these costautfir retail rates as these
amounts are charged to earnings. If these costisabowed by the ACC, this regulatory asset wdwddcharged to OCI and
result in lower future earnings.

See Notes 1 and 3 for more information.
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefit Accountig

Changes in our actuarial assumptions used in @longlour pension and other postretirement behafiility and expense
can have a significant impact on our earnings amahtial position. The most relevant actuarial agstions are the discount
rate used to measure our liability and net pericdst, the expected long-term rate of return on pksets used to estimate

earnings on invested funds over the long-term,thachssumed healthcare cost trend rates. We rehi@sg assumptions on an
annual basis and adjust them as necessary.
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The following chart reflects the sensitivities thathange in certain actuarial assumptions wowe had on the
December 31, 2009 reported pension liability onGoasolidated Balance Sheets and our 2009 reppetasion expense, after
consideration of amounts capitalized or billedlactic plant participants, on Pinnacle West's Giidated Statements of
Income (dollars in millions):

Increase (Decreas

Impact on Impact on
Pensior Pensior
Actuarial Assumption (g Liability Expense
Discount rate
Increase 1Y% $ 231y % (7
Decrease 19 26C 10
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan asse
Increase 1% — @)
Decrease 19 — 7

(a) Each fluctuation assumes that the other ggsons of the calculation are held constant whike tates are changed by one
percentage poin

The following chart reflects the sensitivities thathange in certain actuarial assumptions wowe had on the
December 31, 2009 reported other postretiremerdfiierbligation on the Consolidated Balance Shaatsour 2009 reported
other postretirement benefit expense, after congiithe of amounts capitalized or billed to elecplant participants, on
Pinnacle West's Consolidated Statements of Incatollafs in millions):

Increase (Decreas

Impact on Othe Impact on Othe
Postretirement Bene  Postretiremen

Actuarial Assumption (g Obligation Benefit Expens
Discount rate

Increase 1% $ 96) $ (5)

Decrease 19 111 5
Health care cost trend rate (

Increase 1% 11C 8

Decrease 19 (89 @)
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass— pretax:

Increase 1% — 2

Decrease 19 — 2

(&) Each fluctuation assumes that the other gssons of the calculation are held constant whike tates are changed by one
percentage poin

(b) This assumes a 1% change in the initial and ulgrhatalth care cost trend ra

See Note 8 for further details about our pensiahather postretirement benefit plans.
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Derivative Accounting

Derivative accounting requires evaluation of rutest are complex and subject to varying interpretst Our evaluation «
these rules, as they apply to our contracts, détestwhether we use accrual accounting (for cotgrdesignated as normal) or
fair value (mark-to-market) accounting. Mark-to-fetraccounting requires that changes in the fdirevare recognized
periodically in income unless certain hedge critatie met. For cash flow hedges, the effectivagodf changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognized in commortktequity (as a component of other comprehensisente (loss)) and the
ineffective portion is recognized in current eagsn

See “Market Risks — Commodity Price Risk” below fprantitative analysis. See “Fair Value Measuresidmlow for
additional information on valuation. See Note 1dacussion on accounting policies and Note 1&ffurther discussion on
derivative accounting.

Fair Value Measurements

We apply recurring fair value measurements to d¢isie instruments, nuclear decommissioning tricggain cash
equivalents and plan assets held in our retirermeatother benefit plans. Fair value is the prie Whould be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordeérinsaction between market participants at thesmreanent date. We use inputs,
or assumptions that market participants would tesdetermine fair market value, and the signifieanta particular input
determines how the instrument is classified inféilevalue hierarchy. We utilize valuation techrégithat maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobs®éevaputs. The determination of fair value somesmequires subjective
and complex judgment. Our assessment of the irgndshe significance of a particular input to faafue measurement may
affect the valuation of the instruments and th&cement within the fair value hierarchy. Actuaduks could differ from our
estimates of fair value. See Note 14 for furth@rfalue measurement discussion, Note 1 for disonsen accounting policies
and Note 18 for a further discussion on derivasigeounting.

Our nuclear decommissioning trusts invest in fikembme securities and equity securities. The falues of these
securities are based on observable inputs foricmdr similar assets. See Note 12 for furthecualsion of our nuclear
decommissioning trusts.

Real Estate Investment Impairments

We had real estate investments of $120 million$®dillion of home inventory on our Consolidatedd@ee Sheets at
December 31, 2009. For purposes of evaluating imp@ait, in accordance with guidance on the impaitraed disposal of
long-lived assets, we classify our real estatetassech as land under development, land heldutoré development, and
commercial property, as “held and used.” When esyenthanges in circumstances indicate that thgingrvalue of real estate
assets considered held and used may not be rebteense compare the undiscounted cash flows thatstinate will be
generated by each asset to its carrying amoutite I€arrying amount exceeds the undiscounted ¢asis,fwe adjust the asset
to fair value and recognize an impairment chardee ddjusted value becomes the new book value {ngraynount) for held
and used assets. We may have real estate asssifiemibas held and used with fair values thal@ser than their carrying
amounts, but are not deemed to be impaired be¢hesmdiscounted cash flows exceed the carryinguatso
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Real estate home inventory is considered to befhelshle for the purposes of evaluating impairméiame inventories
are reported at the lower of carrying amount arfalue less cost to sell. Fair value less cosetbis evaluated each period to
determine if it has changed. Losses (and gaintonexceed any cumulative loss previously recogniaee reported as
adjustments to the carrying amount.

We determine fair value for our real estate agsétsarily based on the future cash flows that wereste will be
generated by each asset discounted for marketQisgkimpairment assessments and fair value detetiirs require significal
judgment regarding key assumptions such as futles rices, future construction and land developroests, future sale
timing, and discount rates. The assumptions areifsp® each project and may vary among projethse discount rates we
used to determine fair values at December 31, 280§ed from 11% to 29%. Due to the judgment andrapons applied in
the estimation process, with regard to impairmenis,possible that actual results could diffamfrthose estimates. If
conditions in the broader economy or the real esterkets worsen, or as a result of a change iC&ts strategy, we may be
required to record additional impairments.

OTHER ACCOUNTING MATTERS
See Note 2 for a discussion of recently adoptedwating standards and new standards to be adapted future.

In June 2009, the FASB issued amended guidandeeoconsolidation of variable interest entities. Tinedel for
determining which enterprise has a controlling fiicial interest and is the primary beneficiary ofl& has changed
significantly under the new guidance. Previoushtjable interest holders had to determine whethey had a controlling
financial interest in a VIE based on a quantitativalysis of the expected gains and/or losseseoémitity. The new guidance
requires an enterprise with a variable interest \AiE to perform a qualitative assessment in deiténg whether it has a
controlling financial interest in the entity, arfdso, whether it is the primary beneficiary. Furthere, the amended guidance
requires companies to continually evaluate VIEscfomsolidation. This guidance was effective foonslanuary 1, 2010. We
are continuing to evaluate the impact this new gié@ may have on our financial statements.

MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS
Market Risks

Our operations include managing market risks rdledechanges in interest rates, commodity pricekiavestments held
by our nuclear decommissioning trust fund.

Interest Rate and Equity Risk
We have exposure to changing interest rates. Chgrigierest rates will affect interest paid on ablé-rate debt and the
market value of fixed income securities held by wuclear decommissioning trust fund (see Note TR nuclear

decommissioning trust fund also has risks assatiatth the changing market value of its investmeNisclear
decommissioning costs are recovered in regulaedtradity prices.
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The tables below present contractual balancesmoéansolidated long-term and short-term debt aettpected maturity
dates as well as the fair value of those instrumentDecember 31, 2009 and 2008. The interest pagsgnted in the tables
below represent the weighted-average interest est@$ December 31, 2009 and 2008 (dollars in tods):

Pinnacle West— Consolidated

Shor-Term Debi

Variable-Rate
Long-Term Debi

Fixec-Rate
Long-Term Debi

Interest Interest Interest

2009 Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount

2010 1.09% $153,71! 1.66% $276,63t 55% $ 1,057
2011 — — 2.0% 39,96 6.22% 576,22¢
2012 — — 5.25% 38 6.3(% 446,41¢
2013 — — 5.25% 1,77¢ 5.7%% 32,23¢
2014 — — — — 5.7% 477,05(
Years thereafte — — — — 6.4% 1,804,00!
Total $ 153,71! $318,41! $3,336,98
Fair value $ 153,71! $318,41! $3,463,96!

Variable-Rate Fixec-Rate
Shor-Term Debt Long-Term Debt Long-Term Debt
Interest Interest Interest

2008 Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount

2009 2.22% $670,46¢ 3.8t¢% $173,61¢ 462% $ 4,02i
2010 — — 3.9%% 2,04z 5.6€% 1,13
2011 — — 6.22% 2,25¢ 6.22% 576,25(
2012 — — 6.0(% 16 6.5(% 376,33¢
2013 — — 6.0(% 1,864 6.0(% 231
Years thereafte — — 8.3(% 539,14! 5.64% 1,540,22!
Total $670,46¢ $ 718,94! $2,498,21;
Fair value $670,46¢ $ 718,94! $2,107,63!
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The tables below present contractual balances & Afhg-term debt at the expected maturity dateselbas the fair
value of those instruments on December 31, 2002808. The interest rates presented in the talgiesvirepresent the
weighted-average interest rates as of Decembe&(®B and 2008 (dollars in thousands):

APS
Variable-Rate Fixec-Rate
Shor-Term Debi Long-Term Debi Long-Term Debi
Interest Interest Interest
2009 Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount
2010 — $ — 0.25% $196,17( 56(% $ 1,00¢
2011 — — 0.2¢6% 26,71( 6.37% 401,20:
2012 — — — — 6.3(% 446,39¢
2013 — — — — 5.7%% 32,23:
2014 — — — — 5.7% 477,05(
Years thereafte — — — — 6.4% 1,804,00I
Total $ — $ 222,88 $3,161,88
Fair value $ — $ 222,88( $3,283,63
Variable-Rate Fixec-Rate
Shor-Term Debt Long-Term Debt Long-Term Debt
Interest Interest Interest

2008 Rates Amount Rates Amount Rates Amount
2009 2.09% $521,68:¢ — $ — 562% $ 874
2010 — — — — 5.6(% 1,01z
2011 — — — — 6.37% 401,20t
2012 — — — — 6.5(% 376,32!
2013 — — — — 6.0(% 231
Years thereafte — — 8.3(% 539,14! 5.64% 1,540,22!
Total $521,68:¢ $ 539,14! $2,319,87!
Fair value $521,68¢ $539,14! $1,935,16!

Commaodity Price Risk

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuatinrtee commaodity price and transportation costsleétricity and
natural gas. Our risk management committee, cangisf officers and key management personnel, @ersompany-wide
energy risk management activities to ensure com@diavith our stated energy risk management polithes manage risks
associated with these market fluctuations by unijzzarious commaodity instruments that qualify asiatives, including
exchange-traded futures and options and over-tbhateoforwards, options and swaps. As part of @k management
program, we use such instruments to hedge purclaasksales of electricity and fuels. The changesarket value of such
contracts have a high correlation to price chamgéise hedged commodities.
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The following table shows the net pretax changesank-tomarket of our derivative positions in 2009 and 20@&lars ir

millions):
2009 2008

Mark-to-market of net positions at beginning of y $ (282 % 40
Recognized in earning

Change in mal-to-market losses for future period deliver 4 4

Mark-to-market (gains) losses realized including ineffesniess during the peric 11 (5)
Decrease (increase) in regulatory a: 76 (1173)
Recognized in OCI

Change in mal-to-market losses for future period deliveries (15%) (13¢)

Mark-to-market (gains) losses realized during the pe 18t (64)

Change in valuation techniqu — —
Mark-to-market of net positions at end of y« $ (169 $ (282)

(&) The changes in me-to-market recorded in OCI are due primarily to charigderward natural gas price

The table below shows the fair value of maturiGésur derivative contracts (dollars in milliong)@ecember 31, 2009 by
maturities and by the type of valuation that isfpened to calculate the fair values. See Note Eriative Accounting” and
“Fair Value Measurements,” for more discussion af waluation methods.

Total
Years fair

Source of Fair Valu 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 thereafte value
Prices actively quote $ (13 % — $ — 3 — $ — $ — $ (13
Prices provided by other

external source (76) (59 (11) — — — (14¢€)
Prices based on models an

other valuation methoc (4 D) 3 (2) (2 4) (10
Total by maturity $ (O3 $ @©0 % 8 3% 2 3% 2 3 4 $ (@169
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The table below shows the impact that hypothepdake movements of 10% would have on the marketevaf our risk
management assets and liabilities included on lan&est’'s Consolidated Balance Sheets at Decef&ihe2009 and 2008
(dollars in millions):

December 31, 20C December 31, 20C
Gain (Loss Gain (Loss
Price Up 109 Price Down 109 Price Up 109 Price Down 109

Mark-to-market changes reported

Earnings
Electricity $ 1 3 1 $ 2 % )
Natural gas 1 D 3 3
Regulatory asset (liability) or OCI (
Electricity 21 (22) 20 (20
Natural gas 59 (59) 64 (64)
Total $ 82 $ (82 $ 89 $ (89)

(&) These contracts are hedges of our forecastethases of natural gas and electricity. The irnphthese hypothetical price
movements would substantially offset the impact thase same price movements would have on theqathgxposures
being hedged. To the extent the amounts are diddslinclusion in the PSA, the amounts are reabrteeither a
regulatory asset or liability

Credit Risk

We are exposed to losses in the event of non-padiace or non-payment by counterparties. See NoterkBdiscussion
of our credit valuation adjustment policy.

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY — RESULTS OF OPERATI ONS
Regulatory Matters
See Note 3 for information about rate matters &figcAPS.
Operating Results — 2009 Compared with 2008

APS’ net income for 2009 was $251 million, comparneth net income of $262 million for the comparapleor-year
period.

APS’ net income decreased approximately $11 milirom the prior-year period primarily due to lowetail sales
resulting from lower usage per customer; highesriggt charges, net of capitalized financing cdsgher depreciation and
amortization expenses; and the absence of incaxigetzefits related to prior years recorded in 200&se negative factors
were partially offset by increased revenues dubddnterim rate increase effective January 1, 20i®transmission rate
increases.
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The following table presents net income comparet thie prior-year period:

Increase
Year Endec (Decrease
December 31 in Net
2009 2008 Income
(dollars in millions)
Operating revenues less fuel and purchased povpensg: $ 1,971 $ 1,84¢ $ 127
Operations and maintenar (859 (787) (66)
Depreciation and amortizatic (399 (383) (16)
Taxes other than income tax (122) (124) 2
Other income (expenses), | (8) (25) 17
Interest charges, net of capitalized financings (18%) (15%) (30)
Income taxe! (159 (10¢) (45)
Net Income $ 251 $ 262 $ (112)
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Operating revenues less fuel and purchased powerganses

Electric operating revenues less fuel and purchpser expenses were $127 million higher for 20@@gared with the
prior-year period. The following table describes thajor components of this change:

Increase (Decreas

Purchase:
Operating power and fue
revenues expense: Net change

(dollars in millions)
Higher renewable energy and demand-side managesaesitarges

(substantially offset in operations and maintenanqeense $ 63 $ $ 63
Interim retail rate increases effective Januarg009 61 61
Transmission rate increas 21 21

Increased mark-to-market valuations of fuel anctpased power
contracts related to favorable changes in markeegr net of related

PSA deferrals (18) 18
Effects of weather on retail sales, primarily doédotter weather in the
third quarter of 200! 12 3 9

Lower retail sales primarily due to lower usage @etomer, including
the effects of the Comparg/energy efficiency programs, but excluc

the effects of weathe (58) (26) (32
Higher fuel and purchased power costs includingeffects of lower off-
system sales, net of related PSA defel (30) (29 (11)

Lower retail revenues related to recovery of PSfedals, offset by lowe
amortization of the same amount recorded as fupanchased power

expense (see Note (36) (36) —
Miscellaneous items, n (17) (15) 2
Total $ 16 $ (111) % 127

Operations and maintenanceéDperations and maintenance expenses increasedili®d for 2009 compared with the
prior-year period primarily because of:

* Anincrease of $62 million related to renewabiergy and demand-side management programs, wreabffaet in
operating revenue

e Anincrease of $29 million in generation costgliding more planned maintenance, partially offsetower costs at
Palo Verde due to cost efficiency measures;

* Adecrease of $25 million associated with costrapmeasures and other factors, including theradesef employee
severance costs in 20(

Depreciation and amortizationDepreciation and amortization expenses increasédrilion for 2009 compared with tl
prior-year period primarily because of increases intytiant in service. The increases in utility planservice are the result
various improvements to APS’ existing fossil andlear generating plants and distribution and trassion infrastructure
additions and upgrades.
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Interest charges, net of capitalized financing costinterest charges, net of capitalized financing costreased
$30 million for 2009 compared with the prior-yea&ripd primarily because of higher debt balancesjaily offset by the
effects of lower interest rates (see discussiant@dito APS’ debt issuances in “Pinnacle West Qateted — Liquidity and
Capital Resources” above). Interest charges, neamifalized financing costs are comprised of ihe items interest expense,
capitalized interest and allowance for equity funded during construction from the APS’ Statementacome.

Other income (expenses), néther income (expenses), net improved $17 millam2009 compared with the prior-year
period primarily because of improved investmenhgaOther income (expenses), net is comprisededitte items other
income and other expense from the APS’ Stateménitcome.

Income taxeslncome taxes were $45 million higher for 2009 coregawith the prior-year period primarily because of
$29 million of income tax benefits related to pry@ars recorded in 2008 and higher pretax incorae.N®te S-1.

Operating Results — 2008 Compared with 2007

APS’ net income for the year ended 2008 was $26lomicompared with net income of $284 million fime comparable
prior-year period. The decrease in net income wiasapily due to higher operations and maintenangeeses; lower retalil
sales due to the effects of weather; higher degtieai and amortization expenses; and higher interesges, net of capitalized
financing costs. These negative factors were pigrtéfset by increased revenues due to the rateease effective July 1, 2007;
transmission rate increases; and income tax bemefdted to prior years recorded in 2008.
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The following table presents net income comparet thie prior-year period:

Increase
Year Endec (Decrease
December 31 in Net
2008 2007 Income
(dollars in millions)
Operating revenues less fuel and purchased povpensg: $ 1,84¢ $ 1,78¢ $ 59
Operations and maintenar (787) (710) (77)
Depreciation and amortizatic (383 (365) (18)
Taxes other than income tax (1249 (12¢) 4
Other income (expenses), | (25) 5) (20)
Interest charges, net of capitalized financings (15%) (142) (13)
Income taxe! (10¢) (151) 43
Net income $ 262 $ 284 $ (22)
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Operating revenues less fuel and purchased powerganses

Electric operating revenues less fuel and purchpseer expenses were $59 million higher for the yemled 2008
compared with the prior year. The following tab&sdribes the major components of this change:

Increase (Decreas

Purchase!
Operating power and fue
revenue: expense: Net change
(dollars in millions)
Retail rate increases effective July 1, 2! $ 15€ $ $ 15€
Deferred fuel and purchased power costs relatbéibteer base fuel rai 141 (147)
Transmission rate increas 31 31
Higher retail sales primarily due to customer gtowartially offset by
lower usage per customer, but excluding the effetctgeathel 29 8 21
Higher renewable energy surcharge (substantiafsebfn operations an
maintenance expens 14 14
Regulatory disallowance in 20( (14) 14
Revenues related to lo-term traditional wholesale contrax 26 14 12
Higher fuel and purchased power costs includingeffects of lower off-
system sales, net of related PSA defel 38 41 ©)]
Lower mark-to-market valuations of fuel and pur@tpower contracts
related to changes in market prices, net of relB®A deferral: 14 (14
Effects of weather on retail sal (63) (20 (43)
Lower retail revenues related to recovery of PSfeidals, offset by lowe
amortization of the same amount recorded as fupanchased powe
expense (see Note 47) 47 —
Miscellaneous items, n 13 1 12
Total $ 197 $ 13€ $ 59

Operations and maintenanceOperations and maintenance expenses increasediffion for the year ended 2008
compared with the prior year primarily because of:

* Anincrease of $30 million related to customer gE@nand other costs including distribution systefrability;
* Anincrease of $18 million in generation costsjuding more planned maintenan

* Anincrease of $14 million related to renewablergpgrograms, which are offset in operating reven

* Anincrease of $9 million associated with emplogegerance costs in 2008; ¢

. An increase of $6 million due to other miscellaretactors
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Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expenses increasgdriilion for the year ended 2008
compared with the prior year primarily becausenaféases in utility plant in service. The incredsadility plant in service are
the result of various improvements to APS’ exisfiogsil and nuclear generating plants and distidouand transmission
infrastructure additions and upgrades.

Interest charges, net of capitalized financing costinterest charges, net of capitalized financing £ostreased
$13 million for the year ended 2008 compared withgrior year primarily because of higher ratesemain APS pollution
control bonds and higher short-term debt balarioéstest charges, net of capitalized financingxaate comprised of the line
items interest expense, capitalized interest adogvahce for equity funds used during constructiamt the APS Statements of
Income.

Other income (expenses), néther income (expenses), net reduced earnings hgditional $20 million for the year
ended 2008 compared with the prior year primardgduse of lower interest income. Other income (es@€), net is comprised
of the line items other income and other expens@ fthe APS Statements of Income.

Income taxeslncome taxes were $43 million lower for the yeadexh2008 compared with the prior year primarilyees
of $18 million of increased income tax benefitated to prior years resolved in 2008 and 2007.N\gge S-1.

ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY — LIQUIDITY AND CAPI TAL RESOURCES
Cash Flows

The following table presents APBét cash provided by (used for) operating, invgstéind financing activities for the yei
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (dollarsliions):

2009 2008 2007
Net cash flow provided by operating activit $ 95¢ $ 78t $ 76€
Net cash flow used for investing activiti (738 (879 (881)
Net cash flow provided by (used for) financing witiés (172 114 86
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ 49 $ 20 $ (29)

2009 Compared with 2008

The increase of approximately $174 million in nasle provided by operating activities is primarilyedo a reduction of
collateral and margin cash required as a resuhahges in commodity prices.

The decrease of approximately $141 million in reettcused for investing activities is primarily dodower levels of
capital expenditures net of contributions.

The increase of approximately $286 million in naslt used for financing activities is primarily doaepayments of short-
term borrowings partially offset by APS’ issuand¢e&600 million of unsecured senior notes (see Njte
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2008 Compared with 2007

The increase of approximately $19 million in netltarovided by operating activities is primarilyedio lower current
income taxes and increased retail revenue relatbijher Base Fuel Rates, partially offset by insesl collateral and margin
cash provided as a result of changes in commoditgq

The decrease of approximately $2 million in nethcased for investing activities is primarily dueloaver levels of capital
expenditures (see table and discussion above)nanekised contributions in aid of construction eglab changes in 2008 in ¢
line extension policy (see Note 3), substantiaffget by lower cash proceeds from the net salegpanchases of investment
securities.

The increase of approximately $28 million in nesltarovided by financing activities is primarilyalto higher levels of
short-term borrowings, partially offset by decrahequity infusions from Pinnacle West and the repase of pollution control
bonds (see Note 6).

Liquidity

For a discussion of APS’ capital requirements aaaidity, see “APS” under “Pinnacle West Consoletht— Liquidity
and Capital Resources.”

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes contractual requiata for APS as of December 31, 2009 (dollars ifians):

2011 201:- There-
2010 2012 2014 after Total

Long-term debt payments, including

interest (a $ 397 $ 1,23 $ 78% $ 2,83t $ 5,25(
Purchased power and fuel

commitments (b 444 687 947 6,397 8,47¢
Operating lease payments 70 131 12C 63 384
Nuclear decommissioning fundit

requirement: 24 49 49 161 28¢
Renewable energy credits | 48 30 30 142 25C
Purchase obligations ( 44 62 14 165 28E
Total contractual commitmen $ 1,027 $ 2,192 $ 1,94¢ $ 9,76: $ 14,92

(@) The long-term debt matures at various déesigh 2038 and bears interest principally at fisates. Interest on variable-
rate lon¢-term debt is determined by using average rategae@ber 31, 2009 (see Note

(b) APS’ purchased power and fuel commitmenthishe purchases of coal, electricity, natural gasewable energy and
nuclear fuel (see Notes 3 and 1

(c) Relates to the Palo Verde sale leaseback and it¢hes (see Note 9
(d) Contracts to purchase renewable energy creditsriipiance with the Renewable Energy Stand
(e) These contractual obligations include commitmeotcépital expenditures and other obligatic

This table excludes $208 million in unrecognizedtanefits because the timing of the future casfaws is uncertain.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See “Market and Credit Risks” in Item 7 above faliscussion of quantitative and qualitative disates about market
risk.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page

Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repgri{Pinnacle West Capital Corporatic 81
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm 82
Pinnacle West Consolidated Statements of Incom2Goe, 2008 and 20( 84
Pinnacle West Consolidated Balance Sheets as afrbmer 31, 2009 and 20! 85
Pinnacle West Consolidated Statements of Cash FiawZ)09, 2008 and 20( 87
Pinnacle West Consolidated Statements of Chang@srinmon Stock Equity for 2009, 2008 and 2! 88
Notes to Pinnacle We's Consolidated Financial Stateme 89
Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial RepgrtfArizona Public Service Compar 15C
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm 151
APS Statements of Income for 2009, 2008 and : 158
APS Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 154
APS Statements of Cash Flows for 2009, 2008 and 15€
APS Statements of Changes in Common Stock Equit2d069, 2008 and 20( 157
Supplemental Notes to Al' Financial Statemen 15¢
Financial Statement Schedules for 2009, 2008 af@

Pinnacle West Schedule— Condensed Statements of Income for 2009, 2008 @6d 164

Pinnacle West Schedule— Condensed Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2608088 16t

Pinnacle West Schedule— Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for 2009, 2090207 16€

Pinnacle West Schedule— Reserve for Uncollectibles for 2009, 2008 and 2 167

APS Schedule I— Reserve for Uncollectibles for 2009, 2008 and 2 16€

See Note 13 and S-2 for the selected quarterlyilah data (unaudited) required to be presentedignitem.
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
(PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION)

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f),Hmnacle West Capital Corporation. Managementiooted an evaluation
of the effectiveness of our internal control ovieafcial reporting based on the frameworlnternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrise Treadway Commission. Based on our evaloaitiwler
the framework irinternal Control — Integrated Framewor&ur management concluded that our internal cootret financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2002 dffectiveness of our internal control over finahoeporting as of
December 31, 2009 has been audited by Deloitte &cfie LLP, an independent registered public accogritim, as stated in
their report which is included herein and alsoteddo the Company’s consolidated financial statéme

February 19, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation
Phoenix, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Pinnacle West Capital Corporationsaibdidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 andela¢ed consolidated statements of income, chaingeguity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeghbecember 31, 2009. Our audits also includedinhecial statement
schedules listed in the Index at Iltem 15. We abseeraudited the Company’s internal control oveatiicial reporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on criteria establishbdemal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisdible Company’s management is responsible for tfieaecial
statements and financial statement schedules, dortaining effective internal control over finanaiaporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomyag Management’s Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Oesponsibility is to express an opinion on thesarfaial statements and
financial statement schedules and an opinion of€tirapany’s internal control over financial repogtinased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighauBioqUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whe#hénancial statemen
are free of material misstatement and whether @ffeternal control over financial reporting wasintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial statemermsided examining, on a test basis, evidence suipgdtie amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessgccounting principles used and significannesstes made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement @méstion. Our audit of internal control over finaieeporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dgaincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectisgoé internal control based on the assessedQiskaudits also included
performing such other procedures as we considezeéssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company’s
principal executive and principal financial offiseor persons performing similar functions, aneetfd by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other persaamebvide reasonable assurance regarding trabiily of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detilirately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thaactions are recorded as necessary to permit ptépanof financial
statements in accordance with generally accepteauating principles and that receipts and expeneftof the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizatidn®@nagement and directors of the company; angr(8)ide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteafamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositioth&f company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegsts.
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Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventatetacted on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of tifeaiveness of the internal control over financighorting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the controls may becoradéguate because of changes in conditions, otttbategree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 20092808, and the results of their operations and ttesh flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 3B, 20 conformity with accounting principles gernraccepted in the
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, lsdimancial statement schedules, when consideregldtion to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a wpodsent fairly, in all material respects, the iniation set forth therein. Also,
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all malerespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on the criteria establishaternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
February 19, 2010
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(dollars and shares in thousands, except per sinaoeints)

OPERATING REVENUES
Regulated electricity segme
Real estate segme
Marketing and tradin
Other revenue
Total
OPERATING EXPENSE:!
Regulated electricity segment fuel and purchaseep
Real estate segment operati
Real estate impairment charge (Note
Marketing and trading fuel and purchased pa
Operations and maintenar
Depreciation and amortizatic
Taxes other than income tax
Other expense
Total
OPERATING INCOME
OTHER
Allowance for equity funds used during construct
Other income (Note 1¢
Other expense (Note 1
Total
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest charge
Capitalized interes
Total
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME
TAXES
INCOME TAXES (Note 4,
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATION¢
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Net of income tax expense (benefit) of $(8,917)9$86 and $4,486
(Note 22)
NET INCOME
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling ietes
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDER

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING —
BASIC

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING —
DILUTED

EARNINGS PER WEIGHTED — AVERAGE COMMON SHARE
OUTSTANDING
Income from continuing operations attributable doncnon
shareholder— basic
Net income attributable to common sharehol— basic
Income from continuing operations attributable éoncnon
shareholder— diluted
Net income attributable to common sharehol— diluted
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE

AMOUNTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS
Income from continuing operations, net of
Discontinued operations, net of t
Net income attributable to common shareholi
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Year Ended December 3

2009 2008 2007
$ 3,149,18 $ 3,127,38  $ 2,918,16:
103,15: 74,54¢ 189,72
— 66,89 138,24
44,76 41,72¢ 48,01
3,297,10 3,310,55 3,294,15.
1,178,62! 1,284,11 1,140,92:
102,38: 100,10: 168,91
258,45 18,10¢ —
— 45 57: 100,46:
875,35 807,85: 728,34(
404,33: 390,09: 371,87
123,66: 125,33 128,21
32,52 34,17 38,92¢
2,975,32i 2,805,35! 2,677,64
321,77 505,20t 616,50
14,99¢ 18,63¢ 21,19t
5,66¢ 12,79° 25,36:
(14,269 (31,57¢) (25,857
6,39¢ (149 20,70(
233,85¢ 215,68 207,82"
(10,74%) (18,820) (23,069)
223,11 196,86« 184,76«
105,05¢ 308,20 452 44;
37,82 76,89’ 152,00¢
67,23 231,30 300,43
(13,676 10,82: 6,707
53,55¢ 242,12 307,14
(14,775 — —

$ 6833 $ 24212 $ 307,14
101,16: 100,69: 100,25¢
101,26« 100,96! 100,83!

$ 081 $ 230 $ 3.0¢
0.6¢ 2.4¢ 3.0€

0.81 2.2¢ 2.9¢

0.67 2.4¢ 3.0

$ 21C  $ 21C  $ 2.1C
$ 82006 $ 23130: $ 300,43
(13,676 10,82: 6,707

$ 6833 $ 24212 $ 307,14
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

December 31

2009 2008
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel $  145,37¢ $ 105,24
Customer and other receivab 301,91! 292,68:
Accrued utility revenue 110,97: 100,08
Allowance for doubtful accoun (6,159 (3,389
Materials and supplies (at average ¢ 176,02( 173,25:
Fossil fuel (at average co: 39,24¢ 29,75:
Deferred income taxes (Note 53,99( 79,72¢
Income tax receivabl 26,00¢ —
Home inventory (Notes 1 and 2 3,28z 50,68¢
Assets from risk management activities (Note 50,61¢ 32,581
Other current asse 27,46¢ 21,845
Total current asse 928,73 882,48.
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSET:!
Real estate investmer— net (Notes 1, 6 and 2. 119,98t¢ 415,29¢
Assets from risk management activities (Note 28,85¢ 33,67¢
Nuclear decommissioning trust (Note : 414 57¢ 343,05:
Other asset 110,09: 117,93!
Total investments and other ass 673,51: 909,95¢
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 1, 6, 9 and
Plant in service and held for future t 12,848,13 12,264,80
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (4,340,64) (4,141,54))
Net 8,507,49: 8,123,25!
Construction work in progre: 467,70( 572,35
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaif@$294,724 and $282,1¢ 164,38( 131,72:
Nuclear fuel, net of accumulated amortization of $@4 and $55,34 118,24: 89,32:
Total property, plant and equipme 9,257,811 8,916,65!
DEFERRED DEBITS
Deferred fuel and purchased power regulatory dbktes 1 and 3 — 7,98¢
Other regulatory assets (Notes 1, 3 an 781,71 787,50¢
Income tax receivabl 65,10: —
Other deferred debi 101,27- 115,50!
Total deferred debit 948,09: 910,99!
TOTAL ASSETS $ 11,808,15 $ 11,620,09

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaStakments.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payabl
Accrued taxe:
Accrued interes
Shor-term borrowings (Note £
Current maturities of lor-term debt (Note €
Customer deposit
Liabilities from risk management activities (Not®):
Other current liabilitie
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT LESS CURRENT MATURITIES (Note ¢

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHEI
Deferred income taxes (Note
Deferred fuel and purchased power regulatory lighiNote 3)
Other regulatory liabilities (Notes 1 and
Liability for asset retirements (Note 1
Liabilities for pension and other postretirememdfis (Note 8
Liabilities from risk management activities (Not®):
Customer advance
Coal mine reclamatio
Unrecognized tax benefi
Other
Total deferred credits and ott

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (SEE NOTES

EQUITY (Note 7)
Common stock, no par value; authorized 150,000db@0es; issued 101,527,937 at
end of 2009 and 100,948,436 at end of 2
Treasury stock at cost; 93,239 shares at end ¢ 206 59,827 at end of 20
Total common stoc
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive Ic
Pension and other postretirement benefits (No
Derivative instrument
Total accumulated other comprehensive
Total Pinnacle West shareholc’ equity
Noncontrolling real estate intere:
Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSta&kements.
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December 31

2009 2008
$ 24063 $ 261,02
104,01 109,79¢
54,50¢ 40,747
153,71t 670,46¢
277,69: 177,644
71,02¢ 78,74
55,90¢ 69,58¢
125,57 97,91
1,083,161 1,505,92i
3,370,52. 3,031,60:
1,496,09! 1,403,31i
87,29 _
679,07 587,58(
301,78: 275,97(
811,33¢ 675,78t
62,44 126,53
136,59 132,02
92,06( 91,201
142,00 68,90«
200,01! 227,87:
4,008,79: 3,589,19.
2,153,29! 2,151,32;
(3,817) (2,85¢)
2,149 48 2,148,46!
1,298,21: 1,444,20i
(50,89;) (47,54)
(80,699 (99,15
(131,58) (146,699
3,316,10! 3,445,97"
29,57 47,38¢
3,345,68! 3,493,36:
$ 11,808,15 $ 11,620,09
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 3

2009 2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income $  53,55¢ $ 242,12 $ 307,14
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization including nuclear | 443,16( 423,96¢ 403,89¢
Deferred fuel and purchased pov (51,747 (80,187 (196,136
Deferred fuel and purchased power amortiza 147,01¢ 183,12t 231,10¢
Deferred fuel and purchased power regulatory disahce — — 14,37(
Allowance for equity funds used during construct (14,999 (18,63¢) (21,19Y
Real estate impairment chair 280,18t 53,25(
Deferred income taxe 105,49:. 158,02« (58,027
Change in mal-to-market valuation (6,939 9,07¢ 17,57¢
Changes in current assets and liabilit
Customer and other receivab 12,29: 73,44¢ 58,79:
Accrued utility revenue (10,887 7,38¢ 4,057
Materials, supplies and fossil fu (12,267 (25,457 (29,77¢)
Other current asse (9,186 8,73¢ (10,040
Accounts payabl (27,329 (69,439 (42,009
Accrued taxes and income tax receive— net (31,799 (13,149 20,76¢
Home inventory 33,83: 48,04 (56,887)
Other current liabilitie 29,27« (5,130 22,657
Expenditures for real estate investme (2,957 (21,169 (121,316
Other changes in real estate as (4,216 18,21: 82,521
Change in margin and collateral acco.— asset: (12,80¢) 17,45( (37,37)
Change in margin and collateral accol— liabilities 35,654 (132,419 19,28
Change in long term income tax receiva (131,989 — —
Change in unrecognized tax bene 137,89¢ (94,55)) 25,17¢
Change in other regulatory liabilitir 110,64: (12,129 7,13:
Change in other lor-term asset (47,899 6,10¢ (23,82¢)
Change in other lor-term liabilities 7,05( 36,88( 40,02¢
Net cash flow provided by operating activit 1,031,06! 813,56¢ 657,93¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (764,609 (935,57 (960,39()
Contributions in aid of constructic 53,52¢ 60,29: 41,80¢
Capitalized interes (10,74%) (18,820 (23,069
Proceeds from sale of investment secur — 69,22¢
Purchases of investment securi — — (36,525
Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust ¢ 441,24 317,61¢ 259,02¢
Investment in nuclear decommissioning ti (463,03) (338,36) (279,768
Proceeds from sale of commercial real estate imessts 43,37( 94,17: 58,13¢
Other (4,667) 5,51 (1,807
Net cash flow used for investing activiti (704,91) (815,159 (873,359
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of lor-term debr 867,46 96,93 230,57:
Repayment and reacquisition of l-term debt (435,12) (181,49) (162,06()
Shor-term borrowings— net (516,759 331,74: 304,91:
Dividends paid on common sto (205,07¢) (204,24°) (210,47
Common stock equity issuan 3,30z 3,68 24,08¢
Other 171 3,891 (2,509
Net cash flow provided by (used for) financing weitigés (286,015 50,51¢ 184,52¢

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 40,13 48,92¢ (30,889



CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAF

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAF

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period fc

Income taxes, net of (refunc

Interest, net of amounts capitaliz

See Notes to Pinnacle West's Consolidated FinaSt&kements.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(dollars in thousands)

COMMON STOCK (Note 7
Balance at beginning of ye
Issuance of common sto
Other

Balance at end of ye

TREASURY STOCK (Note 7

Balance at beginning of ye

Purchase of treasury sto

Reissuance of treasury stock used for stock conapien:
Balance at end of ye

RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at beginning of ye

Net income attributable to common sharehol

Common stock dividenc

Cumulative effect of change in accounting for ineotaxes (Note 4
Other

Balance at end of ye

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS
Balance at beginning of ye
Pension and other postretirement benefits (Not

Unrealized actuarial loss, net of tax benefit &f,$23), $(7,801) and

$(13,573)
Prior service cost, net of tax benefit of $(4
Amortization to income
Actuarial loss, net of tax benefit of $1,705, $B%nd $1,67!
Prior service cost, net of tax benefit of $215,%2pd $25:
Transition obligation, net of tax benefit of $3%05and $4:
Derivative instruments
Net unrealized loss, net of tax benefit of $(61)3%854,490) and
$(414)
Reclassification of net realized (gain) loss taime, net of tax
(expense) benefit of $72,876, $(24,786) and $(4,
Balance at end of ye

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

Balance at beginning of ye

Net loss

Net capital activities by noncontrolling intere
Other

Balance at end of ye

TOTAL EQUITY

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON
SHAREHOLDERS

Net income attributable to common sharehol

Other comprehensive income (lo:

Comprehensive income attributable to common shédlehs

See Notes to Pinnacle W's Consolidated Financial Statemel
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Year Ended December 3

2009 2008 2007
$ 215132 $ 213578  $ 2,114,55
10,62( 10,84¢ 24,08¢
(8,645) 4,691 (2,852)
2,153,29! 2,151,32; 2,135,78
(2,854 (2,05¢) (449)
(2,156) (1,387 (1,964)
1,19¢ 587 35¢
(3,819 (2,854 (2,054)
1,444,20: 1,413,74 1,319,74
68,33( 242,12 307,14
(212,38¢) (211,40%) (210,47
— — (2,676)

(1,939 (259) —
1,298,221 1,444,20 1,413,74:
(146,69 (15,862 12,26¢
(6,350) (11,059 (21,976

— — (76¢)

2,61F 2,431 2,21¢

32¢ 342 391

61 62 67

(93,996 (83,099 (785)
112 45: (39,53) (7,279
(131,58) (146,69 (15,869
47,38¢ 54,56¢ 49 68:
(14,775 _ _
(2,632) (8,006) 4,32
(411) 82€ 567
29,57 47,38¢ 54,56¢

$ 3,34568 $ 349336/ $ 3,586,18
$ 6833 $ 242,128 $ 307,14
15,11° (130,83%) (28,137

$ 8344 $§ 11129 $ 279,01
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Consolidation and Nature of Operations

Pinnacle West’'s Consolidated Financial Statememiside the accounts of Pinnacle West and our sialoiEd: APS,
SunCor, APSES, El Dorado and Pinnacle West MargRiffrading. Intercompany accounts and transactimig/een the
consolidated companies have been eliminated.

APS is a verticallyintegrated electric utility that provides eithetaieor wholesale electric service to substantiallyof the
state of Arizona, with the major exceptions of abanehalf of the Phoenix metropolitan area, the Tucsetropolitan area ar
Mohave County in northwestern Arizona. SunCor @e®aeloper of residential, commercial and industeal estate projects in
Arizona, New Mexico, ldaho and Utah. APSES providesrgy-related projects to commercial and indaistetail customers in
competitive markets in the western United State2008, APSES discontinued its commodityated energy services (see N
22). El Dorado is an investment firm. Pinnacle Wdatketing & Trading began operations in early 200fese operations
were previously conducted by a division of Pinna#est through the end of 2006. By the end of 2808stantially all the
contracts were transferred to APS or expired.

In preparing the consolidated financial statememéshave evaluated the events that have occurtedécember 31,
2009 through the date the financial statements vgsted on February 19, 2010.

Our consolidated financial statements reflect djlistments (consisting only of normal recurringuastinents except as
otherwise disclosed in the notes) that we beligeenacessary for the fair presentation of our fam@rposition, results of
operations and cash flows for the periods preseiiieglse consolidated financial statements and mates been prepared
consistently with the exception of the reclasstiimaof certain prior year amounts on our ConsaédaStatements of Income
and Consolidated Balance Sheets in accordanceaatibunting requirements for reporting discontinapdrations (see Note
22), and amended accounting guidance on reportingantrolling interests in consolidated financiatements (see Note 2).
We have also presented certain line items in metaildn the Consolidated Balance Sheets than wesepted at December 31,
2008. The prior year amounts were reclassifiebtdarm to the current year presentation. Custordeaaces, coal mine
reclamation and unrecognized tax benefits are ptedeas separate line items instead of the prelyioeported single line item
of other deferred credits.

Certain line items are presented in more detathenConsolidated Statements of Cash Flows tharpvesented in the
prior years. Other line items are more condensed the previous presentation. The prior year ansowete reclassified to
conform to the current year presentation. Custandrother receivables and accrued utility revermwegresented as separate
line items instead of the previously reported srgie item of customer and other receivables. Bedrtaxes and income tax
receivable-net and other current liabilities aresented as separate line items instead of thequglyireported single line item
of other current liabilities. Change in other reggaly liabilities is reported separately from chaig other long-term liabilities.
These reclassifications had no impact on totatash flow provided by operating activities.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting Records and Use of Estimates

Our accounting records are maintained in accordaitbeaccounting principles generally acceptechia Wnited States of
America (GAAP). The preparation of financial stagts in accordance with GAAP requires managememiatce estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdass#ts and liabilities, disclosure of contingessiess and liabilities at the di
of the financial statements and reported amountswanues and expenses during the reporting pekittdal results could
differ from those estimates.

Derivative Accounting

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuatinrtee commodity price and transportation costsle€tricity and
natural gas. We manage risks associated with thesket fluctuations by utilizing various instrumemhat qualify as
derivatives, including exchange-traded futures @ptibns and over-the-counter forwards, options smaps. As part of our
overall risk management program, we use such im&nts to hedge purchases and sales of electrizityueels. The changes in
market value of such contracts have a high corogldb price changes in the hedged transactions.

We account for our derivative contracts in accocganith derivatives and hedging guidance, whicluireg that entities
recognize all derivatives as either assets orliieds on the balance sheet and measure thosemnsits at fair value. See Note
18 for additional information about our derivataecounting policies.

Fair Value Measurements

We determine and disclose the fair value of cerasets and liabilities in accordance with faiueaguidance. Fair value
is the price that would be received for an assgiaid to transfer a liability (exit price) in theipcipal or most advantageous
market for the asset or liability in an orderlyrtsaction between willing market participants onrigasurement date. Inputs to
fair value include observable and unobservable. §dtamaximize the use of observable inputs andmiia the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

We determine fair market value using actively-qdgtéces for identical instruments when availallhen actively
guoted prices are not available for the identinatruments we use prices for similar instrumentstber corroborative market
information or prices provided by other external®es. For options, long-term contracts and otbatracts for which price
guotes are not available, we use unobservablesnputh as models and other valuation methodgterdine fair market
value.

The use of models and other valuation methodsteriéne fair market value often requires subjectime complex
judgment. Actual results could differ from the rigsestimated through application of these meth@us.structured activitie
are hedged with a portfolio of forward purchased firotects the economic value of the sales traiosec Our practice is to
hedge within timeframes established by the ERMC.

See Note 14 for additional information about faitue measurements.
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Regulatory Accounting

APS is regulated by the ACC and the FERC. The apemiying financial statements reflect the rate-mgldalicies of
these commissions. As a result, we capitalize icectasts that would be included as expense in tinent period by unregulat
companies. Regulatory assets represent incurreas itz have been deferred because they are psobghlture recovery in
customer rates. Regulatory liabilities generallgresent expected future costs that have already dmkected from customers.

Management continually assesses whether our regylassets are probable of future recovery by demsig factors such
as applicable regulatory environment changes arehtaate orders to other regulated entities irstirae jurisdiction. This
determination reflects the current political angulatory climate in the state and is subject tangeain the future. If future
recovery of costs ceases to be probable, the ageatd be written off as a charge in current pegagnings.

A component of our regulatory assets and liabditgethe retail fuel and power costs deferred utftePSA. APS defers
for future rate recovery or refund approximatel$®6f the difference between actual retail fuel pncchased power costs and
the amount of such costs currently included in ates, subject to specified parameters. See Note 3

Also included in the balance of regulatory asseBexember 31, 2009 is a regulatory asset for parend other
postretirement benefits. This regulatory assetasgmits the future recovery of these costs throeiglil rates as these amounts
are charged to earnings. If these costs are digadidy the ACC, this regulatory asset would be gbdto OCI and result in
lower future earnings.

The detail of regulatory assets is as follows @tslin millions):

December 31

2009 2008

Pension and other postretirement ben: $ 532 $ 473
Regulatory asset for deferred income te 59 51
Deferred fuel and purchased pov— mark-to-market 41 11¢€
Transmission vegetation managem 34 20
Deferred compensatic 31 30
Loss on reacquired de 23 16
Demand side manageme 18 17
Coal reclamatiol 16 17
Competition rules compliance charge 7 16
Deferred fuel and purchased power — 8
Other 21 29

Total regulatory assets ( $ 782 $ 79t

(&) Subject to a carrying charc

(b) There are no regulatory assets for which letgrs have allowed recovery of costs but not afldw return by exclusion
from rate base
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PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The detail of regulatory liabilities is as follodollars in millions):

December 31

2009 2008

Removal costs (¢ $ 38t $ 38¢
Regulatory liability related to asset retiremenligagions 15€ 10z
Deferred fuel and purchased power 87 —
Renewable energy stand: 51 22
Spent nuclear fue 34 22
Deferred gains on utility proper 20 20
Tax benefit of Medicare subsit 17 16
Deferred interest income ( 3 8
Other 13 9

Total regulatory liabilities $ 76€ $ 58¢

(&) In accordance with regulatory accounting goie, APS accrues for removal costs for its regdlassets, even if there is
no legal obligation for remove

(b) Subject to a carrying charc
Utility Plant and Depreciation

Utility plant is the term we use to describe thaeihass property and equipment that supports atesgrivice, consisting
primarily of generation, transmission and distribatfacilities. We report utility plant at its ofigal cost, which includes:

e material and labol

*  contractor costs

e capitalized lease:

e construction overhead costs (where applicable);

e capitalized interest or an allowance for funds us&dng constructior

We expense the costs of plant outages, major nm@int2 and routine maintenance as incurred. We ehatiged utility
plant to accumulated depreciation. Liabilities assed with the retirement of tangible long-livesbats are recognized at fair
value as incurred and capitalized as part of tlsdee tangible long-lived assets. Accretion of liability due to the passage of
time is an operating expense and the capitalizetlisalepreciated over the useful life of the Idingd asset. See Note 12.

APS records a regulatory liability for the assdireenent obligations related to its regulated assEtis regulatory liability
represents the difference between the amount #sabéen recovered in regulated rates and the aroalenlated in accordance

with guidance on accounting for asset retiremetigations. APS believes it can recover in regulatgds the costs capitalized
in accordance with this accounting guidance.
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We record depreciation on utility plant on a sthailine basis over the remaining useful life of tetated assets. The
approximate remaining average useful lives of dilityuproperty at December 31, 2009 were as fobow

e Fossil plan— 18 years

e  Nuclear plan— 17 years

e Other generatio— 29 years
e Transmissio— 44 years

e Distribution— 32 years; an
e Other— 8 years

For the years 2007 through 2009, the depreciatitesiranged from a low of 1.11% to a high of 12.46%e weighted-
average rate was 3.06% for 2009, 3.08% for 20083ahtPs for 2007. We depreciate non-utility property equipment over
the estimated useful lives of the related assetsying from 3 to 34 years.

Investments

El Dorado accounts for its investments using eitherequity method (if significant influence) oetbost method (if less
than 20% ownership).

Our investments in the nuclear decommissioning furgl are accounted for in accordance with guidamtaccounting
for certain investments in debt and equity se@sitSee Note 12 for more information on these tnvests.

Capitalized Interest

Capitalized interest represents the cost of deliidwsed to finance non-regulated constructioreptsj Plant construction
costs, including capitalized interest, are expertsealigh depreciation when completed projects &egol into commercial
operation. The rate used to calculate capitalinéztést was a composite rate of 4.4% for 2009, 5&%008 and 5.8% for
2007. Capitalized interest ceases when construitioomplete.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

AFUDC represents the approximate net compositedsteost of borrowed funds and an allowed returthe equity
funds used for construction of regulated utilitamt. APS’ allowance for borrowed funds is includedapitalized interest on
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Plant coctsbn costs, including AFUDC, are recovered irhautzed rates through
depreciation when completed projects are placeddommercial operation.

AFUDC was calculated by using a composite rate @¥&for 2009, 7.0% for 2008 and 8.2% for 2007. ABBipounds
AFUDC monthly and ceases to accrue AFUDC when coason work is completed and the property is pthireservice.

Electric Revenues

We derive electric revenues primarily from saleglettricity to our regulated Native Load custom&svenues related to
the sale of electricity are generally recorded whenvice is rendered or electricity is deliveredustomers. The billing of
electricity sales to individual Native Load custamis based on the reading of their meters, whottuis on a systematic basis
throughout the month. Unbilled revenues are esethay applying an average revenue/kWh to the numbestimated kWhs
delivered but not billed. Differences historicaligtween the actual and estimated unbilled reveargeBnmaterial. We exclude
sales taxes and franchise fees on electric revdmuasboth revenue and taxes other than incomestaxe
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Revenues from our Native Load customers and nonatere instruments are reported on a gross basionacle West's
Consolidated Statements of Income. In the elettrimiisiness, some contracts to purchase energyetted against other
contracts to sell energy. This is called a “book*amd usually occurs for contracts that have @maes terms (quantities and
delivery points) and for which power does not flade net these book-outs, which reduces both reeeane purchased power
and fuel costs.

Effective January 1, 2010, electric revenues vidlbanclude proceeds for line extension paymentsiéw or upgraded
service in accordance with the ACC Settlement Agierg (see Note 3). This revenue treatment will ioomt through 2012 or
until new rates are established in APS’ next gdrretail rate case, if that is before year end 2@&tain proceeds received
under previous versions of the line extension goliz for activities not involving an extensionugrgrade of service (e.g.,
service relocations at the request of governmemitities or undergrounding of overhead facilitied) continue to be treated as
contributions in aid of construction and will natpact electric revenues.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts representdiest estimate of existing accounts receivablewfilaultimately be
uncollectible. The allowance is calculated by apmyestimated write-off factors to various classésutstanding receivables,
including accrued utility revenues. The write-aitfors used to estimate uncollectible accountdased upon consideration of
both historical collections experience and manageiséest estimate of future collections success diverxisting collection
environment.

Real Estate Revenues

SunCor recognizes revenue from land, home andfgumglicommercial operating assets sales in fubypled (a) the
income is determinable, that is, the collectabitityhe sales price is reasonably assured or tlwiatihat will not be collectibl
can be estimated, and (b) the earnings procesguslly complete, that is, SunCor is not obligategerform significant
activities after the sale to earn the income. Unlesth conditions exist, recognition of all or pafrthe income is postponed
under the percentage of completion method in aecarel with accounting guidance relating to salagalfestate. SunCor
recognizes income only after the asset title hasggh Commercial property and management revemees@rded over the
term of the lease or period in which services ao®ided. In addition, see Note 22.
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Real Estate Investments

Real estate investments primarily include SunClarisl, home inventory, commercial property and itwests in joint
ventures. Land includes acquisition costs, infradtire costs, capitalized interest and propertggadrectly associated with the
acquisition and development of each project. Hamerntory consists of construction costs, improwaaobsts, capitalized
interest and property taxes on homes and condcey wodistruction. Homes under construction are ifledsas “real estate
investments” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets; apmpletion of construction they are transfetmethome inventory”
with the expectation that they will be sold inmély manner.

For the purposes of evaluating impairment, in agaoce with the provisions on accounting for theampent or disposal
of long-lived assets, we classify our real estatess, including land under development, land faglfuture development, and
commercial property as “held and used/hen events or changes in circumstances indicatdttk carrying values of real est
assets considered held and used may not be rebteense compare the undiscounted cash flows thatstinate will be
generated by each asset to its carrying amoutite I€arrying amount exceeds the undiscounted ¢asis,fwe adjust the asset
to fair value and recognize an impairment chardee ddjusted value becomes the new book value {ngraynount) for held
and used assets. Our internal models use inputs/thbelieve are consistent with those that wodldiged by market
participants.

Real estate home inventory is considered to befbelshle for purposes of evaluating impairmerdéoordance with the
provisions of accounting for impairment or disposfllong-lived assets. Home inventories are repoatethe lower of carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell. Fair véss costs to sell is evaluated each period terahéne if it has changed. Losses
(and gains not to exceed any cumulative loss poslyorecognized) are reported as adjustments toghging amount.

Investments in joint ventures for which SunCor doeshave a controlling financial interest are ocomsolidated, but are
accounted for using the equity method of accountimgddition, see Note 22 and Note 23.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with atority of three months or less at acquisition tochsh equivalents.
Nuclear Fuel

APS amortizes nuclear fuel by using the unit-ofdarction method. The unit-of-production method isdzhon actual
physical usage. APS divides the cost of the fudhleyestimated number of thermal units it expezisroduce with that fuel.
APS then multiplies that rate by the number ofrterunits produced within the current period. Tdafculation determines the
current period nuclear fuel expense.

APS also charges nuclear fuel expense for theimmtstiorage and permanent disposal of spent nuftiearThe DOE is

responsible for the permanent disposal of sperieauéuel and charges APS $0.001 per kWh of nugeaeration. See Note
for information on spent nuclear fuel disposal alde 12 for information on nuclear decommissiorgogts.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided using the asset anditye@pproach prescribed by guidance relating twoaating for income
taxes. We file our federal income tax return omasolidated basis and we file our state incomedaxns on a consolidated or
unitary basis. In accordance with our intercompxysharing agreement, federal and state incones tare allocated to each
first-tier subsidiary as though each first-tier sidlbary filed a separate income tax return. Anyedénce between that method
and the consolidated (and unitary) income tax liighis attributed to the parent company. The inediax liability accounts
reflect the tax and interest associated with mamage's estimate of the largest amount of tax betiedit is greater than 50%
likely of being realized upon settlement for albkvn and measurable tax exposures. See Note 4.

Intangible Assets

We have no goodwill recorded and have separatebfatied other intangible assets, primarily APStwsafe, on Pinnacle
West's Consolidated Balance Sheets. The intangiblesaasetamortized over their finite useful lives. Atimation expense wi
$35 million in 2009, $33 million in 2008 and $37llbin in 2007. Estimated amortization expense oisteg intangible assets
over the next five years is $33 million in 201073$8illion in 2011, $23 million in 2012, $18 million 2013 and $13 million in
2014. At December 31, 2009, the weighted averageiréng amortization period for intangible assetsWw years.

2. New Accounting Standards
Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued amended guidandeeotonsolidation of variable interest entities. Tinadel for
determining which enterprise has a controllingfficial interest and is the primary beneficiary &fl& has changed
significantly under the new guidance. Previousbfjable interest holders had to determine whethey had a controlling
financial interest in a VIE based on a quantitatinalysis of the expected gains and/or losseseoéiitity. The new guidance
requires an enterprise with a variable interest YAE to perform a qualitative assessment in deiténg whether it has a
controlling financial interest in the entity, arfdsd, whether it is the primary beneficiary. Furthere, the amended guidance
requires companies to continually evaluate VIEscfmmsolidation. This guidance was effective foonslanuary 1, 2010. We
are continuing to evaluate the impact this new gidé may have on our financial statements. See 20ote

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

We adopted guidance relating to fair value measargsnand disclosures for our non-financial assetamuary 1, 2009.
This guidance was adopted for our financial asset3anuary 1, 2008.

On April 1, 2009, we adopted new fair value accounprovisions on the following topics:

. Determining fair value when the volume and lesfedictivity for the asset or liability have sigmifintly decreased and
identifying transactions that are not orde

e The recognition and presentation of o-thar-temporary impairment:
. Interim disclosures about fair value of financratruments
On October 1, 2009, we adopted new fair value autog provisions on the following topics:

. Measuring fair value of liabilities, which prowd additional guidance on how fair value measurésnatiabilities
should be determine

. Measuring fair value of certain alternative inwesnts. This guidance provides clarification onreasurement and
disclosure of investments in entities that cal@utzt asset valu
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The adoption of fair value measurement and discéoguidance has not had a significant impact orfinancial statement
results. See Note 14 for fair value discussionsrataded disclosures.

In January 2010 guidance was issued that amendaith&lue disclosure requirements. This guidaates new fair value
disclosures and clarifies existing disclosure regraents. This amended guidance is effective fatuigg the first quarter of
2010. The adoption of this new guidance will notdhan impact on our financial statement results.

Derivative Instruments

We adopted amended guidance on disclosures abouatilee instruments and hedging activities on Zamu, 2009. See
Note 18 for additional information and related #isares. Since this guidance provides only disclsequirements, tr
adoption of this standard did not impact our firahstatement results.

Noncontrolling Interests

We adopted amended guidance on reporting noncingramterests in consolidated financial statememtslanuary 1,
2009. This guidance provides accounting and repgdtandards for noncontrolling interests in a obidated subsidiary and
clarifies that noncontrolling interests should bparted as equity on the consolidated financiaéstants. As a result of
adopting this guidance, we have disclosed on tbe & our financial statements the portion of egaitd net income
attributable to the noncontrolling interests in solidated subsidiaries. Additionally, we reclagsifts47 million of
noncontrolling interests from other deferred cretlit equity on the December 31, 2008 Consolidatddrize Sheets. Prior
yeal's net income attributable to noncontrolling intésesas not material to our Consolidated Statemafltscome and was n
reclassified. The adoption of this guidance modifieir financial statement presentation, but didhaste an impact on our
financial statement results.

Employers’ Disclosure about Postretirement BenefiPlan Assets

In December 2008, the FASB issued guidance on grapbdisclosures about postretirement benefit plssets. This
guidance requires enhanced disclosures about emplgyan assets of a defined benefit pension lergbostretirement plan
including fair value related disclosures. We addytés guidance during the fourth quarter of 2088e Note 8 for the related
disclosures. The adoption of this guidance expawmdeigin disclosures but did not have an impaaiarfinancial statement
results.

Subsequent Events
In May 2009, the FASB issued guidance which esthbli general standards of accounting for and discdoof
subsequent events. Subsequent events are eventsthaafter the balance sheet date but befoaméial statements are issued

or are available to be issued. We adopted thisagiel during the second quarter of 2009. The adopfithis guidance
expanded certain disclosures but did not have @adton our financial statement results.
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3. Regulatory Matters
2008 General Retail Rate Case Decision

On December 30, 2009, the ACC issued an order apa settlement agreement (“Settlement Agreememitered into
by APS and twentpne other parties to its general retail rate cabéh was originally filed in March 2008. The AC@m@ovec
the Settlement Agreement with modifications andgattions for APS that did not materially affect iheerall economic terms
of the settlement.

The Settlement Agreement includes a net retailireiease of $207.5 million, which represents &bate increase of
$344.7 million less a reclassification of $137.2liom of fuel and purchased power revenues frometkisting PSA to base
rates. The new rates were effective January 1,.2010

The parties also agreed to a rate case filing iplavhich APS is prohibited from filing its next twgeneral rate cases until
on or after June 1, 2011 and June 1, 2013, respdctunless certain extraordinary events occubjéit to the foregoing, APS
may not request its next general retail rate irsgda be effective prior to July 1, 2012. The parfigreed to use good faith
efforts to process these subsequent rate casdas wittlve months of sufficiency findings from theC& staff, which generally
occur within 30 days after the filing of a rate €as

Other key provisions of the Settlement Agreeméiféctive January 1, 2010, include the following:

« A nor-fuel base rate increase in annual pretax revenfu®s9®.3 million;

* Anetincrease in annual pretax revenues of $illldn for fuel and purchased power costs refeln base rates
that would not otherwise have been recoverable ruih@éeP SA;

« A Base Fuel Rate of $0.0376 per kWh (comparedédqtior Base Fuel Rate of $0.0325 per kW

. Revenue accounting treatment for line extenseyments received for new or upgraded service franudry 1, 2010
through year end 2012 (or until new rates are éstau in APS’ next general rate case, if thatefobe the end of
2012), resulting in present estimates of increasednues of $23 million, $25 million and $49 milliaespectively

e An authorized return on common equity of 11.(

e A capital structure comprised of 46.2% debt an@%3common equity
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* A commitment from APS to reduce average annuatamnal expenses by at least $30 million from@0tough
2014,

e Authorization and requirements of equity infusiento APS of at least $700 million during the pdrbeginning
June 1, 2009 through December 31, 2014;

«  Various modifications to the existing energy @ffncy, demand-side management and renewable epeygsams
that require APS to, among other things, expandatservation and demand-side management prognagissause
of renewable energy, as well as allow for concurrecovery of renewable energy expenses and prdordaore
concurrent recovery of deme-side management costs and incenti

Cost Recovery Mechanisms

APS has received supportive regulatory decisioasdhow for more timely recovery of certain cofteough the following
recovery mechanisms.

Renewable Energy Standarth 2006, the ACC approved the Arizona Renewable@n8tandard and Tariff (‘“RES”).
Under the RES, electric utilities that are regudaty the ACC must supply an increasing percentédgieedr retail electric
energy sales from eligible renewable resourcefydiy solar, wind, biomass, biogas and geothetedinologies. In order to
achieve these requirements, the ACC allows AP8diidle an RES surcharge on customer bills to rediresapproved
amounts for use on renewable energy projects. iE2@hAPS is required to file a five-year impleméiota plan with the ACC
and seek approval for the upcoming year's RES fudimount.

During 2009, APS filed its annual RES implementatxan, covering the 2010-2014 timeframe and retinge2010 RES
funding approval. The plan provides for the acdiaisiof renewable generation in compliance withuiegments through 2014,
and requests RES funding of $86.7 million for 20ABS also seeks various other determinations iplés, including approval
of the AZ Sun program, which provides for 100 MWutifity-owned solar resources through 2014 andvecy of associated
costs through the RES adjustor until such costdbearecovered through APS’ base rates or altematiechanisms. At its
December open meeting, the ACC approved APS’ 2(HS fainding request, and deferred action on othargms of APS’plan
including the AZ Sun matter. On February 10, 201k6,ACC staff issued a recommendation that the A@grove APSteques
on the AZ Sun matter. It is expected that the AQICmake a determination on this matter in Marcii@0

Demand-Side Management Adjustor Chargehe Settlement Agreement requires APS to submétrenual Energy
Efficiency Implementation Plan for review by ancegval of the ACC. On July 15, 2009, APS filediit&ial Energy
Efficiency Implementation Plan, requesting apprdwathe ACC of programs and program elements facwAPS has
estimated a budget in the amount of $49.9 millmn2010. In order to recover these estimated ansdontuse on certain
demand-side management programs, a surcharge weuldded to customer bills similar to that descridleove under the
RES. The surcharge will offset energy efficiencpaxses and allow for the recovery of any earneghitives. APS received
ACC approval of all but one of its proposed progseand expects to receive a determination from G€ An the remaining
program in the near future.
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The ACC approved recovery of the 2010 Energy Edficy budget less some $1.0 million, which reflecedcalculation
of the incentive payment due to APS under the BnEfficiency Implementation Plan and not a redutiio allowed program
costs. The ACC also approved recovery of all 20@@m@m costs plus incentives. The change from pragrost recovery on a
historical basis to recovery on a concurrent basiguthorized in the Settlement Agreement, resitt¢his one-time need to
address two years (2009 and 2010) of cost recoeryequested by APS, 2009 program cost recoverylie spread over a
three-year period.

PSA Mechanism and Balanc&he PSA, which the ACC initially approved in 20G5apart of APS’ 2003 rate case, and
which was modified by the ACC in 2007, providestioe adjustment of retail rates to reflect variasgian retail fuel and
purchased power costs. The PSA is subject to speg@hrameters and procedures, including the fatigw

APS records deferrals for recovery or refunchioextent actual retail fuel and purchased powstsogary from the
Base Fuel Rat¢

under a 90/10 sharing arrangement, APS defers@Qbre difference between retail fuel and purchgsewver costs
(excluding certain costs, such as renewable errespurces and the capacity components of longpemchase
power agreements acquired through competitive pepoant) and the Base Fuel Rate; APS absorbs 1Q@Be oétail
fuel and purchased power costs above the BaseRateland retains 10% of the benefit from the rét@i and
purchased power costs that are below the BaseRaie|

an adjustment to the PSA rate is made annuatlly Eabruary Et(unless otherwise approved by the ACC) and goes
into effect automatically unless suspended by tG€2

the PSA uses a forward-looking estimate of furel purchased power costs to set the annual PSAwhteh will be
reconciled to actual costs experienced for each WY&k (February 1 through January 31) (see theviafig bullet
point); and

the PSA rate includes (a) a “Forward Componamider which APS recovers or refunds differencew/den
expected fuel and purchased power costs for thernjmg calendar year and those embedded in the BasRate;
(b) a “Historical Component,” under which differescbetween actual fuel and purchased power codtthase
recovered through the combination of the Base Raét and the Forward Component are recovered dthegext
PSA Year; and (c) a “Transition Component,” undéichi APS may seek mid-year PSA changes due to large
variances between actual fuel and purchased povsts and the combination of the Base Fuel RatatenBorward
Component
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The following table shows the changes in the detefuel and purchased power regulatory assetl{tigkfior 2009 and
2008 (dollars in millions):

Year Endec
December 31
2009 2008

Beginning balanc $ 8 $ 111
Deferred fuel and purchased power c-current perioc 52 78
Interest on deferred fuel and purchased pc — 2
Amounts recovered through reveni (147 (183
Ending balanc: $ 87 % 8

The PSA rate for the PSA Year that began Februa2910 was set at ($0.0045) per kWh. The $87 miltegulatory
liability at December 31, 2009 reflected lower ags prices and the seasonal nature of fuel andhvased power costs. These
overcollected fuel cost deferrals during the 2083\ F ear were refunded through the historical congmbof the PSA rate for
the PSA Year beginning February 1, 2010. Since2fi) PSA adjustment was a reduction of the PS& the ACC
accelerated the 2010 adjustment from Febru&tollanuary ®tto coincide with the increase in retail rates riisglfrom the
ACC'’s decision in the general retail rate casesitagia minimal net impact on residential bills. §htcelerated 2010
adjustment will remain in effect until February2D11.

The PSA rate for the PSA Year that began Februa2p9 was $0.0053 per kWh. The PSA rate may naridveased or
decreased more than $0.004 per kWh in a year wifmenmission of the ACC.

Transmission Rates and Transmission Cost Adjusttm July 2008, the FERC approved an Open Accesssimasion
Tariff for APS to move from fixed rates to a forraubte-setting methodology in order to more acelyatflect the costs that
APS incurs in providing transmission services. Tdrenula rate is updated each year effective Juoe the basis of APSictua
cost of service, as disclosed in AFFERC Form 1 report for the previous fiscal yead projected capital expenditures. A la
portion of the rate represents charges for trarsorisservices to serve APS’ retail customers (“R&ansmission Charges”).
In order to recover the Retail Transmission Charg&S must file an application with, and obtain regyal from, the ACC
under the TCA mechanism, by which changes in R&taihsmission Charges can be reflected in APSil netis.

In 2009, APS was authorized to implement an in@éasgts annual transmission revenues based onlasitins filed with
the FERC using data for its 2008 fiscal year. lases in APS’ annual transmission revenues of $2#li®n became effective
June 1, 2009. Of this amount, $21 million represamtincrease in Retail Transmission Charges, whahapproved by the
ACC on July 29, 2009 and allows APS to reflectrilated increased Retail Transmission Charges irettil rates through the
TCA effective August 1, 2009.

4. Income Taxes

Certain assets and liabilities are reported diffdyefor income tax purposes than they are forriiial statements purpos
The tax effect of these differences is recordededisrred taxes. We calculate deferred taxes ubmgurrent income tax rates.
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APS has recorded a regulatory asset and a requlé&ibility related to income taxes on its Balar8fgeets in accordance
with accounting guidance for regulated operatidiee regulatory asset is for certain temporary diffices, primarily the
allowance for equity funds used during constructibime regulatory liability relates to deferred taxesulting primarily from
pension and other postretirement benefits. APS timesrthese amounts as the differences reverse.

Pinnacle West expects to recognize approximatedp$iillion of cash tax benefits related to SunGatrategic asset sa
(see Note 23) which will not be realized until tisset sale transactions are completed. Approxiyn@idl5 million of these
benefits were recorded in 2009 as reductions tonmectax expense related to the current impairniesatges. The additional $
million of tax benefits were recorded as reductitmBicome tax expense related to the SunCor immgait charge recorded in
the fourth quarter of 2008.

The $91 million income tax receivables on the Ctidated Balance Sheets represent the anticipafadds related to an
APS tax accounting method change approved by tBenRhe third quarter of 2009 and the current yarbenefits related to
the SunCor strategic asset sales that closed 9. 200

The following is a tabular reconciliation of theégdbamounts of unrecognized tax benefits, excluditgrest and penalties,
at the beginning and end of the period that arkided in accrued taxes and unrecognized tax berafithe Consolidated
Balance Sheets (dollars in thousands):

2009 2008

Total unrecognized tax benefits, Janua $ 63,31¢ $ 157,86¢
Additions for tax positions of the current y¢ 44,09 12,92:
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 98,94: 32,51(
Reductions for tax positions of prior years 1

Changes in judgmel — (4,459

Settlements with taxing authoriti (4,089 (35,819

Lapses of applicable statute of limitatic (1,049 (99,719
Total unrecognized tax benefits, Decembe $ 201,21t $ 63,31¢

Included in both balances of unrecognized tax benaf December 31, 2009 and 2008 were approxim&ted million of
tax positions that, if recognized, would decreasesffective tax rate.

As of the balance sheet date, the tax year endedriteer 31, 2005 and all subsequent tax years resnject to
examination by the IRS. With few exceptions, werazdonger subject to state income tax examinatiynx authorities for
years before 199!

Within the next 12 months, it is reasonably pogsthht the Company will reach a settlement withlR@ with regard to
the examination of tax returns for years ended Bz 31, 2005 through 2007. As a result of thesieipated settlements, ai
the expiration of certain statutes of limitatiotite Company believes that it is reasonably possiitaieunrecognized tax bene
could be reduced by an amount up to $70 million.

We reflect interest and penalties, if any, on uageized tax benefits in the Consolidated Statemaitscome as income

tax expense. The amount of interest recognizeldearconsolidated statement of income related tocogrized tax benefits was
a pre-tax expense of $2 million for 2009 and prebanefit of $51 million for 2008.
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The total amount of accrued liabilities for intdrescognized in the consolidated balance sheeitekto unrecognized tax
benefits was $8 million as of December 31, 2009%dillion as of December 31, 2008. To the exthat matters are settled
favorably, this amount could reverse and decreasefective tax rate. Additionally, as of DecemBér 2009, we have
recognized $1 million of interest expense to bel wai the underpayment of income taxes for certdiusaments that we have
filed, or will file, with the IRS.

The components of income tax expense are as folldelars in thousands):

Year Ended December 3

2009 2008 2007

Current:

Federal $ (3850) $ (8586 $ 182,18:

State (38,080 11,73¢ 30,80!
Total curreni (76,587) (74,12%) 212,98.
Deferred:

Income from continuing operatiol 105,49:. 158,02« (56,147

Discontinued operatior — — (343
Total deferrec 105,49. 158,02« (56,490
Total income tax expen: 28,91( 83,89¢ 156,49:
Less: income tax expense (benefit) on discontiropetations (8,919 6,99¢ 4,48¢
Income tax expens— continuing operation $ 37,821 $ 76,89 $ 152,00¢
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The following chart compares pretax income fromteaing operations at the 35% federal income ta& raincome tax
expense — continuing operations (dollars in thodsan

Year Ended December 2

2009 2008 2007
Federal income tax expense at 35% statutory $ 36,77( $ 107,87 $ 158,35
Increases (reductions) in tax expense resulting f
State income tax net of federal income tax bel 3,66z 10,857 17,07¢
Credits and favorable adjustments related to yeairs resolved in
current yea — (28,879) (13,205
Medicare Subsidy P«D (2,095 (2,999 (3,236)
Allowance for equity funds used during constructisee Note 1 (4,269 (5,75%) (6,899
Other 3,75¢ (5,209 (87)
Income tax expens— continuing operation $ 37,82 $ 76,89 $ 152,00t

The following table shows the net deferred incomeligbility recognized on the Consolidated BalaBteets (dollars in
thousands):

December 31

2009 2008
Current asse $ 53,99( $ 79,72¢
Long-term liability (1,496,09) (1,403,31)
Accumulated deferred income ta>— net $ (1,442,10) $ (1,323,58)
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The components of the net deferred income taxliiglvere as follows (dollars in thousands):

DEFERRED TAX ASSET¢
Risk management activitit
Regulatory liabilities
Asset retirement obligatic
Deferred fuel and purchased pov
Other
Pension and other postretirement liabilii
Deferred gain on Palo Verde Unit 2 sale leasel
Real estate investments and assets held fo
Other
Total deferred tax asse
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Plan-related
Risk management activitit
Regulatory asset
Allowance for equity funds used during construct
Deferred fuel and purchased pov— mark-to-market
Pension and other postretirement ben:
Other
Other
Total deferred tax liabilitie
Accumulated deferred income ta>— net

December 31

2009 2008
$  8740¢ $ 13238
213,81 194,32
34,46 —
21,61 13,98¢
306,51 281,05
11,83¢ 12,66¢
113,08: 23,46¢
48,60: 78,21(
837,32 736,09:
(1,951,26) (1,709,87)
(20,86%) (20,737
(23,28%) (20,179
(16,167 (46,597
(210,08() (186,91f)
(57,210 (58,519

(567) (16,875
(2,279,43) (2,059,68)

$ (1,442,10) $ (1,323,58)
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5. Lines of Credit and Short-Term Borrowing

Pinnacle West and APS maintain credit facilitiesiider to enhance liquidity and provide credit suppThe credit and
liquidity markets experienced significant stresgibring in the third quarter of 2008. Since thertbwquarter of 2008, Pinnacle
West and APS have not accessed the commercial pegr&et due to negative market conditions. TheyeHanth been able to
access existing credit facilities, ensuring adegjligtidity. The table below presents the constdiddines of credit available
and outstanding as of December 31, 2009 (dollansiliions):

Weighted
Amount Unused Average
Credit Facility Expiration Committec  Borrowec Amount Interest Rat  Commitment Fee
PNW Revolving Credit
Line December 201  $ 28: % 14¢ $ 134 0.982% 0.15%
APS Revolving Credit
Line December 201 371 — 377 — 0.11%
APS Revolving Credit
Line September 201 48¢ — 48¢ — 0.1(%
Other SunCor
Short-term LIBOR plus
Borrowings January 201 — 5 — 2.50% —
Total $ 114¢ 3 154 $ 1,00C

The PNW revolver is available to support the isseaof up to $250 million in commercial paper or bé&orrowings,
including issuances of letters of credit up to $@#ion.

The APS revolvers are available either to suppmtissuance of up to $250 million in commercialgragr to be used for
bank borrowings, including issuances of lettersreflit up to $583 million. See Note 21 for discassof APS’ letters of credit.
At December 31, 2009, APS had no borrowings ankgtters of credit under its revolving lines of dted

The table below presents the consolidated linesetfit available and outstanding as of Decembe2Ba8 (dollars in

millions):
Weighted
Amount Unused Average
Credit Facility Expiration Committec  Borrowec Amount Interest Rat  Commitment Fee
PNW Revolving Credit
Line December 201  $ 30C $ 144 $  15€ 2.713% 0.15%
APS Revolving Credit
Line December 201 40C 38 362 1.00% 0.11%
APS Revolving Credit
Line September 201 50C 484 16 2.18% 0.1(%
Other SunCor
Short-term LIBOR plus
Borrowings January 201! — 4 — 2.50% —
Total $ 1200 $ 67C $ 534

Pinnacle West had a committed line of credit wislieus banks totaling $300 million at DecemberZ108. Credit
commitments totaling approximately $17 million frarahman Brothers were no longer available. The neimg$283 million
was available to support the issuance of up to $2fbn in commercial paper or bank borrowings;lirding issuances of
letters of credit up to $94 million of which $7 foh was outstanding.

APS had committed lines of credit totaling $900lianl at December 31, 2008. Credit commitments ilegahpproximatel
$34 million from Lehman Brothers were no longerikakde. The remaining capacity of $866 million untlee APS revolvers
was available either to support the issuance dd§250 million in commercial paper or to be usedifank borrowings,
including issuances of letters of credit up to $&88ion.
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On February 12, 2010, Pinnacle West refinance®2&83 million revolving credit facility that wouldalve matured in
December 2010, and decreased the size of thetydails200 million. The new revolving credit fagjliterminates in
February 2013. Pinnacle West may increase the anodtime facility up to a maximum of $300 millioppaon the satisfaction of
certain conditions and with the consent of the é&sadPinnacle West will use the facility for gede@porate purposes,
repayment of long-term debt, and for the issuarfidetrs of credit. Interest rates are based omdrile West's senior
unsecured debt credit ratings. In addition, becafisiee downsized revolving credit facility, the @pany is in the process of
reducing the size of its commercial paper prograi$200 million from $250 million.

On February 12, 2010, APS refinanced its $377 omillevolving credit facility that would have matdne
December 2010, and increased the size of thetfatli$500 million. The new revolving credit fatyliterminates in
February 2013. APS may increase the amount ofatiéty up to a maximum of $700 million upon theistaction of certain
conditions and with the consent of the lenders. AHRuse the facility for general corporate purpssand for the issuance of
letters of credit. Interest rates are based on ARSior unsecured debt credit ratings.

Although provisions in APS’ articles of incorpor@tiand ACC financing orders establish maximum artahpreferred
stock and debt that APS may issue, APS does neicegny of these provisions to limit its abilityrreeet its capital
requirements. On October 30, 2007, the ACC issuathacing order in which it approved APS’ requesthject to specified
parameters and procedures, to increase (a) AP&-ttmn debt authorization from 7% of APS’ capitalion to (i) 7% of APS’
capitalization plus (ii) $500 million (which is reged to be used for purchases of natural gas ene) and (b) APS’ longerm
debt authorization from approximately $3.2 billimn$4.2 billion in light of the projected growth APS and its customer base
and the resulting projected financing needs. Tihanfcing order expires December 31, 2012; howalkdebt previously
authorized and outstanding on December 31, 2012emilain authorized and valid obligations of APS.

See discussion about SunCor’s Secured Revolveoia 6l
Other Short-term Borrowings
Neither Pinnacle West nor APS had commercial papeowings or other short-term debt at Decembe2809 or

December 31, 2008. SunCor had other short-ternsraftapproximately $5 million at December 31, 2608 December 31,
2008 with variable interest rates based on LIBOR [2.5%.
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6. Long-Term Debt and Liquidity Matters

Substantially all of APS’ debt is unsecured. SurCsinort and long-term debt is collateralized bgiasts in certain real
property and Pinnacle West's debt is unsecured falleving table presents the components of lorrgatdebt on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets outstanding at Dece®ih@009 and 2008 (dollars in thousands):

Maturity Interest December 31
Dates (a Rates 2009 2008

APS
Pollution control bond— Variable 202¢-2038 (b) $ 222,88 $ 539,14
Pollution control bond— Fixed 202¢-2034 (c) 342,97! —
Pollution control bonds with senior not 2029 5.05% 90,00( 90,00(
Unsecured note 2011 6.375% 400,00( 400,00(
Unsecured note 2012 6.5(% 375,00( 375,00(
Unsecured note 2014 5.8(% 300,00( 300,00t
Unsecured note 2015 4.65(% 300,00( 300,00(
Unsecured note 2016 6.25% 250,00( 250,00(
Unsecured notes (| 2019 8.7% 500,00t —
Unsecured note 2033 5.625% 200,00( 200,00t
Unsecured note 2035 5.5(% 250,00( 250,00
Unsecured note 2036 6.875% 150,00 150,00
Secured not 2014 6.0(% 1,07¢ 1,25¢
Unamortized discount and premit (7,185 (7,90¢)
Capitalized lease obligatiol 201(-2012 (e) 2,831 3,621

Subtotal (f) 3,377,58; 2,851,111
SUNCOR
Notes payabli 201(-2013 (9) 95,53t 182,80
Capitalized lease obligatiol 201(-2012 (h) 10C 32¢

Subtotal 95,63t 183,13:
PINNACLE WEST
Senior note! 2011 5.91% 175,00( 175,00(
Total lon¢-term debt 3,648,21 3,209,24!
Less current maturitie:

APS 197,17¢ 874

SunCor 80,517 176,77:

Pinnacle Wes — —
Total 277,69: 177,64t
TOTAL LONG -TERM DEBT LESS CURRENT

MATURITIES $ 3,370,52. $ 3,031,60:

(&) This schedule does not reflect the timing of rediéomg that may occur prior to maturitie

(b) The weighted-average rate for the variabie pallution control bonds was 0.25% at Decembe2809 and 8.30% at
December 31, 2008. The 2008 weighted averageneliedied rates associated with debt securities éti@urate mode.
See discussion of the refinancing of pollution cokibonds below

(c) The bonds’ fixed rate of interest range fr51®0% to 6.00% and are subject to mandatory tedates. Refer to the
discussion below on Pollution Control Bon

(d) On February 26, 2009, APS issued $500 million @58 unsecured senior notes that mature on Mar2@19.
(e) The weighte-average interest rate was 5.50% at December 39, &0 5.51% at December 31, 20
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() APS’ long-term debt less current maturitiess/$3.180 billion at December 31, 2009 and $2.8%6rbat December 31,
2008. APS’ current maturities of long-term debt 8497 million at December 31, 2009 and $1 milliomdacember 31,
2008.

(g) SunCor had $57 million outstanding at Decen®ie 2009 and $120 million at December 31, 200&eunits secured
revolver that matured on January 30, 2010. The htedyaverage interest rates were 5.00% at DeceBih@009 and
4.19% at December 31, 2008. At December 31, 208Pmtember 31, 2008 approximately $39 million aéd fhillion of
other debt remained outstanding under other long-tzedit facilities. The remaining debt which rnparily classified as
current maturities of long-term debt consisted oftiple notes with variable interest rates of priptes 2.0% and LIBOR
plus 1.70%, 2.0%, 2.25% and 2.50% at December(19.2At December 31, 2008, the remaining debt ctediof
multiple notes with variable interest rates of priplus 1.75% and 2.00% and LIBOR plus 1.70%, 2.0025%, 2.50%
and a fixed rate note of 4.25%. See below for &rrdiscussion of SunCor de

(h) The weighte-average interest rate was 4.9% at December 31, 200%.2% at December 31, 20
Debt Issuances
Unsecured Senior Notes

On February 26, 2009, APS issued $500 million 868 unsecured senior notes that mature on Mar2@19. Net
proceeds from the sale of the notes were usegtyrehort-term borrowings under two committed rewg lines of credit
incurred to fund capital expenditures and for gaheorporate purposes.

Pollution Control Bonds

During 2009, APS refinanced approximately $343iomllof its $656 million pollution control bonds. Asresult of these
refinancings, which are described in the followtagle, APS no longer has any outstanding debt g&suin auction rate mode.
Each series of bonds, described below, is payaliddysrom revenues obtained from APS pursuantltmaa agreement betwe
APS and the respective pollution control corporatibhe interest rates on these bonds are fixedigfirthe applicable interest
reset dates as presented in the table below. Anteeest reset dates, we will be required to pasehithe bonds and will have
opportunity to remarket the bonds in daily, weekhgnthly or other interest rate modes at that tifiese bonds are classified
as long-term debt on our Consolidated Balance Staddecember 31, 2009.
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Coconino County, A: Maricopa County, Az
Pollution Control Pollution Control

Navajo County, Az
Pollution Control

Issuer Corporation (1 Corporation (2 Corporation (3
Issuance Dat May 28, 200¢ May 28, 200¢ June 26, 200
Due Date June 1, 203 June 1, 203 May 1, 202¢
Bond series detail Series A-5.00% Series A-5.50% Series A-6.00%
(series, fixec $38 million $13 million $36 million
interest rate June 1, 201. June 1, 201 May 1, 2014
amount, reset dat
Series B-5.50% Series E- 5.50%
$32 million $32 million
June 1, 201 May 1, 201z
Series (- 5.50% Series (- 5.75%
$32 million $32 million
June 1, 201. May 1, 201z
Series C-5.75% Series C- 6.00%
$32 million $32 million
June 1, 201 May 1, 2014
Series E-5.75%, Series E- 6.00%
$32 million $32 million
June 1, 201 May 1, 2014
Total $166 million $13 million $164 million

(1) Issued to redeem all of approximately $16Bioni of the Navajo County, Arizona Pollution CoaltcCorporation Pollution
Control Revenue Refunding Bonds 2004 Seri-E, due 2034

(2) Issued to redeem all of approximately $13iamlof the Coconino County, Arizona Pollution CaitCorporation
Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds 2004 &34, due 203/

(3) Issued to redeem all of approximately $16Hioni of the Maricopa County, Arizona Pollution Gowol Corporation
Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds 2005¢3e£-E, due 2029

On September 11, 2008, APS purchased all of theoajpately $27 million of the Coconino County, Asiza Pollution
Control Corporation (“Coconino”) Pollution ContrBlevenue Bonds, Series 1996A and Series 1999 dueniber 2031 and
April 2034 and held them as treasury bonds. OneBelper 22, 2009, Coconino issued approximately $#liomof Coconino
Pollution Control Revenue Refunding Bonds, 20096868 due April 2038 to redeem the existing bod3S used the funds
received from the issuance to repay certain exjstidebtedness under a revolving line of creditarapon by APS to fund its
purchase of the 1996A and 1999 Series Bonds in.Z0@8 2009 Series B Bonds are payable solely fmnues obtained
from APS pursuant to a loan agreement between AldSCaconino. According to the indenture of the mride interest rate of
the 2009 Series B Bonds could be reset daily, weekbnthly, or at other time intervals. The initiate period selected for the
2009 Series B Bonds is a daily rate period. At Dawper 31, 2009, the daily interest rate was 0.26B&. daily rates are variable
rates set by a remarketing agent. Concurrently thighssuance of the 2009 Series B Bonds, the Coyngatered into a two
year letter of credit and reimbursement agreeneeptdvide credit support for the 2009 Series B Borithese bonds a
classified as long-term debt on our Consolidateldi3ze Sheets at December 31, 2009.
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Approximately $196 million of pollution control bds were classified as current maturities of longatdebt at
December 31, 2009. Currently, interest rates osetfo®nds are set daily by a remarketing agent.tidddily, the bonds are
backed by letters of credit that expire in 2010yhkich time the letters of credit will have to leplaced, renewed or extended,
or the bonds will have to be remarketed in a déffélinterest rate mode. The bond holders will havgurrender the bonds back
to APS if APS decides to remarket them in a diffieiaterest rate mode.

The interest rate on the remaining $90 million ofiytion control bonds with senior notes is fixexnt fife, and the bonds
are also backed by insurance. The bonds are détabsi$ long-term debt on our Consolidated Balarmeae at December 31,
20009.

Debt Provisions

Pinnacle West's and APS’ debt covenants relatébdio respective bank financing arrangements ireldebt to
capitalization ratios. Certain of APBank financing arrangements also include an intemgerage test. Pinnacle West and /
comply with these covenants and each anticipatesl icontinue to meet these and other significamtenant requirements. For
both Pinnacle West and APS, these covenants retiiait¢he ratio of consolidated debt to total cdidsded capitalization not
exceed 65%. At December 31, 2009, the ratio wasoappately 52% for Pinnacle West and 48% for APBe Pprovisions
regarding interest coverage require minimum casferage of two times the interest requirements fBEAThe interest
coverage was approximately 4.6 times under APSk imancing agreements as of December 31, 200Qureab comply with
such covenant levels would result in an event édewhich, generally speaking, would require ifmenediate repayment of
the debt subject to the covenants and could crefsitl other debt. See further discussion of “craefult” provisions below.

Neither Pinnacle West's nor APS’ financing agreets@ontain “rating triggers” that would result in acceleration of the
required interest and principal payments in theneeéa rating downgrade. However, our bank finag@agreements contain a
pricing grid in which the interest costs we pay d@etermined by our current credit ratings.

All of Pinnacle West's loan agreements contain $srdefault” provisions that would result in defawdhd the potential
acceleration of payment under these loan agreerfd?ittnacle West or APS were to default underaiarbther material
agreements. All of APS’ bank agreements contaisdefault provisions that would result in defaaltsl the potential
acceleration of payment under these bank agreeriex®S were to default under certain other matexggeements. Pinnacle
West and APS do not have a material adverse chasgéction for revolver borrowings.

An existing ACC order requires APS to maintain enomon equity ratio of at least 40%. As defined iea &CC order, the
common equity ratio is common equity divided by siuen of common equity and lorigkm debt, including current maturities
long-term debt. At December 31, 2009, APS commairitegatio, as defined, was 50%. Its total commaquity was
approximately $3.4 billion, and total capitalizatiwas approximately $6.8 billion. APS would be pbiled from paying
dividends if the payment would reduce its commonitydoelow approximately $2.7 billion, assuming AR&al capitalization
remains the same. This restriction does not mélieatfect Pinnacle West's ability to meet its omgg capital requirements.
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SunCor— SunCor's principal loan facility, the SunCor SetlRevolver, is secured primarily by an interadand,
commercial properties, land contracts and homesmcmhstruction. At December 31, 2009, SunCor ladolwings of
approximately $57 million under the Secured Rewvol¥ée revolver matured on January 30, 2010. Sua@drthe agent bank
for the Secured Revolver are discussing an exterdfithe maturity date to allow time for SunCorctmtinue discussions
concerning the potential sale of additional prapsrtin addition to the Secured Revolver, at Decan®i, 2009, SunCor had
approximately $43 million of outstanding debt und#rer credit facilities ($9 million of which hasatured since December 31,
2009 and remains outstanding). SunCor intendsptydpe proceeds of planned asset sales (see I8dte the repayment of i
outstanding debt.

Real estate impairment charges recorded throudf}f (see Note 23) resulted in violations of caertivenants
contained in the SunCor Secured Revolver and SusGthrer credit facilities. The lenders have takerenforcement action
related to the covenant defaults.

If SunCor is unable to obtain an extension or rexlef/the Secured Revolver or its other matured,dwtif it is unable to
comply with the mandatory repayment and other gions of any new or modified credit agreements,CRurcould be require
to immediately repay its outstanding indebtednesteuall of its credit facilities as a result obss-default provisions. Such an
immediate repayment obligation would have a mataedserse impact on SunCor's business and finapogtion and impair i
ongoing viability.

SunCor cannot predict the outcome of negotiatioitis it lenders or its ability to sell assets faffgient proceeds to
repay its outstanding debt. SunCor's ability toegate sufficient cash from operations while it paslender negotiations and
further asset sales is uncertain.

Neither Pinnacle West nor any of its other subsieiahas guaranteed any SunCor indebtedness. AdBuleBt default
would not result in a cross-default of any of tledidof Pinnacle West or any of its other subsid&riVhile there can be no
assurances as to the ultimate outcome of this m&itenacle West does not believe that SunCorhilihato obtain waivers or
similar relief from SunCor's lenders would have @enial adverse impact on Pinnacle West's cashsflmwiquidity.

As of December 31, 2009, SunCor could not traresfgrcash dividends to Pinnacle West as a restitteofovenants
mentioned above. The restriction does not matgrédfect Pinnacle West's ability to meet its ongpdapital requirements.

The following table shows principal payments duePiimacle West's and APS’ total long-term debt eaplitalized lease
requirements (dollars in millions):

Pinnacle We:-

Year Consolidatec APS

2010 $ 27¢ $ 197
2011 61€ 42¢
2012 44¢€ 44¢€
2013 33 32
2014 477 477
Thereaftel 1,80¢ 1,80¢
Total $ 3,65¢ $ 3,38t
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